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Wireless communications technology ts rundamentally
changing and improving people’s lives worldwide.

QUALCOMM is proud to be a leader in the communications revolution.
For more than two decades now, we've been innovating with new ideas and
executing on our vision. Together with our many partners, we are growing

a vital and competitive industry that includesiequipment manufacturers,

w L . | .
network operators, applications developers and content publishers.

|
. . . . - 1 ) -
Our wireless technologies are making a meaningful difference in the

lives of people everywhere. Our goal is connectivity to the people and
data that matter most. By making a positive impact on everyday life,
we're part of an industry that is literally changing the world. ..

for the better.
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for Diabetes Patients¥

The “diabetes phone” uses a BREW®
application and wireless technology
to reportiglucose levels to medicalf
teams, enabling realtime consultation
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lt_ ativeis helpmg people
around the globe to improve
' their lives with 3G. Being a part
“of Wireless|Reach and seeing
the positivelimpact of wireless
technologythat's when my
~ job ceases to bework.” -
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JAPAN

300 Million Music Downloads

Dewnloading mabile music is enormously popular
in Japan. Approximately four million full-length
songs are now being downloaded per month en
KDDI's BREW application, Chaku Uta Full. Since
the initial launch of the music service inlate 2002.
customers have purchased more than 300 million
downloads, including'song clips. ringtones and
full-length songs.







2
w

. -
NORTH AMERICA

Man"‘a'ging Construction R
‘t‘iﬁ)@'] Forestry Equipment .

¥ b '

! : G cr ¥ : ] o O_UALCOMM Wireless Bustness Solutions”
. o . - " E ; 'l formed an all:ance this 3 year with tohn ¢
AN - E P - s ‘ ) Deere Constructlon&Forestry Company

' " 9 ' ‘ K ‘tocreate a monitoring and |nformat|on ' LT
delwery system that leverages aur
GlobalTRACS equipment management o
systern providing vital information
equrpmentlocatron machme f
I':ealth'and service status.

, ‘.

\
/
1
P

.

, iﬂ;!‘-" .‘
Lemoo

- Na v

e TR L e AR S i L e A R
: Nl



'_e of cpe 'Elng quallty desngns

* ;
J_h___._be .‘v ‘.




F ' ', ;7
S T D A f,/, . ,
DIA F .,{ A"l‘i’ - -‘ l "’ ' r ’q !'; ' / J ( ' ’A‘ 7 ! . 1
4 ¢ 2oy } }“1" u,»; _.,\ ' ¢

- .' o i:’ co b
IS 1k ?ﬁsﬂ@?&@ﬁ@ﬁ @rt DWT@@QSQ‘S S .
1 P Y e .
996,T 12 TeleserwceSCDMA based mobn[e o ' :

.
vices |n ndia¥l oday) brand namejTatallndicom?
" offer‘s’a broad range lncludmg BSEl{Bombay,

hange] Phortfolm TrackerQUALGOMM sIBREW]
hislpopulagstock portfolloenables
r H

L i
t k dt i
stockslan i ak portfolio f{b@)@}, .

P
i & g 4 5w o
X! E P L
o k] L ' . b
5 ‘fb L .\a i ; ‘ ’ M ‘
A S o .
e L v S
&
N

._

o







To Our Stockholders:

The technology we are enabling continues to have a growing and positive
impact on people’s lives around the world.

FOCUS AND DEDICATION

Fiscal 2006 was the first full year following the transition to our new management team. It was

a year in which a small number of competitors sought to challenge us, not in the marketplace, but
in courts and regulatory arenas. We will meet these challenges with the highest level of energy
and integrity while remaining dedicated to the execution of our business model. Qur emplayees
developed new technologies and defined new business models that generated new opportunities
for a wider range of partners across multiple industries. Consumers adopted our third-generation
(3G) technologies at an accelerating pace both in mature and developing markets. And it was a year
in which we returned the strongest financiat perfarmance in aur history.

ENABLING PROGRESS AND GROWTH

Our business model stimulates a healthy and competitive worldwide wireless marketplace. Qur
inventions enable new revenue streams for us and for our partners—manufacturers, operators,
content providers and developers—enabling continuing investments throughout the wireless value
chain. Our focus on effective execution and rewarding partnerships has positioned us for continued
growth and leadership in the rapidly advancing global wireless industry.

Looking ahead, we believe that, increasingly, the evolution in wireless will be less about competing
technologies and more about complementary technologies—working together to provide manufac-
turers and operators the richest set of choices on which to profitably build their businesses, and
providing users with ever more compelling wireless applications and services. Our strategy is to
continue supporting a broad range of technalogy and software platforms, To that end, our solutions
and intefiectual property portfolio now integrate multiple radio technolagies, support for multiple
spectrum bands and an extensive array of data and multimedia capabilities—all designed to speed
the introduction by our partners of compelling new services and groundbreaking wireless devices.

Among the trends we are seeing in the wireless industry are ubiguitous and inexpensive mobile
voice, even higher data speeds and an increasingly extensive set of data services—all seamlessly
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integrated in an ever-increasing array of innovative devices. Wireless devices now combine the
versatility and capability of a personal computer with true mability. Enabled by today's high-speed
networks, the mobile phane is beceming a mutti-functional device that supports a myriad of
applications, including voice, data. multimedia and GPS location-based services, using a variety
of wireless networks simultaneously.

STRONG DEMAND FOR TECHNOLOGY

Among the growth drivers for our business this year is the increasing demand for our chipsets—
semiconductors and system software. In emerging markets like China and india, demand for
inexpensive devices based on 3G technology is increasing. In more established markets like
North America, South Korea, Japan and Europe, consumers and enterprises continue to upgrade
to feature-rich 3G COMA devices and services.

Global demand for 3G wireless surged this year and QUALCOMM technology continues to be the
key driver with industry-leading solutions targeting all addressable markets. As of November
2006, there were more than 410 million subscribers to QUALCOMM-enabled wireless networks,
including approximately 320 million subscribers to networks based on CDMA2000; the first 3G
solution deployed anywhere in the world.

As second-generation (2G) networks make the transition to advanced wireless systems, the
WCDMA (UMTS) market is gaining impressive momentum, presenting an additional opportunity
forus. As of November 2006, there were more than 90 million WCDMA subscribers worldwide.

As we look to future technology deployments, our expertise and continued innovation in CDMA
technology have brought us to a leading position in both CDMAZ2000 and WCDMA next-generation
innavations. The high-speed version of COMAZ2000. 1xEV-DO, is now available on 44 networks in
29 countries. For our WCDMA customers, we were first-to-market with the enhanced WCDMA next
generation solution called High Speed Downlink Packet Access (HSDPA), and we are pleased that
our chipset customers have been the first device manufacturers ta support HSDPA launches.

Each QUALCOMM operating unit plays a key role in innovating and
supporting wireless solutions that enable the wireless industry.

02 QUALCOMM 2006

The Telecommunicatiens Industry Association adopted our FLO™ technology this year as a
standard for mobile TV, More than 70 leading companies from around the world have now joined
the FLO Forum, the association of wireless industry leaders which drove the FLO standardization
effart. Mobile television may very well be the next "killer” application on the cell phone and we are
excited to see how consumers react to the commercial introduction of MediaFLO™ in 2007 in the
United States.




REVENUE AND GROSS MARGIN i+
{2 in billions)

33%
increase from 2005

$7.53 2006
$5.67 2005
54.88 2004

$3.85 2003
i | 5292 2002

2002-2006

67%

% = Gross Margin

PRO FORMA DILUTED
EARNINGS PER SHARE 1+

41%
increase from 2005

$1.64 2006

2116 2005
$1.07 2004
$0.71 2002
I $0.48 2002

2002-2006

LHAOHISIE See notes on page B1.

* Fiscal 2006 results presented reflect the impact of share based compensation related to our adoption of FAS 123R.
Further details are located in our Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements beginning on page 59.

** Seareconciliation to GAAP amounts an page 80.

We achleved record fesults
in fiscal 2006

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT *
(s in billions)

52%

in_crease from 2005
'$1.54 2006

51.01 2005
=072 2004

s0.52 2003
50.45 2002

2002-2006

% = Percentage of Revenue

CASH, CASH éQ_UIVALENTS AND
MARKETABLE SECURITIES
{sin billions)

15%

increase from 2005

59.95 2006
$8.68 2005
$7.64 2004
$5.37 2003
$3.20 2002

2002-2006

DILUTED EARNINGS
PER SHARE/({GAAP} o+

2002-2006

FREE CASH FLOW tisHsix

{s in billians)

2002-2006

14%

lncrease from 2005

£1.44 20086
£1.26 2005
SERL
$0.51 2003
s0.22 2002

22%

increase from 2005

$2.57 2006
$2.11 2005
$2:14.2004
$1.55 2003
$0:97' 2002
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Uur strong cash rlows enable us To continue to investin ?eve[oping

new technologies through research and development whi

|le returning

capital to our stockholders through dividends and share repurchases’”

WILLIAM E. KEITEL, EXECUTIVE VICE PRESIDENT AND CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

Returning Capital to Stockholders

EHARE REPURCHASE PROGRAM

158"
s1.08
5160 M

Fy 2002 FY 2005 FY 2006

Gross repurchases. Authorized $2.5 billion on Movember 7, 2005,
no expiration date. As of Novernber 2, 2006, 0.8 billion remained
authorized for repurchase

Key Honors

- |
QUARTERLY CASHDIVIDEND PER COMMON SHARE

{Based on Date Payable}

$090 5090
$070  $070
$.050
5.035 5035
s.ozsll
3 1134 3

o ® { -4

$258 $3% 3 EE
2003 2004 2005 2006

Nate: The Company affected a two-for-one stock split in August 2004,

Allreferences toper share data have been adjusted toreflect the

stock split.

Dur Company is proud to be recognized for our successful business model
and the quality of our people. including the following prestigious honors:

Eight years in arow on FORTUNE's list of |
“100Best Companies to Work For in A'me‘

FORTUNEs list of

Most Admired
Companies”

D4 QUALLOMM 2000

“Best Financially

Forbes Platinum List

“The Best
Big Companies”

Fabless Semiconductor
Association's

Managed Company”

rica”

Financial Times

“List of Most Valuable
Global Companies”




FOCUSED BUSINESS OPERATIONS AND STRONG RESULTS

To ensure long-term growth for our company and industry, we aggressively invest in research and
development (R&D). In fiscal 2006 we invested approximately $1.5 billion in R&D aimed at enhancing
the wireless user experience and enabling exciting new services for consumers and enterprises.
Our R&D efforts have provided us with an industry-leading intellectual property portfolio that is
made available to equipment and device manufacturers worldwide.,

In fiscal 2006, we achieved another year of record revenue, generating $7.53 billion, up 33 percent
year-over-year. Through our ongoing focus on operations, our earnings have again increased. In
fiscal 2006 we reported net income of $2.47 billion, up 15 percent year-over-year, and diluted
earnings per share of $1.44, up 14 percent year-over-year. Operating cash flow was $3.25 billion in
fiscal 2006, up 21 percent year-over-year and represented approximately 43 percent of revenue.

QOur balance sheet strength and pro-competitive business model provide us with significant
financial flexibility, allowing us to pursue strategic growth objectives, pay dividends and repurchase
shares in our ongoing effort to enhance stockholder value. Building on this commitment in fiscal
2006, we paid cash dividends totaling approximately 3698 million and repurchased 34 million
shares of our common stock for approximately $1.49 billion, net of related premiums received.
Our totat cash and marketahble securities balance grew to $9.95 billion at the end of fiscal 2006,
anincrease of 15 percent year-over-year.

We are enabling the next evolution in wireless.

CONTINUED GROWTH AND LEADERSHIP

There are significant opportunities ahead for us as more people make advanced wireless technology
part of their daily lives. The large-scale migration from 2G GSM to 3G CDMA is progressing through-
out the world and market forecasts anticipate considerable increases in device sales with high-speed
data capability. This inevitable worldwide migration to 3G is a significant apportunity for QUALCOMM
and our partners in the wireless value chain.

On behalf of the executive team, we'd like to thank QUALCOMM's employees and partners world-
wide for their outstanding performance this year. With their help, and with support from our
investors, we will continue to innovate and invest in the future of wireless.

g HA

Dr. Paul E. Jacobs Steven R. Altman
Chief Executive Officer President
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QUALCOMM continues its role as the
ﬂ@@@]ﬁﬂ @ﬂ@bﬂ@ﬂ” of the wireless value chain.

ADVANCED WIRELESS TECHNOLOGIES

The increasingly widespread availability and
demand for wireline and wireless broadband
is driving a convergence of capabilities in
computing devices, including smart phones,

laptop computers and personal media players.

We continue to drive down cost and power
consumption, yet increase functionality and
processing power of our chipset solutions,
thereby enabling a broader market for
wireless broadband.

Through our robust technology roadmaps, we
are providing a wide range of choices ta our

industry partners and helping drive the advance-

ment of mobile broadband, rich multimedia
services, location-enhanced applications and
embedded wireless technology.

PAVING THE WAY FOR THE

NEXT GENERATION

DO Multicarrier Multilink eXtensions (DMMX)
and HSDPA Multicarrier Multilink eXtensions
{HMMX) are the terms used to describe
QUALCOMM's dual-path technelogy roadmap
to the year 2010 and beyond. DMMX focuses

Opposite page: This QUALCOMM engineer
is evaluating the antenna component of new
chipset reference designs to ensure the
most optimal over-the-air performance.

on helping the CDMA2000 community achieve
its goals for the wireless future. HMMX is
designed to serve the WCDMA community.
Together, these roadmaps support our vision
for a world where devices can simultaneously
link with multiple networks and protocaols.
ensuring the optimal solution in any given
situation. In other words, these evolving
platforms enable “smart” connections so the
right technology is used for the right service.

There are now more than 70 {aptop
models in design, or commercially
available, that feature embedded
mobile broadband connectivity,
based on a QUALCOMM chipset
(either EV-DO or HSDPA).

Whether in the CDMA2000 community or in
the WCDMA community, the goal is the same.,
We're matching the optimal airlink with the
appropriate application. And we're driving
the convergence of high-speed wireless and
personal electronics into multi-use mobile

devices...through the next decade and beyond.
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QUALCOMM Ofters Complete Techno
Roadmaps for the Future |

ogy

EV-DO/UMB Mobite Broadband Evolution

@ommercialized[int2006 2008
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EV DO Rev. B enables operators to aggregate multiple EV-DO0
Rev. A radio frequency (RF) channels to improve user experi-
ence by offering increased capacity and higher data rates and
lower delay.

EY SO0 Rav A

Building on EV-DO Rel. 0, EV-DO Rev. A adds support for broad-
band data rates and increased capacity in the uplink as well as
support for advanced realtime services such as high perfor-
mance VolP, push-to-talk, video telephony and low-delay gaming.
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FLAGE OV DN P SWE bre Mgy mBernizae: U MWE ,
A mobile OFDMA implementation for high-speed wireless A hlghly optimized OFDMA system built from the groundup for
data, delivering broadband data rates on the downlink and mobility, and supporting advanced techniques such as MIMO,
uplinks, as well as support for realtime services such as VolP. UMB is well-suited for areas with high data traffic in which wider

bandwidths in new or vacant spectrum are available. UMB will
coexist with existing Rev. A and Rev. B network deployments.

WCDMA/LTE Moblle Broadband Evolutlon

d
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Similar to EV-DO Rel. 0, HSDPA offers broad-
band downloads and is now being deployed
warldwide. This upgrade to WCDMA Rel 99

~ provides broadband data rates and

" increased capacity in the downlink, signi-
ficantly improving end-user experience
on existing applications such as video-
on-demand, web browsing and email.

Similar to EV-DO Rev. A, HSUPA adds
support for broadband data rates and
increased capacity in the uplink as well
as support for advanced realtime
services such as high perfarmance
VolP, push-to-talk, packet video
telephony and low-delay gaming.

HSPA+ makes improvements over HSUPA
to increase system performance in
existing 5 MMz deployments. Improve-
ments inctude higher data rates and
increased capacity with advanced
techniques such as MIMQ, as well as
enhancements to system capacity for
realtime services such as VolP.

000060000G0000N0UNR0FG00000000030C005000060

0000000000000CET0R00R0NNACDORABRORD

Epasicd commerdaliion: 00

B OO0 00E0000a0000000000000000800000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000AC00000000000C00000000000000000000000080000000000000C04
!
An optimized OFDMA system designed te provide high perfarmance in a mobile environment, including advanced techniques such as
MIMO. LTE is well-suited for areas with high data traffic in which wider bandwidths in new or vacant spectrum are available. LTE will
coexist with existing HSPA and HSPA+ network depioyments
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Our solutions enable
advanced applications.

DRIVING THE D)SCOVERY AND DELIVERY TRANSFORMING MULTIMEDIA DELIVERY

OF DATA SERVICES QUALCOMM also created the MediaFLO €

Today's consumers have access to an exciting System, an end-to-end broadcasting system g

array of wireless capabilities, thanks to the for high-quality video streams, audio-only z

increasing availability of high-speed EV-DO streams, Clipcast™ media and IP datacasting Y

and HSDPA data networks. A key part of to mobile handsets. -

this success formula is the BREW sclution for %

wireless data applications and services. Based on the standardized FLO technology. S
the MediaFLO System is designed to optimize 3

Operators, handset manufacturers, media coverage and capacity while delivering the most 3

companies, application publishers and devel- compelling user experience. The MediaFLO —_—

opers—all are using BREW to offer feature-rich, solution provides the most efficient delivery

value-added products and services, ultimately of streaming news, informatian and entertain-

enriching the user experience and making wire- ment and is the foundation of the nationwide

less data meaningful for consumers. BREW mobile multicast network operated by

customers can benefit from comprehensive QUALCOMM's wholly-owned subsidiary

and targeted BREW Signature Solutions that MediaFLO USA, Inc.
enable reduced time-to-market and capital

investment for companies praviding mobile Engineered specifically for the mobile
products and services. environment, MediaFLO's technology-based
multimedia multicasting will complement
BREW customers can also benefit from wireless operators’ celluiar voice and data
several modular BREW offerings: services, delivering cantent to cellular
handsets used an their existing data-enabled
» 1ti0ne™ for rich, integrated and dynamic user 3G networks.

experiences with fast access to a variety of
services on wireless devices.
» deliveryOne™ for differentiated and tightly
integrated, operator-managed support and BREW and MediaFLO are QUALCOMM innovations that
delivery of advanced wireless data content help wireless operators differentiate their services with

premium content.

and services.
» QPoint™ location server that enables location-
based services {LBS).




Bringing a new generation of
services to the wireless user.

SOLUTIONS FOR WCDMA/HSDPA
NETWORKS

* More than 27 equipment manufacturers are
now designing or offering WCOMA devices.

» A cumulative total of more than 423 WCDMA
device models have now launched.

»We supparted the world's first large HSDPA
launch {by Cingular Wireless in the U.S.).

» QCT enables the world's first commercially
available HSDPA devices.

» Further enhancements of the roadmap will
be delivered with HSPA+ and Long-Term
Evolution (LTE).

SOLUTIONS FOR CDMA2000/EV-DO
NETWORKS

» Approximately 588 devices are now in design
or commercially launched based on EV-DO.

» Five manufacturers are now designing devices
with the first generation of QUALCOMM
Single Chip™ (Q5C™) solutions, which integrate
multiple components for slimmer, less
expensive handsets.

* We sampled the MSMB800™ chipset, the first
to support EV-DO Rev. A, and QUALCOMM's
first sampled chipset based an 65-nanometer
process technology.

* The first £V-DO Rev. A network was commer-
cialized in Gctober of 2006 with many more
planned for early 2007.

» Further enhancements of the roadmap will be
delivered with EV-DO Rev. B and Ultra Mobile
Broadband {UMB}).

Our Acquisitions and Investments Enable Additional Advancements

Z | AIRGONETWORKS || BERKANA ELATA FLARION IRIDIGM DISPLAY MEDIAFLO USA
w Advanced WIRELESS A unified TECHNOLOGIES CORPORATION A nationwide
E Wireless Local Advanced multimedia OFDMA Affordabte, low- multicast network
w | AreaNetwork semiconductor content delivery technology pawer displays and services
2 | (WLANtechnology) || technology’ platform for tomorrow's operator
- wireless devices
> Enhanced connec- | > Increased Strengthened > Greater > Anew division, > Lower cost video

tivity integrated integration, lower || content manage- expertise and QUALCOMM and multimedia
E | intoour chipsets cost and faster ment capabilities intellectual MEMS? Technology, || content delivered
w | helps drive down time-to-market via QUALCOMM's property rights focused on simultaneously to
Z | costsandincreases || for QUALCOMM deliveryOne (IPR}in OFDMA, enhanced user large audiencesin
@ | capabilities for chipset selutions offering an enabler of experiences the US.

new devices next-generation and extended

wireless services battery life

10 QUALCOMM 2006

!'Featuring complementary metal oxide semicanductor (CMOS)
radio frequency integrated circuits (RFICs)

2micro-electro-mechanical systems




3G A-LIST" WINNER: THE NAVY

QUALPHONE
IP-based
embedded client
software solutions
for mabite devices

Accelerated
delivery of multi-
media-capable,
feature-rich
wireless chipset
solutions

B

RF MICRO
DEVICES (RFMD)

BlueTooth®
connectivity
technology

> Enhancements
to our chipset
solutions help
manufacturers
decrease time-
to-market with
compelling
new devices

MAKING A DIFFERENCE IN THE U.5. NAVY:
MISSION-CRITICAL TECHNOLOGY
Whether in peacetime or time of war, the modern 1.5, Navy depends on secure
and reliable communications to fulfill its vital global mission. To modernize

communications for its unique mobile workforce, the Navy chose 3G wireless
connectivity. Now serving more than 700,000 U.S. Navy and Marine personnel,
the system represents the world's largest and most secure intranet. Notes

Admiral James Godwin, “A 3G mobile wireless connection makes our work-
force truly maobile and generates a lot of savings along the way.”

*The QUALCOMM-sponsored 3G A-List™ awards pragram honors innovative and successful
commercially deployed enterprise wireless data solutions based on 3G technology.

SNAPTRACK
Paosition location
and E911 services

> QUALCOMM's
gps0ne and
QPoint positioning
solutions have
enabled a total

of more than 200
million wireless
devices

SPIKE
TECHNOLOGIES

Advanced
{90 nanometer)
wafer technology

> Cost savings

and smaller

form factors

to make device
manufacturers
more competitive

TECHSOFT
Application
software for
wireless devices
in Asian markets

> Advanced
wireless services
in key emerging
markets

TRIGENIX

TECHNOLOGY
User interface
customization

Enhanced user
experiences via
QUALCOMM's
uiOne offering

QuaLCOMM 2000 N
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Global demand for wireless spells

opportunity for all.

MARKET TRENDS

The WCDMA market is growing around the
world. In Western Europe, net subscriber addi-
tions are moving rapidly to WCDMA and in the
June 2006 quarter, WCDMA constituted an
estimated 41 percent of the handset shipments
and 62 percent of the handset revenue.' This
was also the first quarter in which the overall
volume of estimated WCOMA handset revenue
surpassed that of GSM in Western Europe.

BREW is also gaining traction in WCDMA
markets. In the United Kingdom, 02 announced
the first launch of uiOne on their ICE phone,
which gives users the ability to download and
reconfigure the user interface. And this year
Telecom ltalia Mobile {TIM} in Italy and Zapp
Mobile in Romania were the first European
wireless operators to announce deployments
of the full BREW system.

The India market had another strong year,
thanks in part to QUALCOMM's market-
leading efforts to drive down handset costs.
CDMAZ2000 is changing this landscape by
offering revenue-generating data services in
sub-250 handsets. As evidence of our progress
on this front, CEMA devices accounted for an
estimated 53 percent of all handsets in the
sub-$50 tier. in the first half 2006°

In China, the world's largest wireless market,
seven wireless equipment manufacturers are
now QUALCOMM WCDMA chipset customers.

In India and China, users with low-end
devices are taking advantage of 3G
data services, leading to increased
operator revenues.

1Based on estimates from Strategy Analytics, Yankee Group
and QUALCOMM.

Z¥ankee Q2, 2006 India Handset Analysis report,
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TREND

Use of wireless data comes of age.

In other growing wireless markets worldwide,
were seeing favorable regulatory shifts that
could lead to growth apportunities for our
technologies on alternative frequency bands,
such as CDOMA450 in Latin America and WCDMA
in the 900-megahertz spectrum in Europe.
China's potential CDMA450 market will drama-
tically affect the CDMA450 ecosystem, There
were launches of COMA450 netwarks this
year in Latin America, Southeast Asia and
Europe. Russia is rapidly embracing this
technology and there are now 32 CDMA450
operators nationwide.

Our global development team opened an office
in Johanresburg, South Africa this year to
support our growing presence in 27 countries
across the continent. The Johannesburg office
will serve as a strategic center for QUALCOMM
operations in this important region.

MARKETS EMBRACING NEXT-GENERATION
TECHNOLOGIES

Our CDMAZ2000 partners are quickly moving
to higher-speed EV-DO solutions, which are
capable of supporting more advanced, data-
intensive applications and services. For our
WCDMA partners, HSDPA is the next step in
advanced techrology. As of November, there
were an estimated 51 EV-D0 and 25 HSDPA
commercial operators around the world.,

Cingular Wireless launched the first commer-
cial HSDPA network in late 2005, with service
extended to 115 rajor cities as of September
2006. South Korea's KTF is implementing HSDPA,
with coverage to 84 cities planned by the first
calendar quarter of 2007. And in Japan, the
country's largest wireless operator, NTT
DoCoMo, deployed HSOPA in Tokyo, with plans
to serve 70 percent of the nation by early 2007,

QUALCOMM |s Well Positioned to Meet Market Trends

HANDSET
SEGMENTATION
Specific market needs
include voice, imaging,
video, music and email,

> Our segmented technology
roadmap addresses the
breadth of market needs.

EMERGING MARKETS

A significant portion of the
next ane billian subscribers
will come from areas of the
world that are currently
underserved by wireless

We are enabling many new
low-cost devices through
innovations like our
QUALCOMM Single Chip
Solution {Q5C) and via
various supply initiatives.

DATA
Consumers and enterprises
are demanding multimedia
services in their wireless
phones and 3G-embedded
laptops.

> Our company develops and

sells the most advanced
chipsets on the market for
high-speed wireless, including
support for both EV-D0 and
HSDPA network deployments.

MIGRATION FROM 26 TO 3G
Legacy netwarks in Europe
and in emerging markets
are upgrading their systems
to increase efficiency and
improve services.

......................................................

> Our strong partnerships with
wireless operators and our
low-cost high-feature devices
are helping speed the rapid
transition to advanced
wireless networks.

14 QUALCOMM 2006
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MAKING A DIFFERENCE [N PERU: CORRBECTING A RURAL CLIRIC

A small clinic in a rural village a few hours from Machu Picchu serves the people of the
“Sacred Valley of the Incas? Volunteer U.S. doctors serve residents who would otherwise
have no access to healthcare. Harsh mountainous terrain makes traditional wireline
cannectivity unreliable, QUALCOMM donated equipment, including laptops, camera/
videa phanes, data cards and related services allowing external communications for
the first time. Now, visiting physicians at the clinic can communicate with colleagues
from all over the world in real time to help diagnose patients.

*This program is part of QUALCOMM's Wireless Reach initiative, a program aimed at empowering
underserved communities warldwide via advanced wireless connectivity.

WIRELESS REACH": PERU

An estimated one billion people will have access to more than 120
3G mobile broadband networks by the end of calendar 2006.

Source: 3G Americas, November 2006,
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MAKING A DIFFERENCE I CHINA; HCEPING LOVED ONES SAFE
To empower visually impaired children and their families, QUALCOMM and China
Unicom donated GPS-enabled 3G “Kid Tracker” handsets to the Beijing School for
| the Blind. The Kid Tracker is equipped with gpsOne® technology, which connects
[ with the QPoint servers in the Unicom network to allow parents and emergency
services to track the location of visually impaired children at all times. Should the
need arise, children can call for help with the push of one button, allowing parents
and emergency responders to locate them via a Web interface.
*This pragram is part of QUALCOMM's Wireless Reach initiative. a program aimed at empowering
i underserved communities worldwide via advanced wireless connectivity.
WIRELESS REACH": CHINA

|
|
I

More than 200 million mobile handsets worldwide
have shipped featuring QUALCOMM’s gpsQOne technology

|
‘
I
|

LQUALCOMIM's gpsOne Assisted-GPS solutian
provid'es the position-location technology behind
the ~.fa%.1 majority of the location services at more
than 50 major netwark ogerators worldwide
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EV-DO NETWORKS

InNorth America, Verizon Wireless and Sprint
are now upgrading their nationwide networks.
Verizon Wireless plans to introduce a range of
new services, including instant messaging with
multimedia content, and packet-switched all-IP
VolP. By the end of the second quarter of 2008,
10 million customers were taking advantage of
Verizon Wireless’ existing EV-00 service using
phones, PDAs and laptops with PC cards or
embedded EV-D0.

Alsoin the U.S., Sprint announced an EV-DO
Rev. A launch with plans to reach more than
200 million people nationwide, as well as an
agreement to use QUALCOMM's QChat push-
to-talk solution. QChat will help Sprint in
migrating its current iDEN users to COMA.

Redefining wireless mobility.

By calendar year-end 2006, the company
expects to offer mabile broadband data
services (using both EY-DC and EV-DO Rev. A}
in 220 major metropolitan areas.

STRONG OUTLOOK

Analysts predict that advanced 3G wireless
networks will serve 1.2 billion people by the
year 2010, accounting for 41 percent of the
global wireless subscriber base.! In the same
period of time, the percent of users who
access broadband services will increase
dramatically, with EV-DO alone counting for
more than 340 millien subscribers worldwide.

1Source: Northern Sky Research.

Data IncreaSing Wil'ElESS Operator Revenue (Data Revenue as Percent of Total Revenue Per User)

VERIZON WIRELESS (U.5.} SPRINT {U.,5))

13.0%

1 q3zo0s [ q3zo0e

Quarters noted are calendar guarters.

14.1% 14.3%r

B.O%EI 8.4%@ ‘

ER 032005 1032006 I 22005 T 022006

22.0%
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The right products, for the right market,
at the right time.

QUALCOMM CDMA TECHNOLOGIES (QCT)
QCT creates advanced wireless chipsets,
system software, development tools and
related products to drive technology advance-
ments and innovation around the world. These
technology solutions power many of the world's
handsets and wireless devices, providing
powerful features such as multimedia, position
location, data connectivity, security and
content-rich applications based on our BREW
system and lava®-based technelogies.

A YEAR OF PROGRESS AND PLANNING
There were a number of milestones this year at
QCT. These include innovations that strengthen
our technology roadmap, as well as alliances
and investments that enhance our supply
chain capabilities.

QCT continued to make progress in enabling
feature-rich, slimmer, and mare power-effi-
cient devices. We introduced our Snapdragon™
platform, which will drive innovation in elec-
tronic devices and personal computing by
delivering ubiquitous connectivity to mobile

broadband with unsurpassed mobile processing
power and battery life. We also sampled our
first-generation QSC solutions, introduced
the warld's first universal mobile TV chip, and
announced advanced chipsets that enable
global roaming between COMA2000 and G5M/
GPRS networks.

We launched a collaboration with Microsoft
that will enable device manufacturers to
develop a wider range of affordable, compelling
Windows Maobile-pawered Smartpheones. We
entered into an agreement to launch a new
company (called TechSoft) in China to focus
on the development of application software
for wireless devices, and acquired Berkana
Wiretess, a Silicon Valley-based fabless
semiconductor company.

We also shipped a record number of
CDMA2000 cell site modem (C5M) voice-
equivalent channel elements this year.
Historically, CSM shipments have beena
strong leading indicator of future demand
in data usage and quantity of handsets.

“Partnering with manufacturers and operators worldwide,
we develop systems that provide the foundation for
tomorrow’s wireless services, while delivering what the

market needs today.’

DR. SANIAY K. JHA, CHIEF OPERATING OFFICER AND GROUP PRESIDENT,

QUALCOMM CDMA TECHNOLOGIES

QuaLcomm 2006 1g [

Qe

P
E
z
=)
n
n
w
z
0
2




Solutions for a wireless world.

SOLUTIONS FOR THE MASS MARKET

This year we continued to focus on ow-cost
chips for the emerging markets, driving
volume and enabling competitive entry-level
handsets in emerging markets. Part of the
driving force behind the growth of CDMA
technology in these markets is the growing
demand for functionality that only 3G CDMA-
based handsets can offer. To meet that need,
11 wireless device manufacturers are currently
designing handsets based on our new single-
chip solution.

Helping to expand the WCDMA market, we
sampled the entry-level MSM6245™ WCDMA
and M5MB260™ HSDPA chipsets. Driving the
proliferation of mass-market WCDMA davices
and the migration from 2G to 3G, these solutions
deliver a competitive time-to-market advan-
tage to our manufacturing partners.

Meanwhile, more than 10 device manufacturers
are now designing products incorporating our

ultra-fast HSUPA chipset, and this year we
began HSUPA intercperability testing with
several major infrastructure providers.

We also demonstrated WCDMA in the 900-
megahertz spectrum band, which will help
network operators deploy advanced wireless
services using existing spectrum.

SMART TECHNOLOGIES

QCT continues to redefine mobile capabilities
by delivering industry-leading solutions.
Our Convergence Platform MSM7xxx™-series
chipsets are seeing strong traction, and
the first commercial devices are expected
next year.

Bringing mobile broadband to more users
around the world, we are building on our
technology leadership in CDMAZ000 and
WCDMA with the industry’s first EV-DO

Rev. A and HSUPA chipsets sampling this year.

More information about QUALCOMM CDMA Technologies
is available at www.3gchipsets.com.

Mobile Processing Power Is Significantly Increasing

QUALCOMM CHIPSETS HAVE EVOLVED INTO POWER-EFFICIENT DESIGNS THAT DELIVER
UNPARALLELED PROCESSING POWER

2370
MILLIONS OF INSTRUCTIONS PER SECOND (MIPS) ]
740
10 20 23 — 3
1996 1998 2000 2002 2004 2006 2008
MSM2000 M5M2300 MSM3000 Msmbgoo0 mMsmBg50 MSM7200 SNAPDRAGON
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Wireless devices are bringing volce,
data and multimedia together injone

amazing device.

REAL TIME TELEVISION

Wireless users will have live TV channels
within easy reach and in "real time, thanks
1o QUALCOMM's new nationwide MediaFLO
USA network.

SECURE IDENTIFICATION
Mext-generation devices take secure

network access to anew level with help from-

sensors able toread thumbprints and other
biometric data.

HEALTH AND FITNESS

Cardiac monitoring sensors can take
advantage of wireless devices to
automatically transmit vital signs to
the user's medical team or fitness coach.

Dual CPU on chip

VALUE
PLATFORM

!
|
\
i
|

ENHANCED LOCATION SERVICES

Enabled by QUALCOMM's g[ﬂsOne solution,
wireless users have the powler to electroni-
cally “tag" their favorite places and recelve
alerts when friends and laved ones walk or
drive nearby. ‘

DIGITAL RIGHTS WALLET 1 )
Next-generation Smartpho“nes and devices
confirm that music and video downloads are
properly licensed, grantmg”permission far
appropriate playback or viéwing.

H

MOBILE MULTIMEDIA CENTER
Increasingly advanced w1re||ess devices
incorporate ever more sopf‘lltstlcated home
electronics capabilities, lngludlng very
high-resalution photo and video cameras that
canbe projected to flat-panel televisians for
home and business vlew'mg‘

ir

QUALCOMM’s Chlpsets Support All Types of Market Needs

MULTIMEDIA
PLATFORM

ENHANCED
PLATFORM

CONVERGENCE
PLATFORM




Our licensing business fosters
healthy competition.

22 QUALCOMM 2006

QUALCOMM TECHNOLOGY LICENSING (QTL}
With a licensing program that enables third
parties to design, manufacture and sell
products based on QUALCOMM's industry-
leading wireless technology, our licensing
business model fosters a healthy and
competitive worldwide wireless marketplace.
Our inventions drive new revenue streams
for all our partners, enabling continuing
investments throughout the wireless

value chain.

While QUALCOMM has substantially grown
the number of its inventions over the years,
we make those innovations available to our
licensees without increasing the standard
royalty rate. Unlike many other companies,
we broadly license not only our essential
patents, but virtually all of our patents. As
aresult, we enable our licensed partners to
bring exciting new features and functionality
to the wireless consumer.

This modeihas served us well, first in growing
the COMAZ20C0 marketplace. Now we are
also seeing steady growth in the number of
manufacturers selling a wide range of WCDMA
devices at increasingly competitive price points.

COMPETITION IS KEY

Our strong belief in an open and free market-
place goes ta the heart of our business. We
know from experience that where competition
is allowed to flourish, prices will go dawn, and
functionality and usage will increase. From
the inception of aur company, QUALCOMM
has sought to stimulate competition by widely
licensing our technologies and promoting
innovation throughout our industry.

We have invested heavily in R&D, building one
of the most impressive intellectual property
portfolios in the industry. And through that
investment in technological advancement,

“We have earned commercial success through
innovation, technological leadership, years of hard
work, sustained R&D investment, and enabling
our licensee partners with our technology.”

MARVIN BLECKER, EXECUTIVE VICE PRESIDENT AND PRESIDENT,

QUALCOMM TECHNOLOGY LICENSING




we have enabled as many vendors as possible
to participate in the wireless marketplace.
The idea has worked. The average selling price
{ASP) for a second-generation COMA wireless
handset just 10 years ago was approximately
s800. Today. the ASP for all COMA {WCDMA
and COMAZ2000} wireless handsets is less
than $225.

QUALCOMM has the most widely
licensed intellectual property
portfolio in the wireless industry.

WHAT'S NEXT?

Qur company has achieved success and main-
tained competitiveness in part due to our
relentless focus on innovation. We believe that
our future lies in integrating different airlinks
and maximizing them for the proper application.
This includes not only CDOMA technologies, but
also complementary and emerging technologies

QUALCOMM accelerates
licensees’ time-to-market.

like OFDMA. And this year, we have invested
approximately 1.5 billion in R&D focused on
air-interface technology, chipset development
and software platform capabilities.

OUR RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT ADDS
VALUE TO THE INDUSTRY

By investing heavily in R&D and then licensing
substantial amounts of our patented innova-
tions to our partners in the industry, QUALCOMM
makes it much easier for wireless equipment
manufacturers to become competitive without
having to make large expenditures on their
own R&D programs.

The result of our business model is a very
competitive environment that helps new
manufacturers enter the market and enables
a wide array of new products and features
for consumers.

Mere information about QUALCOMM Technology Licensing
is available at www.qualcomm.com/qtl.

Qur Intellectual Property Position

CUMULATIVE U,S. PATENTS {Approximated Numbers}

5,100
4,100
1,500 I'Ei
Sep 2005 Sep 2006

B |ssued ([T Issued and Applied

CUMULATIVE FOREIGN PATENTS

7,400

25,800
Sep 2006

® Granted O Granted and Applied
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QUALCOMM INTERNET SERVICES {QIS)
QIS provides technology and services

to support and accelerate rich discovery
experiences and the delivery of high-value
content, including BREW solutions and the
QChat push-to-talk sclution.

THE PREMIER CHOICE FOR DATA SERVICES
A cornerstone of our vision for the future

of wireless, our BREW solutions create new
opportunities for our industry and make
wireless data meaningful for consumers. BREW
has been driving the discovery and delivery of
data services since 2001. And we've continued
to optimize its offerings to meet new opportu-
nities in the rapidly evolving mobile world. This
year our customers are benefiting from several
inngvative offerings, including uiOne for
dynamic user experiences; the deliveryOne
content-detivery platform; QPoint location
services software; and BREW Signature
Solutions that enable reduced time-to-market
and capital investment for companies providing
mobile products and services.

We're bringing a new generation of
high-value services to the wireless user.

IMPRESSIVE MARKET GROWTH THIS YEAR
The capabilities enabled by BREW are helping
to drive data revenues for operators around
the world, including KDDI in Japan, which
reports that as of this year, subscribers there
have downloaded a cumulative number of
more than 75 million data applications on
more than 20 million BREW devices.

Wireless data industry revenues are
expected to increase from $81 billion
to 5150 billion between 2005 and 2009!

In the U.S., Verizon Wireless achieved 36
percent growth in gaming downloads over
the last year since launching premium BREW
3D games as part of its "V CAST" service, And
the company's BREW-enabled Get It Now™
subscriber base has increased by more than
sixfold over the last 36 months.

! Source: The Yankee Group, "Mobile Content Market Will
Accelerate Technology Innovation” January 2006.




In all, there are operators in 31 countries
throughout Europe, Asia, Latin America and
North America who are now using BREW for
their wireless services.

NEW PRODUCTS, BIG OPPORTUNITIES

At this year's sold-out BREW Conference,
QIS5 unveiled the new BREW Gaming Signa-
ture Solution, a comprehensive solution that
accelerates revenue generation throughout
the value chain, enabling wireless operators
to deliver a compelling consumer gaming
experience, and publishers and developers
to create the hest games possible. TIM in ltaly
has now commercially launched the BREW
Gaming Signature Solution.

As part of a continuing effort to support our
customers, we also announced the release of
our uiOne Software Development Kit {SDK)
for develapers, content providers and graphic

Worldwide BREW Momentum

NUMBERS SHOWN COMPARE
APRIL 2005 » DECEMBER 20006

41 » bg 24 » 3

designers. The SDK allows them to create
rich, integrated and dynamic user interfaces
for mobile handsets that can be updated
over the air. Several wireless operators have
announced deployment or plans to deploy
our uiOne offering: U.S. Cellutar, Sprint and
Alltelin the US., Telecom New Zealand, TIM
and 02 in Eurape.

And as a testament to the opportunities and
revenues made possible by the BREW solution,
this June we announced that BREW publishers
and developers have earned more than 700
million from the sale of BREW applications and
services since the launch of the first BREW
operator in November 2001.

More information about QUALCOMM Internet Services
is available at www.qualcomm.com/qis.

Em—

“The demand for wireless down-
loading services is growing at an
impressive rate. And we're seeing
exciting technological advancements

BREW sclution Countries with wireless operators and countless new applications

customers offering BREW solutions

32 » 46 $350M » S700M°

BREW device Cumulative BREW
menufacturers oublisher/developer earnings SERVICES AND MEDIAFLO TECHNOLOGIES

*Cumulative a3 of April 30, 2006,

Source: www.brewtoday.com. As of Dec. 2006.

coming to market.’

MARGARET L. "PEGGY JOHNSON, EXECUTIVE VICE
PRESIDENT AND PRESIDENT, QUALCOMM INTERNET
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QUALCOMM MEDIAFLO TECHNOLOGIES

QUALCOMM is the innovator of FLO technology,

a key component of the MediaFLO System, an
end-to-end solution designed to reduce the
cost of delivering multimedia content to large
numbers of users simultaneously, Built from
the ground up specifically for the mabile
environment, MediaFLO allows consumers
to channel-surf video, audio and information
media on the same mobile handsets they use
for traditional cellular voice and data services.

MEDIAFLO USA, INC. ON TRACK FOR

2007 LAUNCH

MediaFLO USA, a wholly-owned subsidiary

of QUALCOMM, is bringing this revolutionary
service to market in the United States.
MediaFLO USA will aggregate premium content
from some of the world's best-known brands
and deliver it to mobile phones over a nation-
wide wireless multicast netwaork.

The service is designed to offer an unprece-

dented combination of full-length programming,

short-format clips and realtime information
and entertainment feeds. It is expected

to drive sales of handsets, thereby growing
licensing royalties and chip sales, helping to
diversify QUALCOMM and positioning us for
continued growth,

Coming soon...the next evolution
in wireless multimedia.

MediaFLO USA will provide its service to
consumers in partnership with content
providers, wireless operators and advertisers.
The company is on schedule for commercial
launch with Verizon Wireless in 2007. With
TV-quality video, an easy-to-navigate user
interface, familiar full-length programs and
exclusive made-for-mabile content, MediaFLO
USA brings new experiences that take media
and entertainment to new levels,

TESTS CONDUCTED IN EUROPE AND JAPAN
QUALCOMM and British Sky Broadcasting
Limited (BSkyB) joined forces to conduct

a MediaFLO technical trial in the United
Kingdom this year. Completed in December,
the successful trial underscored the inherent
benefits of MediaFLO as a powerful solution
for delivering video services to mobile
devices inthe UK.

The BSkyB technical trial is the first trial

of MediaFL0C technology in Europe. In
addition, QUALCOMM and KDDI have formed
a joint venture to explore the deployment of
MediaFLO services in Japan. The openness of
FLO, as well as its significant advantages with
respect to coverage, power consumption and
cost, set MediaFLO apart fram other
competing technologies.

More information about the MediaFLO System and MediaFLO
USA is available at www.mediaflo.com,



‘The combination of QUALCOMM's wireless leader%hip

Viewers (in millions)

and MediaFLO USA’s multicasting expertise and|
relationships with world-class content provider%
has uniquely positioned us to lead the mobile media
services market. | |§

USINESS UNITS! MEDIAFLO

GINA LOMBARDI,PRESIDENT,MED#AFLO usA ‘
i

j
' i
Worldwide subscription revenue for mobile TV bq‘loadcasting
is expected to reach more than $9 billion by 2010“.‘

WORLDWIDE MOBILE TV BROADCAST VIEWERS AND SUBSCRIPTION REVEN::UE .
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Making technology work for business.

QUALCOMM WIRELESS BUSINESS
SOLUTIONS (QwBSs)

QWBS delivers integrated wireless applications

and services to businesses arcund the world.
We enable enterprises to operate at peak
performance and improve the quality of life
for customers in their value chain.

Mobile workforce, enterprise management, risk
assessment and management, and machine-to-

machine communications are some of the key
applications being mobilized by enterprises

today. And QWBS has evolved into a full-service
enterprise services provider that helps clients

in a growing number of industries.

CORE COMPETENCIES
» Business intelligence and decision support
» Network management
»Creation and delivery of professional services
» Application development and delivery
» Strategic collaboration
» Integration platforms
»System reliability, redundancy and
high availability

“We are in the services business.
Technology is our tool to create
lasting value for our customers!

1

JOAN T. WALTMAN, PRESIDENT, QUALCOMM
WIRELESS BUSINESS SOLUTIONS

28 qualcommi 20006

» Superior customer service and support
24 hours a day, 365 days a year
»Rapid, cost-optimized development of inno-
vative platforms, applications and services
» Agile business processes

Our QWBS business provides comprehensive
wireless platforms and services, including
two-way data communications systems,
productivity-enhancing applications, wireless
advisory and managed network services and
enterprise-level consulting. Our solutions
benefit many industries, including for-hire
transportation and logistics, construction,
manufacturing, retail and healthcare.

QUALCOMM's first wireless enterprise
product—the satellite-based OmniTRACS®
mobile communications system for the
transportation and logistics markets—
was introduced in 1998 and praved to be
an innovative force in enterprise mobility.

More infarmation is available abeut QUALCOMM Wireless Business
Solutions at www.qualcomm.com/qwbs.

KEY STATS

6,000+

Customers
worldwide utilize
QWBS products
and services

733,000+

Mobile units shipped
to businesses in 40
countries on four
continents”

12.5+ MILLION

Data transactions per day processed by
the QWBS Network Operations Centers

*Cumulative through fiscal 2006




QUALCOMM GOVERNMENT
TECHNOLOGIES (QGOV)

QGOV leverages QUALCOMM's core compe-
tencies and technologies to deliver wireless
capabilities to government users. QGOV is
also dedicated to adapting and modifying
QUALCOMM's commercial products to provide
specialized capabilities for the government
that enable interoperable communications
anywhere and at any time.

With secure, unparalleled voice and data
capabilities, our technologies are a natural
fit for government applications. Key QGOV
products include a secure Type 1 encrypted
handset and a compact deployable wireless
system, enabling wireless communications and
continuity of operations for disaster relief. In
addition, QGOV also provides satellite-based
vehicle and asset tracking solutions.

CONTRIBUTING TO NATIONAL SECURITY

The need to improve military and civil defense
“Common Operating Picture” {COP) awareness is
critical to national security. Following our effort

Proudly serving U.S.

government needs.

to support first responders during last year's
hurricane season, QGOV continues to work with
federat, state and local agencies and critical
industry partners to provide COP solutions for
vehicles, assets and first responders.

SUPPORTING FIRST RESPONDERS

QGOV is committed to empowering government
entities with wireless capabilities that will
expand enterprise networks to encompass
robust, high-speed data broadband wireless
cannectivity to the mobile government worker
for greater impact on the public they serve.

DELIVERING SITUATIONAL AWARENESS
QGOV has the technology and expertise to
enable first-response teams with interoper-
ability, improved visibility for command and
contral, realtime maps displaying current
locations of team members and enhanced
dispatch effectiveness. The QUALCOMM
QGOV solution augments and extends current
capabilities of today's public safety systems.

More information about QUALCOMM Government Technalogies
is available at www.qualcomm.com/qgov.

BUSINESS UNITS: QWBS, QGOV

“We leverage wnreless technologies

"to enhance the alety of government
agencies to access, end share
lnformatlon anywhere at any time.’

KIMBER ORO. PRESIDENT. ‘\
QUALCOMM NMENT TECHNOLOGI
f I /
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We believe in relaticnships.

INVENTING THE WORLD OF TOMORROW

A company can only be as forward-thinking
as its people. QUALCOMM strives to provide
a supportive, collaborative environment that
promotes inncvation and teamwork. To support
our global mission of providing advanced wire-
less technologies everywhere, we employ

a highly diverse workforce and maintain a
worldwide netwark of offices and facilities,

Our company values are innavation, execution
and partnership, and these qualities are
nurtured through a strong commitment to
providing education and mentoring across the
organization. We believe that these principles
are central to our success and continuing
competitiveness,

MAKING A DIFFERENCE IN EVERYDAY LIFE
QUALCOMM supports a broad range of com-
munity organizations to sustain and support
abetter place for employees. family members,
friends and customers. By partnering with
these organizations, we strive to foster

a community where diverse backgrounds and
perspectives drive the vision of our future.
The following is a list of some of our partner
organizations:

» Building Engineering and Science Talent

+ Council on Competitiveness

» Leadership Cenference on Civil Rights
Education

»National Academy of Engineering

» National Action Council for Minorities
in Engineering

* National Black MBA Association

»National Consortium for Graduate Degrees
for Minorities in Engineering and Science

»National Society of Black Engineers

» National Society of Hispanic MBAs

* Society of Hispanic Professional Engineers

» Society of Women Engineers

* Urban League

“l'am very proud of QUALCOMM's effort to create a positive
working environment for employees. That effort pays off
with the employees’ dedication and innovative contributions”

DR. DANIEL L. SULLIVAN, EXECUTIVE VICE PRESIDENT, HUMAN RESOURCES
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e have been recognized Tor our |

nnovations and industry leadership.

AWARDS AND HONDRS

QUALCOMM has earned a distinguished reputation
that gees beyond our technologies. QUALCOMM is
among the members of the S&P 500 Index. FORTUNE
500" and a winner of the U.5. Department of Labor's
“Secretary of Labor's Opportunity Award”

Our open and collaborative work environment.
dedicated workforce and expertise have also earned
QUALCOMM a place among FORTUNE's list of "100
Best Companies to Work For in America” for eight
years in a row and-FORTUNE's list of "Maost Admired
Companies” (!0 magazine named QUALCOMM to its
top 100 tist for exemplifying the highest level of
operational and sirategic excellence, QUALCOMM's
selected awards and honors include:

CORPORATE SUCCESS

» Fabless Semiconducter Association's "Best
Financially Managed Company”

» Forbes Platinum Lis1"The Best Big Companies’

» BusinessWeek's "Global 1000°

» BusinessWeek's “iT 100/200"

» C10's "Top 100 Award”

» Finoncial Times “List of Most Valuablte Global
Companies”

» Forbes 500 Company

* FQRTUNE 500" Company

» FORTUNE's "America’s Most Admired Companies”

» information Week's"Top 500 Technology Companies”

Friendly Companies: 2006
» NASDAQ 100™ Company
- » 58P 500 Index

COMPANY CLIMATE
» EORTUNE's 100 Best Companies 1o Wark Far”
» BestiobsUSA.com's “Employers of Choice 500"
» Compuierworld's"100 Best Places 1o Work in
Infarmation Technolagy”
» Work-Life Coalition's “Leaders in Corporaie Work-
Life Initiatives for Wellness & Wark-Time Options’

» Fironciol Times Newspaper's “Top 10 1T Companies”

» Instilutional Investar's America’s Most Shareholder-

» SanDiego Soclety of Human Resource Management's
"Workplace Excellence Award”

CORPORATE CITIZENSHIP

» Business Ethics ﬂ%agczine's 100 Best
Corporate Citizens”

» Association of Fundraising Professionals’
"Qutstanding Phil%mthropic Corporation in San Diego”

» Son Diego Magazine’s “Philanthropic Business
of the Year Award”

» Corporate Citizen Group's .5 Corporate

Citizen Award” |

*US. Environmen{‘al Protection Agency's named
“Best Workplace For Commuiers”

» FTSE4Good \ndex‘

GLOBAL DIVERISITY AND INCLUSION

» United States Depariment of Labor's "Secretary
af Labor's Opporiunity Award"

» San Diego Busine‘ss Journal's "Multicultural
Heritage Award™

» State of California’s "Governor's 2005 Exemplary
Employer for Older Workers Award”

» Amarican Association of Retired Persons' [AARP)
"Best Employers for Warkers over 50"

» Black Collegian Magazine's “Top 100 Employers”

+ Black Engineer Magazme s "Minarity Professional
Choice— BestDwersuyProgramsm[heUnntedSta\e

» Diversity Magazine's "Company oo the Rise

» Leadership Conference on Civil Rights
"Dr. Dorothy |. He'ight Chairperson’s Award
of Special Merit” |

» National Asian Bar Assaciation's "Corporate
Citizen Award" ‘

» YWCA's “Tribute 10 Women and Industry (TWIN) Awar

TRAINING |

»“BEST" Training Organizations by the American
Society of Trainin'g and Development

» Troining Magaziné‘s “Training Top 100

» Executive Exce!!elnce Magazine's "Top Leadership

Development Program”
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Financial, Market and Other Stockholder Information

In this document, the words “we “our“ours” and “us” refer only
to QUALCOMM Incorparated and not any other persan or entity.

FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The following is certain financial information of the Company that
was ariginally filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission
{SEC) on November 2, 2006 as part of the Company’s Annual
Report on Form 10-X for the fiscal year ended September 24,
2006. The Company has not undertaken any updates or revision to
suchinformation since the date it was originally filed with the SEC.
Accordingly, you are encouraged to review such financial information
together with subsequent information filed by the Company with
the SEC. if any, and other publicly available infermation.

We operate and report using a 52-53 week fiscal year ending the
last Sunday in September. Our 52-week fiscal years consist of four
equal quarters of 13 weeks each, and our 53-week fiscal years
consist of three 13-week fiscal quarters and cne 14-week fiscal
quarter. The financial resuits for our 53-week fiscal years and our
14-weex fiscal quarters will not be exactly comparable to our
52-week fiscal years and our 13-week fiscal quarters. Each of the
fiscal years ended September 24, 2006, September 25, 2005 and
September 26, 2004 include 52 weeks.

MARKET FOR REGISTRANT’'S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF

EQUITY SECURITIES

On July 13, 2004, we announced a two-for-one stock split in the
form of a stock dividend. Stock was distributed on August 13, 2004
to stockholders of record as of July 23, 2004. All references in this
Annual Report to number of shares and per share amounts reflect
the stock split.

Market Informaticn

Gur common stock is traded on the NASDAQ Stock Market under
the symbol "QCCM The following table sets forth the range of high
and low sales prices on the NASDAQ Stock Market of the commaon
stock for the periods indicated, as reported by NASDAQ. Such
quotations represent inter-dealer prices without retail markup,
markdown or commission and may not necessarily represent
actual transactions.

High ($) Low {5)
Fiscal 2005
First quarter 4499 3771
Second quarter 4491 33.99
Third quarter 3852 3208
Fourth quarter 4492 3288
Fiscal 2006
First quarter 46.60 39.02
Second quarter 51.18 4291
Third quarter 53.01 38.77
Fourth quarter 40.92 32.76

As of October 31, 2006, there were 10,549 holders of record of our
common stock. Gn October 31, 2006, the last sale price reported
on the NASDAQ Stock Market for our common stock was $36.39
per share.
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Dividends

OnMarch 8, 2005, we announced an increase in our quarierly
dividend from $0.07 to $0.09 per share on our cammon stock.
OnMarch 7, 2008. we announced an increase in our quarterly
dividend from £0.09 to $0.12 per share on our common stock.
Cash dividends announced in fiscal 2005 and 2006 were as follows
(inmillions, except per share data):

Cumnulative
by Fiscal
Per Share Total Year
Fiscal 2005
First quarter $0.07 $115 5115
Second guarter 0.07 115 230
Third quarter 009 147 377
Fourth quarter .09 147 524
Total $0.32 $524
Fiscal 2006
First quarter 50.09 $148 s148
Second quarter 0.08 150 298
Third quarter 0.12 202 500
Feurth quarter 012 198 698

Total 50.42 s698

On October 5, 2006, we announced a cash dividend of $0.12 per
share on our common stock, payable on January 4, 2007 to stock-
holders of record as of December 7, 2006. We intend to continue
to pay guarterly dividends subject to capital availability and peri-
odic determinations that cash dividends are in the best interests
of aur stockholders. Future dividends may be affected by, among
other items, our views on potential future capital requirements,
including those relating to research and development, creation
and expansion of sales distribution channels and investments and
acquisitions, legal risks, stock repurchase programs, changes in
federal income tax law and changes to our business madel,

Stock Options

Our stock optien plans are part of abroad-based, long-term retention
program that is intended to attract and retain talented employees
and directors and align stockholder and employee interests.

Pursuant to cur 2006 Leng-Term Incentive Plan {2006 Plan), we
grant options to selected employees, directors and consultants to
purchase shares of our commen stack at a price not less than the
fair market value of the stock at the date of grant. The 2006 Plan
provides for the grant of both incentive and non-qualified stock
options as well as stock appreciation rights, restricted stock,
restricted stock units, performance units and shares and other
stock-based awards. Generally, options outstanding vest aver five
years and are exercisable for up to 10 years from the grant date.
The Board of Directors may terminate the 2006 Plan at any time.

Additional infermation regarding our stock option plans and plan
activity for fiscal 2006, 2005 and 2004 is provided in the notes

to our consolidated financial statements in this Annual Report in
“Notes to Consolidated Firancial Statements, Note 8—Employee
Benefit Plans” and in aur 2007 Proxy Statement under the heading
“Equity Compensation Plan (nformation.”




\ssuer Purchases of Equity Securities
{ssuer purchases of equity securities (in millions, except share and per share data}:

Tatal Number of Approximate Dollar
Shares Purchased Value of Shares
as Part of Publicly that May Yet Be
Total Number of Average Price Announced Plans Purchased Under the

Shares Purchased Paid Per Share!! or Programs'® Plans gr Programs®™
June 26, 2006 to July 23, 2006 5.641.028 54211 5641028 s1,098
July 24, 2006 to August 20, 2006 1,000,000 4850 1,000,000 1,050
August 21, 2006 to September 24,2006 1,000.000 49,00 1,000,000 1.001
Total 7.641,028 54384 7641028 31,001

are excludes cash paid for commissions. We repurchased 2.000.000 shares in the fourth quarter of 2006 upon the exercise of two

12 Average price paid per sh
luded from the average price paid per share. |f the premiums had been included, the average

outstanding put options. Premiums totaling $5 million were exc
price paid per share for the purchases of shares made during the fourth quarter would have been $43.23.

@ Qn November 7, 2005, we announced that we authorized the expenditure of up to 42 5 billion to repurchase shares of our commeon stock withno expiration
date. The $2.5 billion stock repurchase program replaced a $2.0 billion stock repurchase program, of which approximately $1.0 billion remained authorized

for repurchases.

2 The approximate doliar value of shares that may yet be purchased has not beenred
2,000,000 shares that may be repurchased related to put options we sold during fiscal 2006.

uced by the net cost of 589 million {net of the premiums received) of
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Selected Financial Data

Years Endedit)

Sept.24,  Sept. 25, Sept. 26, Sept. 28, Sept. 26,
(In millions, except per share data) 2006 2005 20042k 20032 200212
Statement of Operations Data;
Revenues $ 7.526 $ 5673 5 4880 $3.847 52915
Operating income 2,690 2,386 2,129 1573 8B40
Income fram continuing operations 2,470 2.143 1.725 L1029 525
Discontinued operations, net of Lax — — (5) {202} {165)
Net income S 2,470 S 2143 s 1,720 s 827 5 360

Basic earnings per common share:
Income from continuing operations 5 149 s 1.31] s 107 5 0.65 5 (.34

Discontinued operations, net of tax - - (0.01) (0.13) {0.11)
Net income 5 149 % 131 5 106 5 052 s 0.23

Diluted earnings per common share:

lncome from centinuing operations 5 144 5 126 s 103 5063 8032

Discontirued operations, net of tax - - - {0.12) {0.10)

Net income $ 144 S 126 S 103 S 051 S 0.22
Dividends per share announced S 0.420 S 0.320 S 0.190 50.085 S -
Shares used in earnings per share calculations. @

Basic 1,659 1,638 1616 1579 1.542

Diluted 1711 1,694 1675 1.6386 1619

Balance Sheet Data:

Cash. cash equivalents and marketable securities 5 9,949 $ B.681 s 7.635 85372 $3.200
Total assets 15,208 12,479 10,820 8,822 6.506
Long-term debtis 58 3 - 123 94
Total stockholders' equity 13,406 11,119 9.664 7.598 5392

" Qur fiscal year ends on the last Sunday in September. The five fiscal years ended September 24, 2006, September 25, 2005, September 26, 2004, September 28,
2003 and September 29, 2002 each included 52 weeks,

¥ During fiscal 2004, we sold the Vésper Operating Companies and the Vésper Towers and returned persanal mabile service (SMP) licenses to Anatel, the tele-
tommunications regulatory agency in Brazil. The results of operations, including gains and losses realized on the sales transactions and the SMP licenses, are
presented as discontinued operations.

BIWe effected a two-for-one stock splitin August 2004, All references to number of shares and per share amounts reflect this stack split..

¥Prior to the fourth quarter of fiscal 2004, we recorded royalty revenues from certain licensees based on our estimates of royaities during the period they were
earned. Starting in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2004, we began recognizing royalty revenues solely based on royalties reported by licensees during the quarter. The
change in the timing of recognizing royzlty revenue was made prospectively and had the initial one-time effect of reducing royalty revenues recorded in the fourth
quarter of fiscal 2004. See Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations in this Annual Report for more infarmation,

P Long-term debt for the years ended September 24, 2006 and Septernber 25, 2005 consisted of capital lease obligations. which are included in other
liabilities in the consolidated balance sheets,
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Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

In addition to historical information, the foilowing discussion
contains forward-looking statements that are subject torisks and
uncertainties. Actual results may differ substantially from those
referred to herein due to a number of factors, including but not
limited to risks described in the section entitled Risk Factors in
the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K, in the section entitled
“Safe Harbor Statement”included herein and elsewhere in this
AnnuaiReport.

OVERVIEW

Recent Highlights

Revenuas for fiscal 2006 were $7.53 billion, with net income of
$2.47 hillion. The following recent developments occurred with
respect to key elements of our business or our industry:

During fiscal 2006:
» Worldwide wireless subscribers grew by more than 24% to reach
approximately 2.5 billion.t"

» CDMA subscribers, including both 2G {cdmaOne} and 3G
{CDMA2000 1X. 1xEV-DO and WCDMA), grew to 17% of total
worldwide wireless subscribers to date.™™

» 3G subscribers {all CDMA-based} grew to approximately 402 million
worldwide through September 2006, including approximately
272 millian CDMA2000 1X subscribers, approximately 85 million
WCDMA subscribers and approximately 45 million 1xEV-DO
subscribers.tt)

» CDMA-based handset shipments totaled approximately 255 miliion
units, an increase of 40% over the 182 million units shipped in
fiscal 2005.2

» {DMA-based handset shipments grew faster than total worldwide
handsets and represent an estimated 28% of the total (316 millicn)
worldwide handset shipments, compared to 25% of the total
(726 million) shipments in fiscal 2005

» Average selling prices of COMA-based handsets were approximately
$215, same as the prior year?

» We shipped approximately 207 million Mobile Station Modem (MSM)
integrated circuits for CDMA-based phonas and data modules (all
of which were 3G, including CDMA2000 X, 1xEV-D0 and WCDMA),
an increase of 37%, compared to approximately 151 million MEM
integrated circuits in the prior fiscal year.

During the fourth quarter of fiscal 2006:

* We estimate the ratio of WCDMA reported royalties to total
reported royalties was 49%, up from 41% reparted in the year
ago quarter.

» We estimate that. in Western Europe, WCDMA handset sales repre-
sented approximately 41% of all manufacturer handset sales
during the period from April 2006 through lune 2006, up fram
14% in the year ago quarter.

Our Business and Operating Segments

We design, manufacture, have manufactured on aur behalf and
market digital wireless telecommunications products and services
based on our CDMA technology and other technologies. ‘We derive
revenue principally from sales of integrated circuit products, fram
license fees and royalties for use of our intellectual property, from
services and related hardware sales, and from software development
and licensing and related services. Operating expenses primarily
consist of cost of equipment and services, research and develop-
ment and selling, general and administrative expenses.

We conduct business primarily through four reportable segments.
These segments are: QUALCOMM CDMA Tachnologies, or QCT:
QUALCOMM Technology Licensing, or QTL; QUALCOMM Wireless
& Internet, or QW and QUALCOMM Strategic Initiatives, or Q5.

QCTis a leading developer and supplier of COMA-based integrated
circuits and system softwara for wireless voice and data commu-
nications, multimedia functions and global positioning system
products. QCT's integrated circuit products and system saftware
are used in wireless devices, particularly mebile phones, data
cards and infrastructure equipment. The integrated circuits far
wireless phones include the Mobile Station Modem [M5M), Radio
Frequency (RF) and Power Management (PM) devices. These inte-
grated circuits for wireless phones and system software perform
voice and data communication, multimedia and global positioning
functions, radio conversion between RF and baseband signats and
power management. The infrastructure equipment integrated
circuits and system software perform the core baseband COMA
madem functicnality in the wireless operator's equipment providing
wireless standards-compliant processing of voice and data signals
to and from wireless phonas. QCT's system software enables the
other phone components to interface with the integrated circuit
products and is the foundation software enabling phone manufac-
turers to develop handsets utilizing the functionality within the
integrated circuits. In addition to the key components in a wireless
system, QCT provides system reference designs and development
tools to assist in customizing wireless phones and user interfaces,
to integrate our products with compenents developed by others,

" According to Wireless Intelligence, an independent source of wireless operator data.

1Unit shipments and average selling prices are for the period from July through June based on reports provided during the fiscal year by our licensees/manufacturers.
Bl Based on reports by Strategy Analytics, a global research and consulting firm in their Globai Handset Market Share Updates.
1 Based on estimates derived from our licensee reports and estimates from the Yankee Group, a global market intelligence and advisory firmin the technaology and

telecommunications industry.
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Management's Discussion and Analysis continued

and to test interoperability with existing and planned networks.
QCT revenues comprised 58%, 58% and 64% of total consolidated
revenues in fiscal 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

QCT utilizes a fabless production business model, which means that
we do not own or operate foundries for the production of silicon
wafers from which our integrated circuits are made. Integrated
circuits are die, cut from silicon wafers, that have completed the
assembly and final test manufacturing processes. Die, cut from
silicon wafers, are the essential components of all of our inte-
grated circuits and a significant portion of the total integrated
circuit cost. We rely on independent third-party suppliers to
perform the manufacturing and assembly, and most of the testing,
of our integrated circuits. Qur suppliers are also responsible for the
procurement of most of the raw materials used in the praduction
of our integrated circuits. The majority of our integrated circuits
are purchased on a turnkey basis. in which our foundry suppliers are
responsible for delivering fully assembled and tested integrated
circuits. We also employ a two-stage manufacturing business model
in which we purchase completed die directly from semiconductar
manufacturing foundries, and directly manage and contract with
third-party manufacturers for back-end assembly and test services.
We refer to this two-stage manufacturing business model as
Integrated Fabless Manufacturing {IFM}, IBM, Taiwan Semicenductor
Manufacturing Company, Ltd. and United Microelectronics are the
primary foundry suppliers for aur family of baseband integrated
circuits, Atmel, Freescale {formerly Motorala Semiconductor) and
IBM are the primary foundry suppliers for our family of analog,
radio frequency and power management integrated circuits. Our
fabless model provides us the flexibility to select suppliers that
offer advanced process technologies to manufacture, assemble
and test our integrated circuits at a competitive price.

QTL grants licenses to use portions of our intellectual property
portfolio, which includes certain pateat rights essential to and/or
useful in the manufacture and sale of certain wireless products,
including, withaut limitation, products implementing cdmaOne,
CDMA2000, WCDMA, COMA TDD and/for OFDMA standards and
their derivatives. QTL receives revenue from license fees as well
as ongoing royalties based on worldwide sales by licensees of
products incorporating or using our intellectual property. License
fees are fixed amounts paid in one or more installments, Ongoing
royalties are generally based upon a percentage of the wholesale
selling price of licensed products, net of certain permissible
deductions (e.g. certain shipping costs, packing costs, VAT, etc.).
QTL revenues comprised 35%, 32% and 27% of total consalidated
revenues in fiscal 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively, The vast
majority of such revenues has been generated primarily through
our licensees'sales of cdmaOne, COMA 2000 and WCDMA products.

QW1 which includes QUALCOMM Wireless Business Solutions
{QWBS). QUALCOMM Internet Services {QIS) and QUALCOMM
Government Technologies (QGOV), generates revenues primarily
through mobile communication products and services, software and
software development aimed at support and delivery of wireless
applications. QWBS provides satellite- and terrestrial-based
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two-way data messaging, pasition reporting and wireless application
services to transportation companies, private fleets, construction
equipment fleets and other enterprise companies. QIS provides
BREW-based (Binary Runtime Environment for Wireless) products
that include user interface and content detivery and management
products and services for the wireless industry. QIS alsa provides
QChat and QPoint products and services. QChat enables virtually
instantaneous push-to-talk functionality on COMA-based wireless
devices while QPoint enables operators to offer E-811 and loca-
tion-based applications and services. The QGOV division provides
development, hardware and analytical expertise to United States
government agencies involving wireless communications technolo-
gies. QW revenues comprised 9%, 11% and 12% of total consoli-
datedrevenuesin fiscal 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

QSI manages the Company's strategic investment activities,
including MediaFLO USA, Inc. (MediaFLO USA), the Company's
wholly-owned wireless multimedia operator subsidiary. QS| also
makes strategic investments to promote the worldwide adoption
of COMA-based products and services. Our strategy is to invest in
CDMA-based operators, licensed device manufacturers and start-up
companies that we believe open new markets for CDMA technology,
support the design and introduction of new CDMA-based products
or possess unique capabilities or technology. Our MediaFLO USA
subsidiary expects to offer a nationwide multicasting netwark
based on our MediaFLO MDS and FLO technology. This network is
expected to be utilized as a shared resource for wireless operators
and their customers in the United States. The commercial availability
of the MediaFLO USA network and service will be determined by
our wireless operator partners, MediaFLO USA's network will use
the 700 MHz spactrum for which we hold licenses for a nationwide
footprint. Additionally. MediaFLO USA plans to procure. aggregate
and distribute content in service packages which we will make
available on a wholesale basis to our wireless operator customers
{whether they operate on COMA or GSM/WCDMA networks) in
the United States. Distribution, marketing, billing and customer
relationships are expected to remain services provided by our
wireless operator partners. As part of our strategic investment
activities, we may coensider various corperate structuring and exit
strategies at some point in the future, which may include distribu-
tion of our ownership interest in MediaFLO USA to our
stockho!ders in a spin-off transaction.

Nonreportable segments include: the QUALCOMM Wireless
Systems division, which seils products that operate on the
Globalstar low-Earth-orbit satetlite-based telecommunications
system and provides related services; the QUALCOMM MEMS
Technologies division, which is developing an iMoD display technol-
ogy based on micro-electro-mechanical system (MEMS) structure
combined with thin film optics; the QUALCOMM Flarion Technologies
division, which is developing OFDM/OFDMA technologies: and
ather product initiatives.




Looking Forward

The deployment of 3G networks (CDMA2000 and WCDMA) enables
higher voice capacity and data rates, thereby supporting more
minutes of use and data intensive applications like multimedia.
As aresult, we expect continued growth in demand for 3G products
and services around the world:

v

The deployment of COMAZ2000 networks is expected to continue.
* More than 170 operators have launched COMAZ2000 1X;®

» More than 50 operators have deployed the higher data speeds of
1xFV-DQ and several are preparing to deploy EV-DO Revision AW

v

GSM operators are expected to continue transiticning to
WCDMA networks.

» More than 122 GSM operators have migrated their networks
to WCDMA; @

» More than 65 operatars have launched commercial HSDPA
networks and manufacturers are beginning to trial the faster
uplink speeds of HSUPA ¥

-

We expect WCDMA phone prices to segment into high and low end,
with low-end prices decreasing significantly as volumes increase
and competition intensifies among WCOMA phone manufacturers
and integrated circuit suppliers, as happened with COMA2000.
We expect phone market share will change and competition will
increase as WCDMA networks grow and expand beyond lapan and
Western Evrope inta the United States and China.

v

To meet growing demand for advanced 3G phones and increased
multimedia MSM functionaiity, we intend to centinue to invest sig-
nificant resources toward the development of multimedia products,
software and services for the wireless industry. However, we
expect that a portion of our research and development initiatives
in fiscal 2007 will not reach commercialization until several years
in the future.

L

We expect demand for low-end phones to continue, and we have
invested resaurces to develop single-chip products, which inte-
grate the baseband, radio frequency and power management chips
into one package, lowering component counts and enabling faster
time-ta-market. While we are moving aggressively to address the
low-end market mare effectively with CDMA-based products, we
still face significant competition from GSM-based products at the
very low end, particularly in Brazil and India.

M According to public reports made available at www.cdg.org.

» We will continue to invest in the evolution of CDMA and a broad
range of other technologies as part of our vision to enable a range
of technologies, each optimized for specific services, including the
following products and technologies:

« The BREW applications platform, content delivery services and
user interfaces:

» The MediaFLO Media Distribution System {MDS) and FLO tech-
nology for delivery of multimedia content:

+ The DO Multicarrier Multilink eXtensions (DMMX) and HSDPA
Multicarrier Multilink eXtensions (HMMX) platforms to support
the long-term roadmaps of 1xEV-D0 and HSDPA;

* OFDM anc OFDMA-based technologies;

+ Qur iMoD display technology.

v

We will continue to devote resources ta working with and educating
all participants in the wireless value chain as to the benefits of our
business model in promating a highly competitive and inncvative
wireless market. However, we expect that certain companies may
continue to be dissatisfied with the need to pay fair royalties for
the use of our technology and not welcome the success of our
business model in enabling new, highly cost-effective competitors
to their products. We expect that such companies will continue
their attacks on our business model in various forums througheout
the world.

v

In addition, our license agreement with Nokia Corp. expires in
part on April 9, 2007. If we cannot conctude an extension or a new
license agreement beyond that time period, Nokia's rights to sell
subscriber products under most of our patents will expire, as will
our rights to sell integrated circuits under Nokia's patents. While
we continue to work with Nokia te see if we can reach an agreement,
there is no guarantee that we will be able to successfully resolve
this matter before April 9, 2007, and little progress has been made
to date. If we are unable to reach agreement. we will aggressively
pursue all our legal and business remedies and assume that Nokia
will do likewise. Nokia has stated publicly that it does not intend to
pay us for its use of our patents priar to the resolution of the dispute.
As aresult, under generally accepted accounting principles, we will
be unable torecord royalty revenue attributable to Nokia's sales
until a court awards damages or agreement is reached, potentially
resulting in & negative impact an future royalty revenues reported
by our QTL segment. ’

Further discussian of risks related to our business is presented in
the section entitled Risk Factors in the Company’s Annual Report
on Form 10-K.

2 As reported by the Global mobile Suppliers Association, an international organization of WCDMA and GSM (Global System for Mobile Communications)

suppliers in their September and October 2006 reports.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis continued

Revenue Concentrations

Revenues from customers in South Korea, Japan, China and the
United States comprised 32%., 21%, 17% and 13%, respectively,
of total consolidated revenues in fiscal 2006 as compared to 37%,
21%, 11% and 18%. respectivetly, in fiscal 2005. and 43%, 18%., 7%
and 21%, respectively, in fiscal 2004. We distinguish revenue from
external customers by geographic areas based on customer location.
Revenues from customers in China increased as a percentage of
total revenues in fiscal 2006 and in fiscal 2005, as compared to the
prior years, primarily due to the maturing of COMA-based manu-
facturers in China that are experiencing wider adoption of their
products ininternational markets for tow priced CDMAZ2000 phones
and WCDMA phones. Combined revenues from customers in South
Korea, Japan and the United States decreased as a percentage of
total revenues, from 82% in fiscal 2004 to 76% in fiscal 2005 and
66% in fiscal 2006. primarily due toincreases in the percentage
of revenues from WCDMA manufacturers in Western Europe and
increased activity by manufacturers in China.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

Our discussion and analysis of our results of operations and
liquidity and capital resources are based on our consolidated
financial statements, which have been prepared in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States. The preparation of these finantcial statements requires
us to make estimates and judgments that affect the reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses, and disclo-
sure of contingent assets and (iabilities. On an ongoing basis,
we evaluate our estimates and judgments, including those related
to revenue recognition. valuation of intangible assets and invest-
ments, share-based payments, income taxes, and litigation.
We base our estimates on historical and anticipated results and
trends and on various other assumptions that we believe are
reasonable under the circumstances, including assumpticns
as to future events. These estimates form the basis for making
judgments about the carrying values of assets and liabilities that
are nat readily apparent from other sources, By their nature,
estimates are subject to an inherent degree of uncertainty.
Actual results that differ from our estimates could have a signi-
ficant adverse effect on our operating results and financial
position. We believe that the following significant accounting
policies and assumptions may involve a higher degree of
judgment and comptexity than others.

Revenue Recognition. We derive revenue principally from sales of
integrated circuit products, from royalties and license fees for our
intellectuat property, from messaging and other services and related
hardware sales and from software development and licensing and
related services. The timing of revenue recognition and the amount
of revenue actually recognized in each case depends upon a variety
of factors. including the specific terms of each arrangement and
the nature of our deliverables and obligations. Determination of
the appropriate amount of revenue recognized involves judgments
and estimates that we believe are reasonable, but it is passible that
actuat resuits may differ from aur estimates. We record reductions
to revenue for customer incentive programs, inciuding special
pricing agreements and other volume-related rebate programs.
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Such reducticns to revenue are estimates, based on a number of

factors, including our assumpticns related to historical and pro-
jected customer sales volumes and the contractual provisions of
our customer agreements.

We license rights to use portions of our intellectual property port-
folio, which includes certain patent rights essential to and/or useful
in the manufacture and sale of certain wireless products, including,
without limitation, products implementing cdmaQne. CDMA2000,
WCDMA. CDMA TDD and/or the OFDMA standards and their
derivatives. Licensees typically pay a license fee in one or mare
installments and ongoing royalties based on their sales of products
incorporating or using our licensed intellectual property. License
fees are recognized aver the estimated period of future benefit to
the average licensee, typically five to seven years. We earnroyalties
on such ticensed CDMA products sold worldwide by our licensees
at the time that the licenseas’ sales occur. Our licensees, however,
do not report and pay royalties owed for sales in any given quarter
until after the conclusion of that quarter, and, in some instances,
althoughroyalties are reported quarterly, payment is made on a
semi-annual basis. During the periods preceding the fourth quarter
of fiscal 2004, we estimated and recorded the royalty revenues
earned for sales by certain licensees (the Estimated Licensees) in
the quarter in which such sales occurred, but oniy when reasonable
estimates of such amounts coutd be made. Not all royalties earned
were recorded based on estimates.

In the fourth quarter of fiscal 2004, we determined that, due to
escalating and changing business trends, we no longer had the
ability to reliably estimate royalty revenues from the Estimated
Licensees. These escalating and changing trends included the
commercial launches and global expansion of WCDMA networks,
changes in market share among licensees due to increased global
competition, and increased variability in the integrated circuit and
finished product inventaries of licensees. Starting in the fourth
quarter of fiscal 2004, we began recognizing royalty revenues
solely hased onroyalties reported by licensees during the quarter.
The change in the timing of recognizing rayalty revenue was made
prospectively and had the initial one-time effect of reducing royalty
revenues recorded in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2004.

Valuation of Intangible Assets ond Investments. Our business
acquisitions typically result in the recerding of goodwill and cther
intangible assets, and the recerded values of those assets may
become impaired in the future. As of September 24, 2006. our
goodwill and intangible assets, net of accumulated amartization,
were $1.2 biltion and $450 million, respectively. The determination
of the value of such intangible assets requires management to
make estimates and assumptions that affect our consolidated
financial statements. We assess potential impairments to intangible
assets when there is evidance that events or changes in circum-
stances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be
recovered. Our judgments regarding the existence of impairment
indicators and future cash flows related to intangible assets are
based on operational performance of our businesses, market con-
ditions and other factors. Although there are inherent uncertainties
in this assessment process, the estimates and assumptions we use,
including estimates of future cash flows, volumes, market penetra-
tion and discount rates, are consistent with our internal pianning.




If these estimates or their related assumpticns change in the future,
we may be required to record an impairment charge on all or a por-
tion of our goodwill and intangible assets. Furthermore, we cannot
predict the occurrence of future impairment-triggering events nor
the impact such events might have on our reportad asset values.
Future events could cause us to conclude that impairment indicators
exist and that goodwill or other intangible assets associated with
our acquired businesses are impaired. Any resulting impairment
loss could have an adverse impact on our results of operations.

We hold minority investments in publicly-traded companies whese
share prices may be highly volatile. These investments, which are
recorded at fair value with increases or decreases generally recorded
through stockholders’ equity as other comprehensive income or loss,
totaled $1.3 billion at September 24, 2006. We record impairment
charges when we believe an investment has experienced a decline
that is other than temparary. The determination that a decline is
other than temporary is subjective and influenced by many factors.
Future adverse changes in market conditions or poer operating
results of investees could result in losses or an inability to recover
the carrying value of the investments, thereby possibly requiring
impairment charges in the future. When assessing a publicly-traded
investment for an other-than-temporary decline in value, we
consider such factors as, among other things, how significant the
decline in value is as a percentage of the ariginal cost, how lang the
market value of the investment has been less than its original cost,
the perfarmance of the investee's stock price inrelation to the stock
price of its competitors within the industry, the market in general
and analyst recommendations. We also review the financial state-
ments of the investee to determine if the investee is experiencing
financial difficulties. In the event our judgments change as to other-
than-tempaorary declines in value, we may record an impairment loss,
which could have an adverse impact on our results of operations.
During fiscal 2006, 2005 and 2004, we recorded $15 million,
12 million and $12 million, respectively, in other-than-temporary
losses on our minerity investments in publicly-traded companies.

We hold minority strategic investments in private companies
whose values are difficult to determine. These investments totaled
£94 million at September 24, 2006, We record impairment charges
when we believe an investrnent has experienced a decline that is
other than temporary. The determination that a decline is other
than temporary is subjective and influenced by many factors.
Future adverse changes in market conditions or poor operating
results of investees could result in losses or an inability to recaver
the carrying value of the investments, thereby possibly requiring
impairment charges in the future. When assessing investmeants in
private companies for an other-than-temparary decline in value,
we cansider such factors as. among other things, the share price
from the investee’s latest financing round, the performance of the
investee in relation to its own operating targets and its business
plan, the investee's revenue and cost trends, the investee's liquidity
and cash position, including its cash burn rate, and market accep-
tance of the investee’s products and services. From time to time,
we may consider third-party evaluatiens, valuation reports or
advice from investment banks. We also cansider new products/
services that the investee may have forthcoming, any significant

news specific to the investee or the investee's competitors and/
or industry and the cutlook of the overall industry in which the
investee operates. In the event our judgments change as to other-
than-temporary declines in value, we may record an impairment loss,
which could have an adverse impact on our results of aperations.
During fiscal 2006 and 2005, we recorded $4 million and $1 million,
respectively, in other-than-tempaorary losses on our investments in
private companies. Such losses were not significant in fiscal 2004.

Shore-Bosed Payments. We grant options to purchase our commaon
stock to our employees and directors under our stock option plans.
Eligible employees can also purchase shares of our comman stock
at 85% of the lower of the fair market value on the first or the last
day of each six-month offering pericd under our employee stock
purchase plans. The benefits provided under these plans are share-
based payments subject to the provisions of revised Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards No. 123 {FAS 123R}, “Share-Based
Payment.’ Effective September 26, 2005, we use the fair value
method to apply the provisions of FAS 123R with a modified pro-
spective application. FAS 1 23R provides for certain changes to the
method for estimating the value of share-based compensation.
The valuation provisions of FAS 1 23R apply to new awards and to
awards that are outstanding on the effective date, which are sub-
sequently modified or cancelled. Uinder the modified prospective
application method, prior periods are not revised for comparative
purposes. Share-based compensation expense recognized under
FAS 123R far fiscal 2006 was £495 million. At September 24, 2006,
total unrecognized estimated compensation expense related te
non-vestad stock options granted prior to that date was $1.2 billion,
which is expected to be recognized over aweighted-average period
of 1.7 years, Net stock options, after forfeitures and cancellations,
granted during fiscal 2006 represented 1.9% of outstanding shares
as of the beginning of the fiscal period. Total stock options granted
during fiscal 2006 represented 2.1% of outstanding shares as of
the end of the fiscal period.

Upoh adoption of FAS 123R, we began estimating the value of
stock option awards on the date of grant using a lattice binomial
option-pricing model {binomial model). Priar to the adoption of
FAS 123R, the value of all share-based awards was estimated on
the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model
(Black-Scholes modeal} for the pro farma information required to
be disciosed under FAS 123, The determination of the fair value of
share-based payment awards on the date of grant using an option-
pricing model is affected by our stock price as weli as assumptions
regarding a number of comptex and subjective variables. These
variables include, but are not limited to, our expected stack price
volatility over the term of the awards, actual and projected
employee stock option exercise behaviors, risk-free interest
rate and expected dividends,
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If factors change and we employ different assumptions in the
application of FAS 123R in future periods, the compensation
expense that we record under FAS 123R may differ significantly
from what we have recorded in the current period. Therefare, we
believe it is impartant for investors to be aware of the high degree
of subjectivity involved when using option-pricing models to esti-
mate share-based compensation under FAS 123R. Option-pricing
maodels were developed for use in estimating the value of traded
options that have no vesting ar hedging restrictions, are fully
transferable and do not cause dilution. Because our share-based
payments have characteristics significantly different from those
of freely traded options, and because changes in the subjective
input assumptions can materially affect our estimates of fair
values, in our opinion, existing valuation models, including the
Black-5choles and lattice binomial medels, may not provide reliable
measures of the fair values of our share-hased compensation
awards. Consequently, there is a risk that our estimates af the
fair values of our share-based compensation awards on the grant
dates may bear little resemblance to the actual values realized
upon the exercise, expiratian, early termination or forfelture of
those share-based payments in the future. Certain share-based
payments, such as employee stock options, may expire worthless
or otherwise result in zero intrinsic value as compared to the fair
values originally estimated on the grant date and reported in our
consolidated financial statements. Alternatively, value may be
realized from these instruments that are significantly in excess of
the fair values criginally estimated on the grant date and reported
in our consolidated financial statements. There is not currently a
market-based mechanism or other practical applicatien to verify
the reliability and accuracy of the estimates stemming from these
valuation models, nor is there a means to compare and adjust the
estimates to actual values. Although the fair value of employee
share-based awards is determined in accordance with FAS 123R
and the Securities and Exchange Commission’s Staff Accounting
Bulletin No. 107 (SAB 107), using an option-pricing model, that
value may not be indicative of the fair value observed in a willing
buyer/willing seller market transaction.

Estimates of share-based compensation expenses are significant 1o
our consolidated financial statements, but these expenses are based
on option valuation models and will never resuit in the payment of
cash by us. For this reason, and because we do not view share-based
compensation as related to our operational performance, we exclude
estimated share-based compensation expense whan evaluating
the business performance of our operating segments.

The guidance in FAS 123R and SAB 107 is relatively new, and best
practices are not well established. The application of these principles
may be subject to further interpretation and refinement over time.
There are significant differences amang valuation models, and
there is a possibility that we will adopt different valuation models in
the future, This may resultin a lack of consistency in future periods
and materially affect the fair value estimate of share-based
payments. [t may also result in a lack of comparability with other
companies that use different models, methods and assumptions.
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Theeretical valuation models and market-based methods are
evolving and may result in lower or higher fair value estimates

for share-based compensation. The timing, readiness, adoption,
general acceptance, reliability and testing of these methods is
uncertain. Sophisticated mathematical models may require volu-
minous historical information, modeling expertise, financial
analyses, correlation analyses, integrated software and databases,
consulting fees, customization and testing for adequacy of internal
controls. Market-based methods are emerging that, if employed by
us. may ditute our earnings per share and involve significant trans-
action fees and ongoing administrative expenses. The uncertainties
and costs of these extansive valuation efforts may outweigh the
benefits to investors.

For purposes of estimating the fair value of stock options granted
during fiscal 2006 using the binomial model, we used the implied
volatility of market-traded options in our stock for the expected
volatility assumption input to the binomial model, consistent with
the guidance in FAS 123R and SAB 107. We utilized the term struc-
ture of volatility up to approximately two years, and the implied
volatility of the option with the longest time to maturity was used
for the expected volatility estimates for periods beyond two years.
The weighted-average volatility assumption was 30.7% for fiscal
2006, which if increased to 37%, would increase the weighted-
average estimated fair value of stock options granted during
fiscal 2006 by 51.66 per share, or 11%. The volatility percentage
assumed for fiscal 2006 was based on the implied volatility of
traded options, as compared to the blend of implied and historical
volatility cata used in prior years. FAS 123R includes implied vola-
tility in'its list of factors that should be considered in estimating
expected volatility. We believe implied volatility is more useful than
historical valatility in estimating expected volatility because itis
generally reflective of both histarical volatility and expectaticns
of how future volatility will differ from historical volatility.

The risk-free interest rate is based on the yield curve of U.S. Treasury
strip securities for a pericd consistent with the contractual life of
the opticn in effect at the time of grant. The weighted-average risk-
free interest rate assumption was 4.6% for fiscal 2006, which if
increased to 6.5%, would increase the weighted-average estimated
fair value of stock options granted during fiscal 2006 by $1.19 per
share, or 8%.

We do not target a specific dividend yield far our dividend pay-
ments, but we are required to assume a dividend yield as an input
to the binomial model. The dividend yield assumption is based
on our history and expectation of dividend payouts. The dividend
yield assumption was 1.0% far fiscal 2006, which if decreased to
0.4%, would increase the weighted-average estimated fair value
of stock options granted during fiscal 2006 by $0.89 per share,
or 6%. Dividends and/ar increases or decreases in dividend pay-
mentis are subject to board approval as well as to future cash
inflows and outflows resulting from operating performance,
stock repurchase programs, mergers and acquisitions, and other
sources and uses of cash. While our histerical dividend rate is
assumed to continue in the future. it may be subject to substantial
change, and investors should not depend upon this forecast as
areliable indication of future cash distributions that will be
made toiavestors.




The post-vesting forfeiture rate is estimated using historical
cption cancellation information. The weighted-average post-vesting
forfeiture rate assumption was 6.0% for fiscal 2006, which if
decreased to 1.5%, would increase the weighted-average estimated
fair value of stock options granted during fiscal 2006 by £0.68
per share, or 6%. )

The suboptimal exercise factor is estimated using historical
option exercise information. The weighted-average suboptimai
exercise factor assumption was 1.7 for fiscal 2006, which if
increased to 2.0, would increase the weighted-average estimated
fair value of stock options granted during fiscal 2006 by $1.06
per share, or 7%.

Income Taxes. Our income tax returns are based on calculations
and assumptions that are subject to examination by the Internal
Revenue Service and other tax authorities. While we believe we
have appropriate support for the positions taken on our tax returns,
we regularly assess the potential outcomes of these examinations
and any future examinations for the current or prior years in deter-
mining the adequacy of our provision for income taxes. As part of
our assessment of potential adjustments to our tax returns, wa
increase our current tax liability to the extent an adjustment waould
result in a cash tax payment or decrease our deferred tax assets
to the extent an adjustment would not resultin a cash tax payment.
We continually assess the likelihood and amount of petential
adjustments and adjust the income tax provision, the current tax
liability and deferred taxes in the period in which the facts that give
rise to a revision become known. Although we believe that the esti-
mates and assumptions supporting our assessments are reasonable,
adjustments could be materially different from those which are
reflected in historical income tax provisions and recorded assets
and liabilities.

We regularly review our deferred tax assets for recoverability and
establish a valuation allowance based on histerical taxable income,
projected future taxable income, the expected timing of the reversals
of existing temporary differences and the implementation of tax-
planning strategies. As of September 24, 2006, gross deferred tax
assets were 5914 million. If we are unable to generate sufficient
future taxable income in certain tax jurisdictions, or if there is a
material change in the actual effective tax rates or time pericd within
which the underlying temporary differences become taxable or
deductible, we could be required to increase our valuation allowance
against our deferred tax assets which could result in an increase in
our effective tax rate and an adverse impact on operating results.

As of September 24, 2006, we had gross deferred tax assets of
5267 million related ta capital loss carryforwards. We can only use
capital losses to offset capitat gains. Based upon our assessments
of projected future capital gains and losses and related tax planning
strategies, we expect that our future capital gains will not be suffi-
cient to utilize all the capital losses that we have incurred through
fiscal 2006. Therefore, we have provided a $16 million valuation
allowance for the portion of capital losses we do not expect to
utilize. Significant judgment is required to forecast the timing and

amount of future capital gains and the timing of realizaticn of cap-
ital losses. Adjustments to our valuation allowance based on changes
to our forecast of capital losses and capital gains are reflected in
the pericd the change is made.

* We consider the operating earnings of certain non-United States

subsidiaries to be indefinitely invested outside the United States
based on estimates that future domestic cash generation will be
sufficient to meet future domestic cash needs. No provision has
been made for United States federal and state, or foreign taxes
that may result from future remittances of undistributed earnings
of foreign subsidiaries. the cumulative amount of which is approxi-
mately $2.7 billion as of September 24, 2006. Should we repatriate
foreign earnings, we would have to adjust the income tax provision
in the period in which the decision to repatriate earnings of foreign
subsidiaries is made.

Beginning September 26. 2005, we recognize windfali tax benefits
associated with the exercise of stock options directly to stack-
holders’ equity only when realized. Accordingly, deferred tax assets
are not recognized for net operating loss carryforwards resulting
from windfall tax benefits occurring from September 26, 2005
onward. A windfall tax benefit occurs when the actual tax benefit
realized by us upon an employee’s disposition of a share-based
award exceeds the deferred tax asset, if any, associated with the
award that we had recorded. When assessing whether a tax benefit
relating to share-based compensation has been realized, we follow
the tax law ordering methaod, under which current year share-based
compensation deductions are assumed to be utilized before net
operating loss carryforwards and other tax attributes.

Litigation. We are currently involved in certain iegal proceedings.
Although there can be no assurance that unfavorable outcomes in
any of these matters would nat have a material adverse effect on
our operating results, liquidity or financial position, we believe the
claims are without merit and intend to vigorously defend the actions.
We estimate the range of liability related to pending litigation
where the amount and range of loss can be estimated. We record
our best estimate of a [0ss when the loss is considered probable.
Where a liability is probable and there is a range of estimated loss
with no best estimate in the range. we record the minimum estimated
liability related to the claim. As additional information becomes
available, we assess the potentiat liability related to our pending
litigation and revise our estimates. We have not recorded any accrual
for contingent liability associated with our legal proceedings based
on our belief that a liability, while possible, is not probable, Further,
any possible range of loss cannot be estimated at this time. Revisions
in our estimates of the potential liability could materiatly impact
our results of cperations.

QUALCOMM 2006 43




Management's Discussion and Analysis continved

Acquisitions

On January 18, 2006, we completed our acquisition of all of the
outstanding capital stock of Flarion Technologies, Inc. (Flarion},
a privately held developer of Orthogonal Frequency Division
Multiplexing Access [OFDMA) technology for approximately $613
mitlion in consideration, consisting of approximately $349 million
in shares of QUALCOMM stock. $229 million in cash, and the
exchange of Flarion's existing vested options and warrants with an
estimated aggregate fair value of approximately $35 million. In
addition, we assumed Flarion's existing unvested options with an
estimated aggregate fair value of 563 million, which is recarded as
share-based compensation over the requisite service period pur-
suant to FAS 123R. Upen achievement of certain agreed upon
mitestanes during the third quarter of fiscal 2008, we incurred
acditional aggregate consideration of $197 million, consisting of
approximately $185 million in cask (of which $75 million wili be
payable in July 2007), 38 million in shares of QUALCOMM stock
{of which 53 million is issuable in March 2007), and the madifica-
tion of Flarion’s existing vested options and warrants with an
estimated incremental fair value of approximately $4 million, The
additional amgunts payable in cash and shares on the milestgne
date were treated as additicnal consideration and recorded

as goodwill. In addition. the medification of Flarion's existing
unvested options resulted in an estimated incremental fair value
of 57 millien, which will be recorded as share-based compensation
over the requisite service period pursuant to FAS 123R. The acquisi-
tion of Flaricn is intendec to broaden our ability to effectively
support operators who may prefer an OFDMA or a hybrid QFQOM/
CDMA/WCDMA network alternative. The addition of Flarion’s
intellectual property and engineering resources also supplements
the resources that we have already dedicated aver the years
towards the development of OFDM/OFDMA technalogies.

Strategic Investments in Qur Q5! Segment

Our Q51 segment makes strategic investments to promate the
worldwide adoption of CDMA products and services. QS) segment
assets totaled 5660 million at September 24, 2006, compared
to 5442 million at September 25, 2005. Our MediaFLO USA
subsidiary, a wireless multimedia operator, is expected to begin
commercial operatiens in 2007. QSI's assets related to MediaFLO
USA totaled 8329 million and $98 million at September 24, 2006
and September 25, 2005, respectively. We also enter inte strategic
relationships with CDMA wireless operators and developers of
innovative technologies or products for the wireless communica-
tions industry. Due to financial and competitive challenges facing
wireless operators, we cannct assure you that cur investmants in
or loans to these operators will generate financial returns or that
they will result in increased adoption or continued use of CDMA
technologies. CDMA wireless operators to whom we have provided
funding have limited operating histories, are faced with significant
capital requirements and are highly leveraged and/or have limited
financial resources. If these CDMA wireless operators are not
successful, we may have to write down our investments in or loans
to these operators.
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Our QS segment maintains strategic investments in marketable
equity securities classified as available-for-sale. We strategically
invest in companies in the high-technology industry and typically
do not attempt to reduce or eliminate our exposure to market risks
in these investments. The fair values of these strategic investments
are subject to substantial quarterly and annual fluctuaticns and to
significant market price volatility, Our strategic investments in
specific companies and industry segments may vary over time, and
changes in concentrations may affect price volatility. Downward
fluctuations and market trends could adversely affect our operating
results. In additicn, the realizable value of these securities and
derivative instruments is subject to market and other conditions.

(5l also makes strategic investments in privately held companies.
including eariy-stage companies and venture funds. These invest-
ments are comprised of equity investments, recorded at cost or
under the equity methaod, and warrants that are recorded at fair
value or at cost. The recorded values of these investments may
be written down due te changes in the companies’ conditions or
prospects, These strategic investments are inherently risky

as the market for the technologies or products the investees are
developing may never materialize. As a result, we could lose all or

a portion of our investments in these companies, which could neg-
atively affect our financial position and operating results. Mest of
these strategic investments will not become liquid until mare than
one year from the date of investment, if 2t all. To the extent such
investments become tiquid and meet strategic and price abjectives,
we may sell the investments and recognize the realized gain {loss)
ininvestment income (expense).

We regularly monitor and evaluate the realizable value of our
investments in both marketable and private securities. If events
and circumstances indicate that a decline in the value of these assets
has occurred and is other than temporary, we will record a charge
toinvestment income {expense). In some cases, we make strategic
investments that require us to cansolidate or record Qur equity in
the losses of early-stage companies. The consolidation of these
losses can adversely affect our financial results until we exit from
orreduce our exposure to the investments.

Key developments in cur strategic investments during fiscal 2006
included our ongoing investment in our MediaFLO USA subsidiary,

a slow down in the rate of strategic investment, including our invest-
ment in Inquam, and realized gains on certain strategic investments.

Investment in Inquam Limited. We and another investor (the
Other lnvestor) own minority interests in Inquam Limited {inquam),
awireless COMA-based operator in Romania, and in Inquam’s former
subsidiaries in Portugal {the Portugal Companies). We recarded
220 million, $33 million and $59 millicn in equity in losses of
Inquam during fiscal 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively, including
a$12million loss resulting from Inquam’s restructuring during fiscal
2006. At September 24, 2006, our equity and debt investments
in Inquam and the Portugal Companies totaled $5 million, net of
equity in losses, We and the Other Investor have each guaranteed
50% of a portion of amounts awed under certain of Inquam’s lang-
term financing arrangements, up to a combined maximum of
$53 million. The guarantee expires and the facilities mature on
December 25, 2011.




Fiscal 2006 Compared to Fiscal 2005

Revenues. Total revenues for fiscal 2006 were $7.53 hillion,
compared to $5.67 billion for fiscal 2005. Revenues from three
customers of our QCT, QTL and QWI| segments comprised an
aggregate of 39% of total consolidated revenues in fiscal 2006
and 2005.

Revenues from sales of equipment and services for fiscal 2006
were $4.78 billion, compared to $3.74 billion for fiscal 2005.
Revenues from sales of integrated circuits increased $1.00 billion,
resulting primarily from anincrease of $1.34 billion related primarily
to higher unit shipments of MSM and accompanying RF integrated
circuits, partially offset by a decrease of $349 million related to
the net effects of reductions in average sales prices and changes
in product mix.

Revenues from licensing and royalty fees for fiscal 2006 were
£2 75 billion, compared to $1.93 billion for fiscal 2005. Revenues
from licensing and rayalty fees increased primarily as a result of

a %774 million increase in royalty revenue, consisting primarily of
royalties reported to QTL by our external licensees, resulting from
an increase in sates of CDMA-based products by licensees and the
impact of the expiration of one of our royalty sharing obligations.
Warldwide demand for CDMA-based products has increased pri-
marily as a result of the growth in sales of WCDMA products into
markets formerly dominated by GSM products.

Cost of Equipment and Services. Lost of equipment and services
revenues for fiscal 2006 was $2.18 billion, compared to $1.65 billion
for fiscal 2005. Cost of equipment and services revenues as a per-
centage of equipment and services revenues was 46% for fiscal
2006, compared to 44% for fiscal 2005. The decline in margin
percentage in fiscal 2006 compared to fiscal 2005 was primarily
due to the effect of 541 million in share-based compensatian
during fiscal 2006 as aresult of the adoption of FAS 1 23R during
fiscal 2006 and a decrease in QCT margin percentage resulting
primarily from an increase in product support costs. Cost of equip-
ment and services revenues as a percentage of equipment and
services revenues may fluctuate in future quarters depending on
the mix of products sold and services provided, competitive pricing,

" new praduct introduction costs and other factors.

Research ond Development Expenses. For fiscal 2006, research
and development expenses were $1.54 hillion or 20% of revenues,
campared to $1.01 billion or 18% of revenues for fiscal 2005,
Rasearch and development expenses for fiscal 2006 included
share-hased compensation of 5216 million as a result of the adop-
tion of FAS 123R during fiscal 2006 and in-process research and
development of $22 million resulting from acquisitions, both of
which caused the increaseinresearch and development expenses
as a percentage of revenues. The dollar increase in research and
development expenses also included a $272 million increase in
costs retated to the develepment of integrated circuit products
and other initiatives to suppert lower cost phenes, multimedia
applications, high-speed wireless Internet access and multimode,
multiband, multinetwerk products and technologies. including

CDMAZ000 1X, 1xEV-DO, EV-DO Revision A, EV-DO Revision B,
WCDMA (including GSM/GPRS/EDGE), HSDPA, HSUPA and OFDMA,
and the develepment of our FLO technology, MediaFLO MDS and
iMoD display products using MEMS technology. We expect that
research and development costs will increase in fiscal 2007 as we
continue our active support of CDMA-based technologies. products
and network cperations and ether product initiatives.

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses. Far fiscal 2006,
selling, general and administrative expenses were $1.12 billion or
15% of revenues, compared to $631 million or 11% of revenues for
fiscal 2005. Selling, general and administrative expenses for fiscal
2006 included share-based compensation of $238 million as a result
of the adoption of FAS 123R during fiscal 2006. The percentage
increase was primarily attributable to the share-based compensation.
The dallar increase was also attributable to a $107 million increase
in professional fees, primarily related to legal activities, a 890 mil-
lion increase in emptayee-related expenses, a 514 million increase
in selling and marketing expenses and a 514 million decrease in
ather income.

Net Investment Income. Net investment income was $466 million
for fiscat 2006, compared to $423 million for fiscal 2005. The change
was primarily comprised as follows {in millions):

Year Ended
Sept. 24, Sept. 25,
2006 2005 Change
Interest and dividend income:
as| s 6 s 4 5 2
Corporate and other segments 410 252 158
Interest expense (4) (3) (1)
Net realized gains on investments:
Qs! 30 101 (71}
Corporate 106 78 ’8
Other-than-temporary losses
on investments {24) (14) {10)
{Losses) gains on derivative
instruments (29) 33 {62)
Equity in losses of investees (29) (28) {1}
5466 5423 S 43

The increase in interest and dividend income on cash and marketable
securities held by carporate and other segments was a result of
higher average cash and marketable securities balances and higher
interest rates earned on interest-bearing securities. Net realized
gains on QS investments in fiscal 2005 resulted primarily from
a 548 million gain on gur minority investment in a wiretess publisher
and a $41 million gain on the sale ¢f cur investment in a wireless
telecommunications company. Losses and gains on derivative
instruments in fiscal 2006 and 2005, respectively, related primarily
to changes in the fair values of put opticns sold in connection with
our stock repurchase program. The change in equity in losses of
investees resulted primarily from the decrease in losses recognized
by Inquam, of which our share was 20 million and $33 million in
fiscal 2006 and 2005, respectively, partially offset by the effect
of investment gains recognized by a venture fund investee in 2005,
of which our share was $8 miltion.
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Income Tax Expense. Income tax expense from continuing operations
was 3686 million for fiscal 2006, compared to $666 million for fiscal
2003. The annual effective tax rate for continuing operations was
approximately 22% for fiscal 2006, compared to 24% for fiscal
2005. The annual effective tax rate from continuing operations
for fiscal 2006 was lower than the annual effective tax rate from
continuing operations for fiscal 2005 primarily due to anincrease in
foreign earnings taxed at less than the United States federal tax rate.

The annual effective tax rate for fiscal 2006 was 13% lower than
the United States federal statutory rate primarily due to benefits
of approximately 17% related to foreign earnings taxed at less
than the United States federal rate, 1% related to anincrease in
tax henefits resulting from our increased ability to use our capital
loss carryforwards and 1% related to research and development
tax credits, partially offset by state taxes of approximately 5% and
other permanent differences of 1%.

As of September 24, 2006, we had a valuation allowance of $16 mil-
lion on previously incurred capital losses due to uncertainty as to
our ability te generate sufficient capital gains to utilize all capital
losses. We will continue to assess the realizability of capital losses.
The amount of the valuation allowance on capital losses may be
adjustedin the future as our ability to utilize capital losses changes.
A change in the valuation allowance may impact the pravision for
incarne taxes in the peried the change occurs.

Fiscal 2005 Compared to Fiscal 2004

Revenues. Total revenues for fiscal 2005 were $5,67 billion.
compared to $4.88 billion for fiscal 2004. Revenues from three
customers of our QCT, QTL and QWI segments comprised an
aggregate of 39% of total consolidated revenues in fiscal 2005,
compared to 40% of total consolidated revenues in fisca! 2004.

Revenues from sales of equipment and services for fiscal 2005
were $3.74 biltion, compared to $3.51 billion for fiscal 2004.
Revenues from sales of integrated circuits increased 3165 million,
resulting primarily from an increase of $396 million related to
higher unit shipments of M5M and accompanying RF integrated
circuits, partially offset by a decrease of 5241 million related to the
effects of reductions in average sales prices and changes in product
mix. Revenues from the sale of satellite- and terrestrial-based
two-way data messaging systems and related messaging services
increased 25 millien and revenues from the sale of sateliite portable
phones that operate on the Globalstar low-Earth-orbit satellite
communications systemincreased $19 million.

Revenues from licensing and rayalty fees for fiscal 2005 were $1.93
billion, compared te $1.37 billion for fiscal 2004. During fiscal 2005,
the QTL segment recarded royalty revenues solely based on royal-
ties reported by licensees during the year, as compared to the
method used during the first three quarters of fiscal 2004 of
recording royalty revenues fram certain licensees based on estimates
of royalty revenues earned by those licensees during the quarter,
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The increase in royalty revenue year to year resulted primarily from
a %350 million increase inroyalties reported tous by our external
licensees and the effect of changing the timing of recognizing royalty
revenues in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2004. Royalty revenues
recorded in fiscal 2004 excluded $151 million of royalties that
were reported by external licensees in the first quarter of fiscal
2004, but estimated and recorded as revenue in the fourth quarter
of fiscal 2003. Royalties reported to us by external licensees in
fiscal 2005 were £1.64 billion, as compared to $1.29 billion in
fiscal 2004. The increase in royalties reported to us by external
licensees was primarily due to an increase in sales of COMA products
by licensees, resulting from higher worldwide demand for CDMA
products at higher average selling prices due primarily to the
growth in sales of high-end WCDMA products and shifts in the
geographic distribution of sales of CDMA products.

Cost of Equipment and Services. Cost of equipment and servicas
revenues for fiscal 2005 was $1.65 billian, compared to $1.48
billion for fiscat 2004. Cast of equipment and services revenues as
apercentage of equipment and services revenues was 44% for fiscal
2005, compared to 42% for fiscal 2004. The margin percentage
decline in fiscal 2005 compared tu fiscal 2004 was primarily due
to a 1.3% decrease in QCT margin percentage. Increases in product
support costs and the reserves for excess and obsolete inventory
contributed 1.1% and 0.5%, respactively, to the total decreasein
QCTmargin percentags.

Research ond Development Expenses. Far fiscal 2005, research
and development expenses were $1.01 biltion or 18% of revenues,
compared te 720 million or 15% of revenues for fiscal 2004.
The dellar and percentage increases in research and development
expenses primarily resulted from a $275 millicn increase in costs
related to the development of integrated circuit products and other
initiatives to support lower cost phones, multimedia applications,
high-speed wireless Internet access and multimode, multiband,
multinetwork products and technologies, including COMA2000 1X,
1xEV-DO, WCDMA, HSDPA, GSM/GPRS/EDGE and GFDMA, and
the development of our FLO technology, MediaFLO MDS and iMoD
display products using MEMS technology.

Selling, Generol and Administrative Expenses. For fiscal 2005,
selling, general and administrativa expensas were $631 million or
11% of revenues, compared to 547 million or 11% of revenues for
fiscal 2004, The dollar increase was primarily due to a $38 miliion
increase in professional fees, primarily patent administration and
outside consultants, a $33 million increase in employee-related
expenses, and a 513 million decrease in other income.




Net Investment Income. Net investment income was $423 million
for fiscal 2005, compared to $184 million for fiscal 2004. Tha change
was primarily comprised as follows (in millions):

Year Ended
Sept. 25, Sept. 26,
2005 2004 Change
Interest and dividend income:
Qs s 4 s 14 s (10}
Corporate and other segments 252 161 91
Interest expense (3) {2) (1)
Net realized gains on investments:
Qs 101 56 45
Corporate 78 32 46
Cther-than-temporary losses
oninvestments {14) {12) (2)
Gains on derivative instruments 33 7 26
Equity in losses of investees {28) {72) 44
£423 5184 5239

The increase in interest and dividend income on cash and marketable
securities held by corporate and other segments was a resul{ of
higher average cash and marketable securities balances and higher
interest rates earned on interest-bearing securities. Net realized
gains on corperate investments increased primarily as a result
of anincrease in the positive performance of marketable equity
securities as a percentage of total corporate investments in fiscal
2005, as compared to fiscal 2004. The increase in net realized
gains on strategic investments in Q5! resulted primarily from

a $48 million gain on our minority investment ina wireless publisher
and a $41 million gain on the sale of our investment in a wireless
telecommunications company. Gains on derivative instruments in
fiscal 2005 and 2004 related primarily to changes in the fair values
of put options sold in connection with our stock repurchase program.
Equity in losses of investees decreased primarily due te a decrease
in losses incurred by Inquam, of which our share was $33 million
for fiscal 2005 as compared to $59 million for fiscal 2004.

fncome Tax Expense. Income tax expense from continuing
cperations was 3666 million for fiscal 2005, compared to $588
million for fiscal 2004, The annual effective tax rate for continuing
operations was approximately 24% for fiscal 2005. compared to
25% for fiscal 2004. The annual effective tax rate from continuing
operations for fiscal 2005 was lower than the annual effective tax
rate from continuing operations for fiscal 2004 primarily due tc an
increase in foreign earnings taxed at less than the United States
federal tax rate.

The annual effective tax rate for fiscal 2005 was 11% lower than
the United States federal statutory rate primarily due to benefits
of approximately 1 0% related to foreign earnings taxed at less
than the United States federal rate, 3% related to an increase in
tax benefits resulting from cur increased ability to use our capital
joss carryforwards and 2% related to research and development
tax cradits, partially offset by state taxes of approximately 4%.

As of September 25, 2005, we had a valuation allowance of
approximately $62 million on previously incurred capital losses
due to uncertainty as to our ability to generate sufficient capital
gains to utilize all capital losses.

Our Segment Results for Fiscal 2006 Compared to Fiscal 2005
The following should be read in conjunction with the financial resuits
of fiscal 2006 and 2005 for each reporting segment. See “Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements, Note 10—5egment Information’

QCT Segment. QCT revenues for fiscal 2006 were $4.33 billion,
compared to $3.29 hillion for fiscal 2005. Equipment and services
revenues, primarily from MSM and accompanying RF integrated
circuits, were $4.20 billion for fiscal 2006, compared to $3.20 billion
for fiscal 2005. The increase in equipment and services revenue was
primarily comprised of an increase of $1.34 billion related to higher
unit shipments, partiaily offset by a decrease of 5349 million related
to the effects of reductions in average sales prices and changes in
praduct mix. Approximately 207 million MSM integrated circuits
were sold during fiscal 2006, compared to approximately 151 million
for fiscal 2005.

QCT's earnings before taxes for fiscal 2006 were $1.13 billion,
compared to $852 million for fiscal 2005. QCT's operating income
as a percentage of its revenues (operating margin percentage)
was 26% during both fiscal 2006 and 2005. The operating margin
percentage remained consistent as the gross margin percentage
decrease, resulting primarily from an increase in product support
costs, was offset by a decrease in research and development and
selling, general and administrative expenses as a percentage of
QCT revenue. .

QTL Segment. QTL revenues for fiscal 2006 were $2.63 billien,
compared te $1.84 billion for fiscal 2005. QTLs earnings before
taxes for fiscal 2006 were $2.40 billion, ccmpared to $1.66 billion
for fiscal 2005. QTL's operating margin percentage was 1% in
fiscal 2006 as compared to 90% in fiscal 2005. Tha increase in
both revenues and earnings befare taxes primarily resulted from
a $774 million increase in royalties reported to us Dy our licensees
which were $2.42 billion in fiscal 2006, compared to $1.64 billion
in fiscal 2005. The increase in royalty revenue relates to the
increase in sales of CDMA-hased products by licensees and the
impact of the expiration of one of our royalty sharing obligations.
Revenues from amortized license fees were $50 miliion in fiscal
2006, compared ta $69 million in fiscal 2005, Other revenues were
comprised of intersegment royalties.

QWI Segment. QWI revenues for fiscal 2006 were 5670 million,
compared to $644 million for fiscal 2005. Revenues increased
primarily due to a $41 million increase in Q1S revenue, partiaily
offset by a decrease in QWBS revenue of $12 million. The increase
in QIS revenue was primarily attributable to a $28 million increase
in fees related to our expanded BREW customer base and products
and a 17 million increase in QChat revenue resulting from increased
development efforts under the licensing agreement with Sprint.
The decrease in QWBS revenue was primarily attributable to a
$26 million decrease in equipment revenue, which includes a
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$19 million decrease in amortization of deferred revenues related to
histerical equipment sales, partially offset by a 514 million increase
in messaging services revenue. QWRBS shipped approximately 42,100
satellite-based systems and 39,600 terrestrial-based systems
during fiscal 2006, compared to approximately 46,800 satellite-

based systems and 62,500 terrestrial-based systems in fiscal 2005.

QWI's earnings befare taxes for fiscal 2006 were $80 million,
compared to 857 million for fiscal 2005. QW!'s operating margin
percentage was 12% in fiscal 2006, compared to 9% in fiscal
2005. The increase in QWI earnings before taxes was primarily
due to a $39million increase in QIS gross margin largely resulting
from the increase in fees related to our expanded BREW customer
base and products and QChat development efforts, partially off-
set by the effect of a 813 millien increase in QWI research and
development and selling, general and administrative expenses.
The increase in QWI's operating margin percentage was primarily
due to the increase in QIS gross margin.

Q51 Segment. J51's lasses before taxes from continuing operations
for fiscal 2006 were $133 million, compared to earnings befare
taxes from continuing operations of 510 million for fiscal 2005.
Q5SlI's losses before taxes from continuing operations included a
$55 million increase in our MediaFLO USA subsidiary's operating
expenses. During fiscal 2006, QS| recorded $30 million in realized
gains on marketable securities and other investments, compared
to 101 millien in fiscal 2005.

Our Segment Results for Fiscal 2005 Compared to Fiscal 2004

The following should be read in conjunction with the financial results
of fiscal 2005 and 2004 for each reporting segment. See “Notes to
Consolidated Firiancial Statements, Note 10—Segment Information!

QCT Segment, QCT revenues for fiscal 2005 were $3.29 billion,
compared to $3.11 billien for fiscal 2004. Equipment and services
revenues, primarily from M5M and accompanying RF integrated
circuits, were $3.20 billion for fiscal 2005, compared to $3.04 billion
for fiscal 2004. The increase in equipment and services revenue
was comprised of $396 million related to higher unit shipments,
partially offset by a decrease of $241 million related to the effects
of reductions in average sales prices and changes in product mix.
Approximately 151 million MSM integrated circuits were sold
during fiscal 2005, compared to approximately 137 million for
fiscal 2004.

QCTs earnings before taxes for fiscal 2005 were $852 million,
compared to $1.05 biliion for fiscal 2004. QCT's aperating income
as a percentage of its revenues (operating margin percentage) was
26% in fiscal 2005, compared to 34% in fiscal 2004. The decline
in operating margin percentage in fiscal 2005 as compared to fiscal
2004 was primarily the result of a 45% increase in research and
development expenses for fiscal 2005 as compared to fiscal 2004,
mainly related to increased investment in new integrated circuit
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products and technolagy research and development initiatives to
support lower cost phones, multimedia applications, high-speed
wireless Internet access and multiband, multimode, multinetwork
preducts and technologies, including CDMA2000 1X, 1xEV-DO,
WCDMA, HSDPA and GSM/GPRS/EDGE.

QTL Segment. QTL revenues for fiscal 2005 were $1.84 billion,
compared ta $1.33 billion for fiscal 2004, QTL's earnings befare
taxes for fiscal 2005 were $1.66 billion, compared to $1.20 billion
for fiscal 2004, QTL's operating margin percentage was 90% during
both fiscal 2005 and 2004. The increase in both revenues and
earnings before taxes primarily resulted from a $350 miltion
increase in royalties reported to us by our external licensees and
the effect of changing the timing of recognizing royalty revenues
in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2004. Royalty revenues recorded in
fiscal 2004 excluded $151 million of royalties that were reported
by external licensees in the first quarter of fiscal 2004, but esti-
mated and recorded as revenue in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2003.
Royalties reported to us by external licensees in fiscal 2005 were
©1.64 bitlion, compared to $1.29 billion in fiscal 2004. The increase
in royalties reported ta us by external licensees was primarily due
toanincrease in sales of COMA products by licensees, resulting
from higher worldwide demand for CDMA products at higher average
selling prices due primarily to the growth of higher priced WCDMA
sales and shifts in the geographic distribution of sales of CDMA
products. Revenues from amartized license fees were 369 miltion in
fiscal 2005, as compared to 559 million in fiscal 2004. Other revenues
were comprised of intersegmant royalties.

During the periods preceding the fourth quarter of fiscal 2004,
we estimated and recorded the royalty revenues earned for sales
by certain licensees {the Estimated Licensees)in the quarter in
which such sales occurred, but only when reasonable estimates
of such amounts could be made. Not all royalties earned were
recorded based on estimates, In the fourth quarter of fiscal 2004,
we determined that, due to escalating and changing business
trends, we no longer had the ability to reliably estimate royalty
revenues from the Estimated Licensees. These escalating and
changing trends included the commercial launches and global
expansion of WCDMA networks, changes in market share among
licensees due to increased global competition, and increased vari-
ability in the integrated circuit and finished product inventories of
licensees. Starting In the fourth quarter of fiscal 2004, we began
recognizing royalty revenues solely based on royalties reported
by licensees during the quartar. The change in the timing of
recognizing royalty revenue was made prospectively and had
the initial one-time effect of reducing royalty revenues recorded
in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2004. Accerdingly, we did not
estimate royalty revenues earned in fiscal 2005.

QW! Segment. QWi revenues for fiscal 2005 were 5644 million,
compared to 5571 million for fiscal 2004. Revenues increased
primarily due to a $37 million increase in QIS revenue and a $27
million increase in QWBS revenue. The increase in QIS revenue was
primarily attributable to a 41 millien increase in fees related to
our expanded BREW customer base and products. The increase




in QWBS revenue was primarily attributable to a $16 million
increase in equipment revenue, net of a $24 million decrease in
amortization of deferred revenues related to historical equipment
sales, and a $10 million increase in related messaging services
revenue, QWBS shipped approximately 46,800 satellite-based
systems and 62,500 terrestrial-based systems during fiscal 2005,
compared to approximately 43,400 satellite-based systems and
10,000 terrestriai-based systems in fiscal 2004,

QWI's earnings before taxes for fiscal 2005 were 557 million,
compared to $19 million for fiscal 2004. QW!'s operating margin
percentage was 9% in fiscal 2005, compared to 3% in fiscal 2004.
The increases in QW1 earnings before taxes and operating margin
percentage were primarily due to a $39 million increase in QIS
gross margin largely resulting from the increase in fees related
1o our expanded BREW customer base and products.

During fiscal 2005, QWBS completed the process of moving
high-volume, standard product manufacturing to Mexico to reduce
manufacturing costs. The low-volume, prototype and new product
manufacturing activities remain in San Diego.

Q5SI Segment. Q5!'s earnings before taxes from continuing opera-
tions for fiscal 2005 were 510 million, compared to losses before
taxes from continuing operations of $31 million for fiscal 2004.
During fiscal 2005, QS| recorded $101 million in realized gains
on marketable securities and other investments, compared to
856 million in fisca! 2004. Equity in losses of investees decreased
by 243 million primarily due to a decrease in losses incurred by
Inquam during fiscal 2005 as compared to fiscal 2004, of which
our share was $33 million for fiscal 2005 as compared to $59 million
far fiscal 2004. QSl's earnings before taxes from continuing oper-
ations also included a $42 million increase in MediaFLO USA
operating expenses.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Qur principal sources of liquidity are our existing cash, cash equiva-
lents and marketable securities. cash generated from operations
and proceeds from the issuance of commeon stock under our stack
aption and employee stack purchase plans. Cash and cash equiva-
lents and marketable securities were $9.9 billion at September 24,
2006, an increase of $1.3 billion from September 25, 2005, Qur cash
and cash equivalents and marketable securities at September 24,
2006 consisted of $3.8 killion held by foreign subsidiaries with the
remaining balance of $6.1 billion held domestically. Due to income
tax considerations, we derive liguidity for operations primarily from
investments held domestically. Cash provided by operating activities
was $3.3 billion during fiscal 2006, compared to $2.7 billion during
fiscal 2005. The increase was primarily attributable to higher net
incorne {net of non-cash share-based compensation expense) in
fiscal 2006. Net proceeds from the issuance of common stock
under our stock option and employee stock purchase plans was
$692 million during fiscal 2006, compared to $386 million during
fiscal 2005.

On November 7, 2005, we authorized the repurchase of up to
%2 5 billion of our commaon stock under a stock repurchase program
with no expiraticn date. During fiscal 2006, we repurchased and
retired 34,000,000 shares of common stock for 51.5 billion.
At September 24, 2006, approximately 0.9 billion remained
authorized for repurchases under our stock repurchase program,
net of put options outstanding. We will continue to actively
evaluate repurchases under this program.

We declared and paid dividends totaling 698 million, 524 millicn
and $307 million, or $0.42, $0.32 and $0.19 per share, during fiscal
20086, 2005 and 2004, respectively. On October 5, 2006, we
announced a cash dividend of $0.12 per share on our common
stock, payable on January 4, 2007 to stockholders of record as of
Dacember 7, 2006. We intend to continue to pay quarterly dividends
subject ta capital availakility and periodic determinations that
cash dividends are in the best interest of our stockholders.

Accounts receivable increased by 29% during fiscal 2006,
Days sales outstanding, on a consolidated basis, were 29 days
at September 24, 2006, compared to 30 days at September 25,
2005, The increase in accounts receivable was primarily due to
the increase in revenue in fiscal 2006 as compared to fiscal 2005
and the timing of cash receipts for royalty receivables. The change
in days sales outstanding is consistent with the increases in
revenue and accounts receivable.

On lanuary 18, 2006, we completed our acquisition of Flarion,
a developer of OFDMA technolagy. for approximately 5613 million
in consideration, including approximately $229 millicn in cash.
Upon achievement of certain agreed upon milestones during the
third quarter of fiscal 2006, we incurred additional aggregate
consideration of $197 mitlion, including appreximately 5185
million in cash (of whick $75 million will be payable in July 2007},

We intend to continue our strategic investment activities to promote
the worldwide adoption of CDMA preducts and the growth of COMA-
based wireless data and wireless Internet products. As part of these
investment activities, we may provide financing or other support to
facilitate the marketing and sale of CDMA equipment by authorized
suppliers. In the event additional needs for cash arise, we may
raise additional funds from a combination of sources including
potential debt and equity issuance.

We believe our current cash and cash equivalents, marketable
securities and cash generated from operations will satisfy our
expected working and other capital requirements for the foresee-
able future based on current business plans, including acquisitions,
investments in other companies and other assets to support the
growth of our business, financing and other commitments, the
payment of dividands and possible additional stock repurchases.
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Contractual Obligations/Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We have no significant contractual obligations not fuily recorded on our consolidated batance sheets or fully disclosed in the notes to our
consolidated financial statements. We have no material off-balance sheet arrangements as definad in 5-K 303(a)(4)(ii).

At September 24, 2006, our outstanding contractual obligations included {in millions):

Contractual Obligations
Payments Due by Perlod

arrangements; actual financing or funding may be in lesser amaunts.
balance sheet at September 24, 2006.

in the futura.

Fiscal Fiscal Beyond No

Fiscal 2008- 2010- Fiscal  Expiration

Total 2007 2009 2011 2011 Date

Purchase obligationst S 829 5663 s110 538 s 18 s -
Cperating leases 291 71 74 49 97 -
Cther commitments!? 42 - - - 26 16
Total commitments 1,162 734 184 87/ 141 16
Capital leasest 125 3 6 8 108 -
Other long-term liabilities* 47 - 45 - 2 —
Total recorded liabilities 172 3 51 8 110 —
Total $1,334 5737 5235 £95 $251 516

WTotal purchase obligations include $593 million in commitments to purchase integrated circuit product inventories.
@ Certain of these commitments do not have fixed funding dates. Amounts are presented based on the expiration of the commitment, but actual funding may
occur earlier or not at all as funding is subject to certain conditions. Commitments represent the maximum amounts to be financed or funded under these

B Amounts represent future minimum lease payments including interest payments. Capital lease abligations are included in other liabilities in the cansalidated

# Certein long-term liabilities reflected on our balance sheet, such as unearned revenue, are not presented In this table because they do not require cash settlement

Additional information regarding our financial commitments at September 24, 2006 is provided in the notes te our consolidated
financial statements. See “Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, Note 4—Investments in Other Entities and Note 9—Commitments and

Contingencies”

! Future Accounting Requirements

| In Juty 2006, the FASB issued FASB Interpretation No. 48 (FIN 48)
“Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes” which prescribes a
recognition threshald and measurement process far recarding in
the financial statements uncertain tax positions taken or expected
to be taken in a tax return. Additionally, FIN 48 provides guidance on
the derecognition, classification, accounting in interim periods and
disclosure requirements for uncertain tax positions. The
accounting provisions of FIN 48 will be effective for us beginning
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October 1, 2007. The cumulative effect of initially adopting FIN 48
will be recorded as an adjustment to opening retained earnings in
the year of adoption and will be presented separately. Only tex
positions that meet the more likely than not recognition threshold
at the effective date may be recognized upon adoption of FIN 48.
We are in the process of determining the effect, if any, the adop-
tion of FIN 48 will have on our consolidated financial statements.




Market Risk

QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

Interest Rate Risk

We invest our cash in a number of diversified investment and non-investment grade fixed and flcating rate securities. consisting of cash
equivaients and marketable securities. Changes in the general level of United States interest rates can affect the principal values and yields of
fixed income investments. IT interest rates in the general economy were to rise rapidly in a short period of time, our fixed income investments
could lose value. If the general economy were te weaken significantly, the credit profile of issuers of securities held in our investment portfolios
could deteriorate, and cur investments could lose value, We may implement investment strategies of different types with varying duraticn
and risk/return trade-cffs that do not perform well.

The followling tabte provides information abaut our financialinstruments that are sensitive te changes in interest rates. For our interest-
bearing securities, the table presents principal cash flows, weighted average yield at cost and contractual maturity dates. Additionally, we
have assumad that these securities are similar enough within the specified categories to aggregate these securities for presantation purposes.

Interest Rate Sensitivity
Principal Amount by Expected Maturity
Average Interest Rates

No Single Fair
{Dollars in millions) 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 Thereafter Maturity Total Value
Fixed interest-bearing securities:
Cash and cash equivalents s 482 s - s - 5 — S — s - s - s 482 s 482
Interest rate 53%
Available-for-sale securities:
Investment grade 2138 3436 $238 $39 s12 5 10 £267 53,140 $3,140
interest rate 4.1% 4.6% 5.2% 5.0% 5.2% 7.3% 4.9%
Non-investment grade s 2z s 13 s 37 530 s61 8352 s - S 495 s 495
interest rate 7.2% 5.8% 6.8% 7.7% 7.5% 8.0%
Fioating interest-bearing securifies:
Cash and cash equivalents s 999 ¢ - s - $ — s - 3 - s - s 999 s 999
Interest rate 5.3%
Available-for-sale securities:
Investment grade s 157 5116 $192 852 $ 3 s 87 $348 s 955 $ 955
interest rate 5.0% 5.3% 5.6% 5.6% 5.8% 5.8% 5.5%
Nan-investment grade s 10 s 14 $ 12 $26 $65 $258 $512 s BS7 s 897
Interest rate 6.4% 6.7% 6.6% 6.5% 7.1% 7.1% 7.2%

Equity Price Risk

We invest in a number of diversified marketable securities and
mutual fund shares subject to equity price risk. The recorded values
of marketable equity securities increased to $1.34 billion at
September 24, 2006 from $1.16 billion at September 25, 2005.
The recorded value of equity mutual fund shares increased te 1.52
billion at September 24, 2006 from $293 million at September 25,
2005, Qur diversified investments in companies and industry seg-
ments may vary over time, and changes in the concentrations of
these investments may affect the price volatility of our investments.
A 10% decrease in the market price of our marketable equity secu-
rities and equity mutual fund shares at September 24, 2006 would
cause a carresponding 10% decrease in the carrying amounts of
these securities, or $285 million.

Our strategic investments in other entities consist substantially of
investments in private early-stage companies accounted for under
the equity and cost methods. Accordingly, we believe that our
exposure to market risk from these investments is not material.
Additionally, we do not anticipate any near-term changes in the nature

of our market risk exposures or in management’s objectives and strat-
egies with respect to managing such expesures, The recorded values
of these strategic investments totaled $93 million at September 24,
2006, compared to 121 million at September 25, 2005,

In connection with our stock repurchase program, we sell put options
that may require us ta repurchase shares of cur common stock at
fixed prices. These written put options subject us to equity price
risk. At September 24, 2006, we had two outstanding put options,
enahbling holders to purchase 2,000,000 shares of our common stock
upon exercise for approximately $89 million {net of the opticn
premiums received). The put option liabilities, with a fair value of
319 million at September 24, 2006, were included in other current
liabilities. If the fair value of our common stock at September 24,
2006 decreased by 10%, the amaunt required to physically settle the
put options would exceed the fair value of the shares by $21 million,
net of the $6 million in premiums received.

Additional information regarding our strategic investments is

provided in Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations in this Annual Report.
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Market Risk continued

Foreign Exchange Risk

We manage our exposure to foreign exchange market risks, when
deemed apprapriate, through the use of derivative financial instru-
ments, consisting primarily of foreign currency forward and option
contracts. Such derivative financial instruments are viewed as
hedging or risk management toals and are not used for speculative
or trading purposes. At September 24, 2006, we had no foreign
currency forward contracts outstanding. At September 24, 2006,
the net recorded value of aur foreign currency option contracts that
hedge the foreign currency risk on royalties earned from certain
international licensees on their sales of COMA and WCDMA products
was a liability of 2 million. If our forecasted royalty revenues were
to decline by 20% and foreign exchange rates were to change
unfaverably by 20% in each of our hedged foreign currencies,
we would incur a loss of approximately $3 million resulting from
adecrease in fair value of the portion of our hedges that would
be rendered ineffactive. See “Notes to Consclidated Financial
Statements, Note 1—The Company and Its Significant Accounting
Pelicies” for a description of eur foreign currency accounting policies.
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Financial instruments hetd by consclidated subsidiaries and equity
method investees which are not denominated in the functional
currency of those entities are subject to the effects of currency
fluctuations and may affect reported earnings, As a glohal concern,
we face exposure to adverse movements in foreign currency
exchange rates. We may hedge currency exposures associated
with certain assets and liabilities denominated in nonfunctional
currencies and certain anticipated nonfunctional currency trans-
actions. As aresult, we could experience unanticipated gains or
losses on anticipated foreign currency cash flows, as well as econamic
loss with respect to the recoverability of investments. While we
may hedge certain transactions with non-United States custamers,
declines in currency values in certain regions may, if not reversed,
adversely affect future preduct sales becauses our products may
become more expensive to purchase in the countries of the
affected currencies,

Our analysis methods used to assess and mitigate risk discussed
above should not be considered projections of future risks.




Controls and Financiai Reporting

CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Conclusion Regarding the Effectiveness of Disclosure Controls
and Procedures

Under the supervision and with the participation of our management,
including our principal executive officer and principal financial
officer, we conducted an evaluation of our disclosure contrals and
precedures, as such term is defined under Rule 13a-15{e] promul-
gated under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the
Exchange Act). Based on this evaluation, our principal executive
officer and our principal financial officer concluded that our
disciosure contrals and procedures were effective as of the end
of the period covered by this Annual Report.

Management's Report on Internal Contral Over

Financial Reporting

Our management is responsible for estabtlishing and maintaining
adequate internal control over financial reporting, as such term s
defined in Exchange Act Rule 13a-15(f). Under the supervision and
with the participaticn of our management, including our principal
exacutive officer and principal financial officer, we conducted an
evaluation of the effectiveness of our internal centrol over financial
reporting based on the framework in Internal Controi—Integrated
Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations
of the Treadway Commissicn. Based on our evaluation under the
framework in Internal Control—Integrated Framework. our manage-
ment concluded that our internal control over financial reporting
was effective as of September 24, 2006.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP. the independent registered public
accounting firm that audited the consolidated financial statements
included in this Annual Report, has alsc audited management’s
assessment of our internal control aver financial reporting and the
effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of
September 24, 2006, as stated in their report which appears on
page 54.

Inherent Limitations Over Internal Controls

Our internal control over financial reporting is designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting
and the preparation of consolidated financial statements for
external purposas in accordance with generally accepted

accounting principles. Our internal contrel over financial reporting
includes those policies and procedures that:

i. pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions
of our assets;

ii. provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded
as necessary to permit preparation of consclidated financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that cur receipts and expenditures are being made
only in accordance with autharizations of our management and
directors; and

iii. provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely
detection of unauthorized acquisition, use or dispasition of our
assets that could have a material effect on the consolidated
financial statements.

Internal control over financial reporting cannot provide absolute
assurance of achieving financial reparting objectives because of
its inherent limitations, including the possibility of human error and
circumvention by collusion or overriding of controis. Accordingly,
even an effective internal contrel system may not prevent or detect
material misstatements on a timely basis. Also, projections of any
evaluation of effactiveness to future periods are subject to the
risk that controls may hecame inadequate because of changes in
conditions or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

Changes in Internal Contrel Over Financial Reporting

There have been no changes in cur internal control over financial
reporting during fiscal 2006 that have materially affected. ar are
reasanably likely to materially affect, our internal control over
financial reporting.

CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON

ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE
None.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND STOCKHOLDERS OF
QUALCOMM INCORPORATED:

We have completed integrated audits of QUALCOMM Incorporated’s
consolidated financial statements and of its internal cantrol
over financial reporting as of September 24, 2006 in accordance
with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States). Our opinions, based on our audits,

are presented below.

Consolidated Financial Statements

In our opinian, the accompanying consolidated balance sheets and
the related consclidated statements of operations, stockholders’
2quity, and cash flows present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of QUALCOMM Incarporated and its subsidiaries
(the Company) at September 24, 2006 and September 25, 2005,
and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of
the three years in the period ended September 24, 2006 in confor-
mity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America. These financial statements are the responsikility
of the Company's management. Our responsibility is to express
an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.
We conducted our audits of these statements in accordance with
the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
{United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonahle assurance about whether the financial
statements are free of material misstatement. An audit of financiat
statements includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing
the accounting principles used and significant estimates made
by management, and evaluating the averall financial statement
presentation. We believe that aur audits provide areasonable
basis for our opinion.

AsdiscussedinNote 1 to the consolidated financial statements,
the Company changed the manner in which it accounts for share-
based compensation in fiscal 2006.

internal Control Qver Financial Reporting

Also, in our opinion, management's assessment, included in
Management’s Report on Internal Cantrol Gver Financial Reporting,
that the Company maintained effective internal control over financial
reporting as of September 24, 2006 based on criteria estahlished
in Internoil Control—Integroted Framework issued by the Committee
of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSOD),
is fairly stated, in all material respects, based on those criteria,
Furthermore, in aur opinion, the Company maintained. in all mate-
rial respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as
of September 24, 2006, based on criteria established in Internal
Control—Integrated Framework issued by the COS0. The Company's
marnagement is responsible for maintaining effective internal
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control aver financial reporting and for its assessment of

the effectiveness of internal control aver financial reporting,
Our responsibility is to express opinions on management's assess-
ment and on the effectiveness of the Campany’s internal control
over financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our
audit of internal control over financial reporting in accordance with
the standards of the Public Corpany Accounting Oversight Board
(United States), Those standards require that we plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective
internat control over financial reporting was maintained in all
material respects. An audit of internal control over financia!
reporting includes obtaining an understanding of internal contral
over financial reperting, evaluating management’s assessment,
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal contral, and performing such other procedures as we con-
sider necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit
provides a reasonable basis for our opinians.

A compary's internal control over financial reporting is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability
of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements
for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. A company's internal control ever financial
reporting includes those policies and procedures that (i) pertain
to the maintenance of records that, inreasonable detail, accurately
and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets
of the company; (i) provide reasonable assurance that transacticns
are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made only in accordance with authorizations of management
and directors of the company; and (iii) pravide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisi-
tion, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a
material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial
reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projec-
tions of any evaluation of effectiveness ta future periods are
subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because
of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with
the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Sen Diegp, California
Novemnber Z, 2006



Consolidated Balance Sheets

Sept. 24,  Sept. 25,

{In millions, except per share data) 2006 2005
Assets
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents s 1,607 s 2,070
Marketable securities 4114 4,478
Accounts receivable. net 700 544
Inventories 250 177
Deferred tax assets 235 343
Other current assets 143 179
Total current assets 7,049 7791
Marketable securities 4,228 2133
Property, ptant and equipment. net 1,482 1.022
Goodwill 1,230 571
Deferred tax assets 512 444
Other assets 707 518
Total assets 515,208 212,479

Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity
Current liabilities:

Trade accounts payable s 420 s 378
Payroll and other benefits related liabilities 273 196
Unearned revenue 197 163
Other current ligbilities 532 335
Total current liabilities 1,422 1.070
Unearned revenue 141 146
Other liakilities 239 144
Total liabilities 1.802 1,360

Commitments and cantingencies (Notes 4 and 9)

Stockholders’ equity:
Preferred stock, $0.0001 par value; issuable in series; 8 shares authorized;
none outstanding at September 24, 2006 and September 25, 2005 - -
Common stock, $0.0001 par value; 6,000 shares authorized; 1,652 and 1,640 shares
issued and outstanding at September 24. 2006 and September 25, 2005 - -

Paid-in capital 7.242 6,753
Retained earmings 6,100 4,328
Accumulated other comprehensive income 64 - 38
Total stockholders’ equity 13,406 11,119
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity $15,208 $12,479

See accompanying notes.
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Consolidated Statements of Operations

Year Ended
Sept. 24, Sept. 25, Sept. 26,
(In millions, except per share data) 2006 2005 2004
Revenues:
Equipment and services 54,776 53,744 $3,514
Licensing and royalty fees 2750 1,929 1,366
Total revenues 7.526 5673 4.880
Operating expenses:
Cost of equipment and services revenues 2,182 1,645 1.484
Research and development 1,538 1.011 720
Selling. general and administrative 1,116 631 547
Total operating expenses 4836 3,287 2751
Operating income 2,690 2,386 2,129
Investment income, net (Note 5) 466 423 184
Income from cantinuing operations befere income taxes 3,156 2,809 2313
Income tax expense (686) (666) {588)
Income from continuing operations 2,470 2,143 1,725
Discontinuad operations (Note 12):
Loss from discontinued aperations before income taxes - - (1)
Income tax henefit - - 5
Loss from discontinued operations - - {5)
Net income 52,470 52,143 51,720
Basic earnings per comman share from continuing operations ¢ 1,49 3 131 5 1.07
Basic loss per cammon share from discontinued operations - - (0.01)
Basic earnings per common share s 1.48 s 131 5 1.06
Diluted earnings per comman share from continuing operations s 1.44 s 126 s 1.03
Diluted loss per common share from discontinued operations - - —
Diluted earnings per common share S 1.44 5 1.26 s 1.03
Shares used in per share ¢alculations:
Basic 1,658 1,638 1616
Diluted 1711 1,694 1,675
Dividends per share announced S 0.42 s 032 ¢ 0.19

See accompanying notes.
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Year Ended
Sept. 26,
Sept. 24, Sept. 25, 2004
{ln millions) 2006 2005 (revised)
Operating Activities:
Net income $ 2470 s 2143 51,720
Adjustments to reconciie nat income ta net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 272 200 171
Net realized gains on marketable securities and other investments (138) {179) (88)
Share-based compensation expense 495 - -
Incrementa! tax benefits from stock options exercised (403) - -
Losses {gains) on derivative instruments 29 (33) (7
Other-than-temporary losses on marketable securities and ather investments 24 14 12
Equity in losses of investees 29 28 72
Non-cash income tax expense 514 498 419
Gain on disposal of discontinued operations {Note 12) - - (7
Qther items, net (28) - 23
Changes in assets and liabilities, net of effects of acquisitions (Note 11}
Accounts recelvable, net {133) 35 (96)
lowventories (71) (23} (48)
Other assets 15 (74} 56
Trade accounts payable 51 57 154
Payroll, benefits and other liabilities 96 49 146
Unearned revenue 29 (29} {58}
Net cash provided by cperating activities 3,253 2,686 2,469
Investing Activities:
Capital expenditures (685} (576) (333)
Purchases of available-for-sale securities (12.517) (8.055) (8.372)
Proceeds from sale of available-for-sale securities 10,853 8,072 5.026
Purchases of held-to-maturity securities - - (184)
Maturities of held-to-maturity securities 130 10 401
Coltection of finance receivables - 2 196
Cash paid in cannection with sale of Vésper Operating Companies (Note 12) - - {48)
Proceeds from sale of the Vésper Towers {Note 12) - - 45
Other investments and acquisitions, net of cash acquired (407} {249) (70)
Other items, net 3 20 12
Net cash used by investing activities (2,623} {776) {3,327)
Financing Activities:
Proceeds from issuance of comman stock 692 386 330
Incremental tax benefits from stock optians exercised 403 - -
Repurchase and retirement of comman stack {1.500) (953) -
Proceeds from put options 11 37 5
Dividends paid {698) (524) (308}
Net cash {used) provided by financing activities {1.092) (1.054) 27
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash (1) - -
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents {463) 856 (831)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 2.070 1,214 2,045
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year s 1,607 5 2,070 51214

See accompanying notes.
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Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity

Accumulated
Other
Comprehensive Total
Common Stock Paid-In Retained Income  Stockholders’
{tn millions) Shares Capital Earnings {Loss) Equity
Balance at September 28, 2003 1,597 56,325 51,297 3 (24) $ 7,598
Components of comprehensive income:
Met income - - 1,720 — 1,720
Fereign currency translation - - - 56 56
Unrealizad net gains on securities, net of income taxes of $20 - - — 29 29
Reclassification adjustment for net realized gains on securities
included in net income, net of income taxes of $35 - — — (53} {53)
Other - - - 7 7
Total comprehensive income 1,759
Exercise of stock options 36 284 - - 284
Tax benefit from exercise of stock options - 285 - - 285
Issuance for Employee Stock Purchase and Executive Retirement Plans 2 46 - - 46
Dividends - - {308) - {308)
Balance at September 26, 2004 1,635 6,940 2.709 15 9,664
Components of comprehensive income:
Net income - - .2.143 - 2143
Unrealized net gains on securities and derivative instruments,
net of income taxes of 384 - - - 119 115
Reclassification adjustment for net realized gains on securities
and derivative instruments included in net income,
net of income taxes of $73 - - - {109) {109)
Cther 13 13
Tetal comprehensive income 2,166
Exercise of stock optians 30 348 - - 348
Tax benefit from exercise of stock options — 346 - - 346
Issuance for Employee Stack Purchase and Executive Retirement Plans 2 56 - - 56
Repurchase and retirement of common stock {27} {953] - - (953)
Dividends - - (524) - {524}
Value of options exchanged for acquisitions - 18 - - 19
Deferred stock-based compensation from acquisitions — {3 — - (3}
Balance at September 25, 2005 1.640 6,753 4,328 38 11,118
Compoenents of comprehensive income:
Net income - - 2,470 - 2470
Unrealized net gains on securities and derivative instruments,
net of income taxes of 565 - - - 104 104
Reclassification adjustment for net realized gains on securities
and derivative instruments included in net income,
nat of income taxes of $56 - - - (89) (89)
Other - - - 11 11
Total comprehensive income 2,496
Exercise of stock options 36 608 - - 608
Tax benefit from exercise of stock options - 394 - - 394
Issuance for Employee Stock Purchase and Executive Retirement Plans 2 71 — - 71
Share-based compensation - 496 - - 496
Repurchase and retirement of common stock (24) (1,473 - - (1.473}
Dividends - - {698) - {698)
Value of commen stack issued for acguisition 8 353 - - 353
Value of cptions exchanged for acquisitions - 40 - - 40
Balance at September 24, 2006 1,652 S 7,242 56,100 S 64 $13,406

See accompanying notes.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

NOTE 1. THE COMPANY AND ITS SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Campany .
QUALCOMM Incorporated (the Company or QUALCOMM),

a Delaware corporation, develops, designs, manufactures and
markets digital wireless telecommunications products and services.
The Company is a leading developer and supplier of Code Division
Multiple Access {CDMA)-based integrated circuits and system
software for wireless voice and data communications, multimedia
functions and global positioning system products to wireless device
and infrastructure manufacturers. The Company also manufactures
and sells products based upon Orthogonal Frequency Divisian
Multiplexing Access {OFDMA) technology, e.g. FLASH-OFDM. The
Company grants licenses te use partions of its intellectual property
portfolio, which includes certain patent rights essential to and/or
usefulin the manufacture and sale of certain wireless products,
and receives license fees as well as ongeing royalties based an
sales by licensees of wireless telecommunications equipment
products incorporating its patented technologies. Currently, the
vast majority of the Company’s license fees and royalty revenue
is comprised of fees and royaities from companies selling wireless
products incorporating the Company’s CDMA technologies, but the
Company has also licensed its patented OFDMA technology. The
Company provides satellite- and terrestrial-based two-way data
messaging and position reporting services for transpartation
companies, private fleats, construction equipment fleets and
ather enterprise companies. The Campany provides the BREW
{Binary Runtime Environment for Wireless) preduct and services
to wireless network operators, handset manufacturers and appli-
cation developers and support for developing and delivering
over-the-air wireless applications and services. The Company
also makes strategic investments to promote the worldwide
adoption of CDMA praducts and services for wireless voice and
Internet data communications. :

Principles of Consolidation

The Company's consalidated financial statements include the
assets, liabilities and operating results of majarity-owned subsid-
iaries. The ownership of the other interest holders of consolidated
subsidiaries is reflected as minority interest and is not significant.
All significant intercompany accounts and transactions have been
eliminated. Certain of the Company's foreign subsidiaries are
included in the consolidated financial statements one month in
arrears to facilitate the timely inclusion of such entities in the
Company’s consotidated financial statements. The Company does
not have any investments in entities it believes are variable inter-
est entities for which the Company is the primary beneficiary.

The Company deconsolidated the Vésper Operating Companies and
the Vésper Towers during fiscal 2004 as a result of their sale (Note 12).
Results of operations related to the Vésper Cperating Companies
and the Vésper Towers are presented as discontinued operations.

Financial Statement Preparation

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts and the disclosure of contingent
amounts in the Company’s consolidated financial statements and
the accompanying notes. Actual results could differ from those
estimates. The Company's cansolidated statement of cash flows for
flscal 2004 has been revised to combine cash flows from discon-
tinued operations with cash flows from continuing operations. Cash
flows from discontinued operations were previously aggregated
and reported in a separate line item in the statement of cash flows.
Certain othar prior year amounts have been reclassified to conform
to the current year presentation.

Fiscal Year

The Company operates and reports using a 52-53 week fiscal year
ending on the last Sunday in September. The fiscal years ended
September 24, 2008, September 25, 2005 and September 26,
2004 each included 52 weeks.

Revenue Recognition

The Company derives revenue principally from sales of integrated
circuit products, from royalties for its intellectual property, from
messaging and other services and related hardware sales, from
software development and licensing and related services, and from
license fees for inteilectual property. The timing of revenue recog-
nition and the amount of revenue actually recognized in each case
depends upon a variety of factors, including the specific terms of
each arrangement and the nature of the Cempany’s deliverables and
obligations. The development stage cf the Company’s customers’
products does not affect the timing or amount of revenue recognized.

The Company licenses rights to use portions of its intellectual
property portfolio, which includes certain patent rights essential
to and/or useful in the manufacture and sale of certain wireless
products, including, without limitation, products implementing
cdmaQOne, COMA20C0, Wideband CDMA {WCDMA), CDMA Time
Division Duplex (TDD) and/ar OFDMA standards and their
derivatives. Licensees typically pay a license fee in one or more
installments and ongoing royalties based on their sales of prad-
ucts incarperating or using the Company's licensed intellectual
property. License fees are recognized over the estimated period
of future benefit to the average licensee, typically five to seven
years. The Company earns royalties on such licensed COMA prod-
ucts sold worldwide by its licensees at the time that the iicensees’
sales occur. The Company’s licensees, however, do not report and
pay royalties owed for sales in any given quarter until after the
conclusicn of that quarter, and, in some instances, although royal-
ties are reported quarteriy, payment is on a semi-annual basis.
During the periods preceding the fourth quarter of fiscal 2004, the
Company estimated and recorded the rayalty revenues earned for
sales by certain licensees (the Estimated Licensees) in the quarter in
which such sales occurred, but only when reasonable estimates of
such amounts could be made, Not all royalties earned ware estimated.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements continued

Starting in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2004, the Company deter-
mined that, due to escalating and changing business trends, the
Company no longer had the ability to reliably estimate royalty
revenues frem the Estimated Licensees. These escalating and
changing trends included the commercial launches and global
expansicn of WCDMA networks, changes in market share among
licensees due to increased global competition, and increased vari-
ability in the integrated circuit and finished product inventories of
licensees. Starting in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2004, the Company
began recognizing royalty revenues for a quarter solely based on
royalties reported by licensees during such quarter. The change in
the timing of recognizing royalty revenue was made prospectively
and had the initial one-time effect of reducing royalty revenues
recorded in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2004.

Revenues from sales of the Company’s CDMA-based integrated
circuits are recognized at the time of shipment, or when title and
risk of loss pass to the customer and other criteria for revenue
recognition are met, if later. Revenues from providing services
are racorded when earned.

The Company recognizes revenues allccated to certain satellite-
and terrestrial-based two-way data messaging and position
reperting hardware using the residual methad. Revenues from
such sales are recorded at the time of shipment, or when title and
risk of loss pass to tha customer and other criteria for revenue
recognition are met.

Revenues from tong-term contracts are generally recognized using
the percentage-of-completion method of accounting, based on costs
incurred compared with total estimated costs. The percentage-of-
completion method relies on estimates of total contract revenue and
costs. Revenue and profit are subject to revisions as the contract
progresses to completian. Revisions in profit estimates are charged
or credited to income in the period in which the facts that giverise
to the revision become known. If actual contract costs are greater
than expected, reduction of contract profit would be required.
Billings on uncompleted contracts in excess of incurred cost and
accrued profit are classified as unearned revenue in the Company's
consolidated balance sheets. Estimated contract losses are recog-
nized when determined. If substantive uncertainty related to
customer acceptance exists or the contract’s duration is relatively
short, the Company uses the completed-contract method.

The Company provides both perpetual and renawable time-based
software licenses. Revenues from software license fees are
recognized when all of the following criteria are met: the written
agreement is executed; the software is delivered; the license fee is
fixed and determinable; collectibility of the license fee is probable;
and if applicable, when vendor-specific abjective evidence exists
to allocate the total license fee to elements of multiple-element
arrangements, including post-contract customer support. When
contracts contain multiple elements wherein vendor-specific
abjective evidence of fair value exists for all undelivered elements,
the Company recognizes revenua for the delivered elements and
defers revenue for the fair value of the undelivered elements until

6o qQuALCcomm 200H

the remaining obligations have been satisfied. If vendor-specific
objective evidence of fair value does not exist for all undelivered
elements, revenue for the delivered and undelivered elements is
deferred until remaining obligations have been satisfied, or if the
only undelivered element is post-contract customer support and
vendor-specific objective evidence of the fair value of post-contract
customer support dees not exist, revenue from the entire arrange-
ment is recognized ratably cver the support pericd. Judgments and
estimates are made in cannection with the recognition of software
license revenue, which may include assessments of collectibility, the
fair value of deliverable elements and the implied support period.
The amount or timing of the Company's software license revenue
may differ as a result of changes in these judgments or estimates.

The Company records reductions to revenue for customer incentive
programs, including special pricing agreements and other volume-
related rebate pregrams. Such reductions to revenue are estimates,
which are based on a number of factors, including the Company's
assumptions related to historical and projected customer sales
volumes and the contractual provisions of the customer agreements.

Unearned revenue consists primarily of fees related to software
products, license fees for intetlectual property and hardware
products sales with continuing performance obtigaticns.

Concentrations

A significant portion of the Company’s revenues is concentrated
with a limited number of custemers as the worldwide market for
wireless telecommunications products is dominated by a small
number of large corporations. Revenues from three customers
of the Company's QCT, QTL and QWI segments, each comprised
an aggregate of 13% of total consolidated revenues in fiscal
2006, compared to 15%, 13% and 11% respectively of total
consolidated revenues in fiscal 2005 and 15%, 15% and 10%
respectively of total consolidated revenues in fiscal 2004.
Aggregated accounts receivable from these three customers
comprised 45% of gross accounts receivable at September 24,
2006 and September 25, 2005.

Revenues from international customers were approximately 87%.
82% and 79% of total consolidated revenues in fiscal 2006, 2005
and 2004, respectively.

Cost of Equipment and Services Revenues

Cost of equipment and services revenues is primarily comprised
of the cost of equipment revenues, the cost of messaging services
revenues and the cost of development and other services revenues.
Cost of equipment revenues consists of the cost of equipment
sald and sustaining engineering costs, including personnel and
related costs. Cost of messaging services revenues consists
principally of satellite transponder costs. netwark operations
expenses, including personnel and related costs, depreciation and
airtime charges by telecommunications operators. Cost of devel-
opment and ather services revenues primarily includes personnel
costs and related expenses,




Research and Development

Costs incurred in research and development activities are expensed
asincurred, except certain software development costs capitalized
after technological feasibility of the software is established.
Shipping and Handling Costs

Costs incurred for shipping and handling are included in cost of
equipment and services revenues at the time the related revenue
is recognized. Amounts billed to a customer for shipping and han-
dling are reported as revenue.

Income Taxes

The asset and liability approach is used to recognize deferred tax
assets and liabilities for the expected future tax consequences
of temperary differences between the carrying amaunts and the
tax bases of assets and liabilities. Tax law and rate changes are
reflected inincome in the period such changes are enacted. The
Company records a valuation allowance to reduce the deferred tax
assets to the amount that is more likely than not to be realized.

The Company’s income tax returns are based on calculations

and assumptions that are subject to examination by the Internal
Revenue Service and other tax authorities. While the Company
believes it has appropriate support for the positions taken on its
taxreturns, the Company regularly assesses the potential outcomes
of examinations by tax authorities in determining the adequacy of
its prevision for income taxes. As part of its assessment of potential
adjustments to its tax returns, the Company increases its current
tax liability to the extent an adjustment would result in a cash tax
payment or decreases its deferred tax assets to the extent an
adjustment would not result in a cash tax payment. The Company
continually assesses the likelihood and amount of potential adjust-
ments and adjusts the incorne tax pravision, the current tax liability
and deferred taxes in the period in which the facts that give rise

to arevision become known.

Due to the adoption of the revised Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 123, “Share-Based Payment”{FAS 123R)
beginning September 26, 2005, the Company recognizes windfall
tax benefits associated with the exercise of stock opticns directly
to stockholders’equity only when realized. Accordingly, deferred
tax assets are not recognized for net operating loss carryforwards
resulting from windfall tax benefits occurring from September 26,
2005 anward. A windfall tax benefit cccurs when the actual tax
benefit realized by the Company upon an employee’s disposition
of a share-based award exceeds the deferred tax asset, if any,
associated with the award that the Company had recorded. When
assessing whether a tax benefit relating to share-based compen-
sation has been realized, the Company follows the tax law ordering
method, under which current year share-based compensation
deductions are assumed to be utilized before net operating loss
carryforwards and ather tax attributes.

Cash Equivalents

The Company considers all highly liquid investments with original
maturities of three months or less to be cash equivalents. Cash
equivalents are comprised of money market funds, certificates
of deposit, commercial paper and government agencies’ securities.
The carrying amounts approximate fair value due to the shart
maturities of these instruments.

Marketable Securities

Management determines the appropriate classification of
marketable securities at the time of purchase and reevaluates
such designation as of each balance sheet date. Held-to-maturity
securities are carried at amortized cost, which approximates fair
value. Available-for-sale securities are stated at fair value as
determined by the most recently traded price of each security
at the balance sheet date. The net unrealized gains or losses on
available-for-sale securities are reported as a component of
comprehensive income {loss), net of tax. The specificidentification
method is used to compute the realized gains and tosses an debt
and equity securities.

The Company regularly monitors and evaluates the realizable value
of its marketable securities. When assessing marketable securities
for other-than-temporary declines in value, the Company considers
such factors as. among other things, how significant the decline in
value is as a percentage of the criginal cost, how lang the market
value of the investment has been less than its ariginal cost, the
perfarmance of the investee’s stock price in relation to the stock
price of its competitors within the industry and the market in
general, analyst recommendations, any news that has been released
specific to the investee and the outlook for the overall industry in
which the investee operates. The Company also reviews the financial
statements of the investee to determine if the investee is experi-
encing financial difficulties and considers new products/services
that the investee may have farthcoming that will improve its oper-
ating results, If events and circumstances indicate that a decline
in the value of these assets has occurred and is other than tempo-
rary, the Company records a charge to investment income {expense).

Allowances for Doubtful Accounts

The Company maintains allewances for doubtful accounts for
estimated losses resulting from the inability of the Company's
customers to make required payments. The Company considers
the following factors when determining if collection of a fee is
reasenably assured: customer credit-worthiness, past transacticn
history with the customer, current economic industry trends and
changes in customer payment terms. If the Company has no previous
experience with the customer, the Company typically obtains
reports from various credit organizations to ensure that the
customer has a history of paying its creditors. The Company may
also request financial infarmation, including financial statements
or other documents (e.g. bank statements) to ensure that the cus-
tomer has the means of making payment. If these factors do not
indicate collection is reasanably assured, revenue is deferred until
collection becomes reasonably assured, which is generally upon
receipt of cash, If the financial condition of the Company's customers
were to deteriorate, adversely affecting their ability to make pay-
ments, additionzl allowances would be required.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements continued

Inventories

Inventories are vaiued at the lower of cost or market {replacement
cost, not to exceed net realizable value) using the first-in, first-out
methed. Recoverability of inventory is assessed based on review of
committed purchase orders from customers, as well as purchase
commitment projections provided by customers, amang other things.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment are recorded at cost and depreciated
or amortized using the straight-line method over their estimated
useful lives. Buildings and building improvements are depreciated
over 30 years and 15 years, respectively, Leasehold improvements
are amortized over the shorter of their estimated useful lives or
the remaining term of the related lease. Other property, plant and
equipment have useful lives ranging from 2 to 15 years. Direct
external and internal costs of developing software for internal use
are capitalized subsequent to the preliminary stage of development.
Leased property meeting certain capital lease criteria is capitalized,
and the net present value of the related lease payments is recorded
as a tiability. Amortization of capital leased assets is recorded
using the straight-line method over the shorter of the estimated
useful tives or the lease terms. Maintenance, repairs, and minor
renewals and betterments are charged to expense as incurred.

Upon tha retirement or disposition of preperty, plant and equipment,
the related cost and accumulated depreciation or amortization are
removed, and a gain or loss is recorded.

Investments in Other Entities

The Company makes strategic investments in companies that have
developed ar are developing innovative wireless data applications
and wireless operators that promete the worldwide deployment
of COMA systems. Investments in corporate entities with less than
a 20% voting interest are generally accounted for under the cost
method. The cost method is also used to account for investments
that are not in-substance common stock. The Campany uses the
equity method to account for investments in common stock or
in-substance comman stock of corporate entities, including limited
liability corporations that do not maintain specific ownership
accounts, in which it has a voting interest of 20% to 50% or in
which it otherwise has the ability to exercise significant influence,
and in partnerships and limited liability corporations that do main-
tain specific ownership accounts in which it has other than minor
te 50% ownership interests. Under the equity method, the invest-
ment is originally recorded at cost and adjusted to recognize the
Company’s share of net earnings or losses of the investee, limited
to the extent of the Company’s investment in and advances to the
investee and financial guarantees on behalf of the investee that
create additional basis. The Company's equity in net earnings ar
losses cf its investees are recorded ane month in arrears to facili-
tate the timely inclusion of such equity in net earnings or losses
in the Company's consolidated financial statements.
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The Company regularly monitors and evaluates the realizable value
of its investments. When assessing an investment for an other-
than-temporary decline in value, the Company considers such
factors as. among other things, the share price from the investee's
latest financing round, the performance of the investee in relation
tec its own operating targets and its business plan, the investee's
revenue and cost trends. as well as liquidity and cash position,
including its cash burn rate, market acceptance cf the investee's
products/services as well as any new products or services that
may be forthcoming, any significant news that has been released
specific to the investee or the investee's competiters and/or
industry and the outlook for the overall industry in which the
investee operates. From time to time, the Company may consider
third-party evaluations, valuation reports or advice from invest-
ment banks, If events and circumstances indicate that a decline
in the value of these assets has occurred and is other than tempo-
rary, the Company records a charge to investment income {expense).

Derivatives

The Company may enter inte fereign currency forward and option
contracts to hedge certain foreign currency transactions and prob-
able anticipated foreign currency transactions. Gains and losses
arising from changes in the fair values of foreign currency forward
and option contracts that are not designated as hedging instruments
are recorded in investment income (expense) as gains (losses) on
derivative instrurments. Gains and lesses arising from the effective
portion of foreign currency forward and option contracts that are
designated as cash-flow hedging instruments are recorded in
accumulated other comprehensive income as gains {losses) on
derivative instruments, net of tax. The amounts are subsequently
reclassified into revenues in the same period in which the undertying
transactions affect the Company's earnings. The Company had
no outstanding forward contracts at September 24, 2006 and
September 25, 2005. The value of the Company's foreign currency
option contracts recorded in other current assets was 51 million
and 16 millicn at September 24, 2006 and September 25, 2005,
respectively, and the value recorded in other current liabilities was
$3 million at September 24, 2006, all of which were designated as
cash-flow hedging instruments.

In connection with its stock repurchase program, the Company
may sell put options that require the Compary to repurchase
shares of its cammon stock at fixed prices. The premiums received
from put options are recorded as other current liabilities. Changes
in the fair value of put options are recarded in investment income
{expense) as gains (losses) on derivative instruments. The value
of the put aptions recorded in other current liabilities was 519
million and $7 million at September 24, 2006 and September 25,
2005, respectively.

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

Goodwill represents the excess of purchase price and related costs
over the value assigned to the net tangible and identifiable intan-
gible assets of businesses acquired, Goodwill is tested annuaily for
impairment and in interim perieds if certain events occur indicating
that the carrying value of goodwill may be impaired. The Company
completed its annual testing for fiscal 2006, 2005 and 2004 and
determined that its recorded goodwill was not impaired.




Software development costs are capitalized when a preduct's
technological feasibility has been established through the date
aproduct is available for general release to customers. Software
development costs are amortized on a straight-line basis over the
estimated economic life of the software, ranging from less than
one year to three years, taking into account such factors as the
effects of obsalescence, technological advances and competition.
The weighted-average amortization period for capitalized soft-
ware was three years and one year at September 24, 2006 and
September 25, 2005, respectively. Other intangible assets are
amortized on a straight-line basis over their useful lives, ranging
from less than one year to 28 years.

Weighted-average amortization periods for finite-lived intangible
assets, by class, were as fallows:

Sept. 24, Sept. 25,

2006 2005

Wireless licenses 1S years 15 years
Marketing-related 19 years 18 years
Technology-based 15 years 9years
Customer-related 7 years 7 years
QOther 28 years 28 years
Tota! intangible assets 15 years 13 years

Changes in the weighted-average amortization periods of technology-
based intangible assets from fiscal 2005 to 2006 resulted from
additions to intangible assets related to acquisitions (Nate 11).

Valuation of Long-Lived and Intangible Assets

The Company assesses potential impairments to its long-lived
assets when there is evidence that events or changes in circum-
stances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be
recovered. An impairment loss is recognized when the carrying
amount of the long-lived asset is not recoverable and exceeds its
fair value. The carrying amount of a long-lived asset is not recover-
able if it exceeds the sum of the undiscounted cash flows expected
to result from the use and eventual dispaosition of the asset. Any
required impairment loss is measured as the amount by which the
carrying amount of a long-lived asset exceeds its fair value and is
recorded as areducticn in the carrying value of the related asset
and a charge to operating results.

Litigation

The Company is currently invelved in certain legal proceedings.
The Company estimates the range of liability related te pending
litigation where the amount and range of foss can be reasonably
estimated. The Company records its best estimate of a loss when
the loss is considered probable. Where a liability is prebable and
thereis arange of estimatedioss with no best estimate in the range,
the Company records the minimum estimated liability related to the
claim. As additienal information becomes available, the Company
assesses the potential liability related to the Company’s pending
litigation and revises its estimates.

Share-Based Payments

On September 26, 2005, the Company adopted FAS 123R. Under
FAS 123R, share-based compensation cost is measured at the grant
date, based on the estimated fair value of the award, and is recog-
nized as expense over the employee's requisite service peried. The
Company has no awards with market or performance conditions.
The Company adopted the provisions of FAS 123R using a modified
prospective application. Accordingly, pricr periods have not been
revised for comparative purposes. The valuaticon provisions of
FAS 123R apply to new awards and to awards that are outstanding
on the effective date, which are subsequertly modified or cancelled.
Estimated compensation expense for awards outstanding at the
effective date will be recognized over the remaining service period
using the compensation cost calculated for oro forma disclosure
purposes under FASB Statement No, 123, “Accounting for Stock-
Based Compensation” (FAS 123).

On November 10, 2005, the FASB issued FASB Staff Position

Mo. FAS 123(R})-3, “Transition Election Related to Accounting for
Tax Effects of Share-Based Payment Awards The Company has
elected to adopt the alternative transition method provided in this
FASB Staff Position for calculating the tax effects of share-based
compensation pursuant to FAS 123R. The alternative transition
method includes a simplified method to establish the beginning
balance aof the additional paid-in capital pool (APIC pool) related
to the tax effects of empioyee share-based compensation, which
is available to absorb tax deficiencies which could be recognized
subsequent to the adoption of FAS 123R.

Share-Based Compensation Information under FAS 123R. Upon
adoption of FAS 123R, the Company alse changed its method of
valuation for stock options granted beginning in fiscal 2006 to
alattice binomial option-pricing medel (binomial medel) from the
Black-5choles aption-pricing model (Black-Scholes model) which
was previously used for the Company's pro forma infermation
required under FAS 123. The Company's employee stock options
have various restrictions that reduce option value, including
vesting provisions and restrictions on transfer and hedging, ameng
others, and are often exercised prior to their contractual maturity.
Bincmial models have evolved such that the currently available
mcdels are more capable of incorporating the features of the
Company's employee steck options than closed-form medels such
as the Black-Scheles medel.

The weighted-average estimated fair value of employee stock
cptions granted during fiscal 2006 was $15.73 per share using the
binamial model with the following weighted-average assumptions
(ennualized percentages) for fiscal 2006:

Volatility 307%
Risk-free interest rate 4.6%
Dividend yield 1.0%
Post-vesting forfeiture rate 6.0%
Suboptimal exercise factor 1.7
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The Company used the implied volatility of market-traded optians
in the Company’s steck for the expected volatility assumption,
consistent with the guidance in FAS 123R and the Securities and
Exchange Commission’s Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 107. The
Company utilized the term structure of volatility up to approxi-
mately two years, and the implied volatility of the option with the
longest time to maturity was used for the expected volatility esti-
mates for periods beyend two years. Prior to fiscal 2006, the
Company had used a combinaticn of its historical stock price and
implied volatility in accordance with FAS 123 for purposes of its
pro forma information. The selection of implied volatility data to
estimate expected volatility was based upon the availability of
actively traded options on the Company's stock and the Company's
assessment that implied volatility is more representative of
future stock price trends than histerical volatility.

The risk-free interest rate assumption is based upon cbserved
interest rates apprapriate for the terms of the Company's employee
stack options. The Company does not target a specific dividend
yield for its dividend payments but [s required te assume a dividend
yield as an input to the binomial model. The dividend yield assump-
tion is based on the Company's history and expectation of future
dividend payouts and may be subject to substantial change in the
future. The post-vesting forfeiture rate and suboptimal exercise
factor are based on the Company's historical option cancellation
and employee exercise information, respectively. The suboptimal
exercise factor is the ratio by which the stock price must increase
before employees are expected to exercise their stock opticns.

The expected life of employee stack options represents the weighted-
average period the stock options are expected to remain outstanding
and is a derived output of the bincmial model. The expected life of
employee stock options is impacted by all of the underlying assump-
tions used in the Company's madel. The binomial model assumes that
employees’ exercise behavior is a function of the opticns’ remaining
contractual life and the extent to which the option is in-the-money
(i.e. the average stock price during the period is above the strike
price of the stock option). The binomial model estimates the prob-
ability of exercise as a function of these two variables based on the
history of exercises and cancellations of past grants made by the
Company. The expected life of employee stock optians granted
during fiscal 2006 derived from the binomial medel was 5.8 years.

|

|

|

! As share-based compensation expense recognized in the consoli-
dated statement of operations for fiscal 2006 is based on awards

‘ ultimately expected to vest, it should be reduced for estimated
forfeitures. FAS 123R requires forfeitures to be estimated at the
time of grant and revised, if necessary, in subsequent periods if
actual forfeitures differ from those estimates. Pre-vesting forfei-
tures were estimated to be approximately 0% in the year ended
September 24, 2006 based on histarical experience. The effact
of pre-vesting forfeitures an the Company’s recorded expense
has historically been negligible due to the predominantly monthly
vesting of option grants. If pre-vesting forfeitures occur in the
future, the Company willrecord the effect of such forfeitures as
the forfeitures occur. The Company will continue to evaluate the
appropriateness of this assumption. In the Company’s pro forma
information required under FAS 123 for the periods prior to fiscal
2006, the Company accounted for forfeitures as they occurred.
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Total estimated share-based compensation expense, related to all
of the Campany’s share-based awards, recognized for fiscal 2006
was comprised as follows (in millions, except per share data):

Year Ended

Sept. 24,

2006

Cost of equipment and services revenues s 41
Research and development 216
Selling, general and administrative 238
Share-based compensation expense before taxes 495
Related income tax benefits _{175)
Share-based compensation expense, net of taxes s 320
Net share-based compensation expense, per common share: -
Basic $0.19
Diluted $0.19

The Company recorded $86 million in share-based compensation
expense during fiscal 2006 related to share-based awards granted
during fiscal 2006. In addition, for fiscal 2006, the adoption of
FAS 123R resulted in areclassification to reduce net cash provided
by operating activities by 5403 million. with an offsetting increase
in net cash provided by financing activities, related to incremental
tax benefits from stock options exercised in the period.

Pro Forma Information under FAS 123 for Periods Prior to
Fiscal 2006. Prior to adopting the provisions of FAS 123R,

the Company recorded estimated compensation expense for
empleoyee stock options based upaon their intrinsic value on the
date of grant pursuant to Accounting Principles Board Opinion
25 (APB 25), “Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees” and
provided the required pro forma disclosures of FAS 123. Because
the Company established the exercise price based on the fair
market value of the Company's stock at the date of grant, the
stock options had naintrinsic value upon grant. and therefore

no estimated expense was recorded prior to adopting FAS 123R.
Each accounting pericd, the Company reported the potential
dilutive impact of stock opticns inits diluted earnings per common
shara using the treasury-stock method. Out-of-the-money stock
options {i.e. the average stock price during the period was below
the strike price of the stock option) were not included in dituted
earnings per commoen share as their effect was anti-dilutive,

The weighted-average estimated fair value of employee stock options
granted during fiscal 2005 and 2004 was $14.80 and $13.92 per
share, respectively, using the Black-Scholes model with the following
weighted-average assumptions (annualized percentages) for the
same periods:

2005 2004
Risk-free interest rate 3.9% 3.8%
Volatility 36.5% 53.2%
Dividend yield 0.8% 06%
Expected life (years) 6.0 6.0




For purposes of pro forma disclosures under FAS 123, the estimated
fair value of share-based payments is assumed to be amortized to
expense over the vesting periods. The pro forma effects of recog-
nizing estimated compensation expense under the fair value method
en net income and earnings per common share were as fallows (in
millions, except per share data):

Year Ended
Sept. 25, Sept. 26,
2005 2004
Net income, as reported $2,143 51,720
Add: Share-based employee compensation
expense included inreported net income,
net of related tax benefits 2 -
Deduct: Share-based employee
compensation expense determined
under the fair value based method for
all awards. net of related tax effects {305) {281)
Pro forma net income 51.840 51,438
Earnings per common share:
Basic—as reported s 131 s 1.06
Basic—pro forma s 1.12 5 0.89
Diluted—as reported s 1.26 s 1.03
Diluted—pro forma s 1.09 S 0.86

Foreign Currency

Foreign subsidiaries aperating in a local currency environment use
the local currency as the functional currency. Resulting transiation
gains or losses are recognized as a compenent of other compre-
hensive incame. Where the United States dollar is the functional
currency, resulting translation gains cr losses are recognized
in the statements of operations, During both fiscal 2006 and 2005,
net foreign currency transaction gains included in the Company’s
statement of operations were $1 million. During fiscal 2004, nat
forelgn currency transaction losses included in the Company's
consolidated statements of operations were £ million,

Comprehensive Income

Comprehensive income is defined as the change in equity of

a business enterprise during a period from transactiens and other
events and circumstances from non-owner sources, including foreign
currency translation adjustments and unrealized gains and losses
on marketable securities. The Company presents comprehensive
income inits consolidated statements of stackholders’ equity.

The reclassification adjustment for net realized gains results from
the recognition of the net realized gains in the statement of opera-
tians when marketable securities are sold or derivative instruments
are settled.

Compenents af accumulated other comprehensive income consisted
of the following (in millions):

Sept. 24, Sept. 25,
2006 2005

Unrealized gains on marketable securities and
derivative instruments, net of income taxes s 87 S 60
Foreign currency translation {23) (22)
S 64 S 38

Earnings Per Common Share

Basic earnings per common share is computed by dividing net income
by the weighted-average number of common shares outstanding
during the reporting period. Diluted earnings per comman share

is computed by dividing net income by the combinaticn of dilutive
common share equivalents, comprised of shares issuable under the
Company's share-based compensation plans and shares subject to
written put options, and the weighted-average number of commen
shares outstanding during the reporting period. Dilutive common
share equivalents include the dilutive effect of in-the-money shares,
which is calculated based on the average share price for each period
using the treasury stock mathod. Under the treasury stock method,
the exercise price of a share, the amount of compensation cost,
if any, for future service that the Company has not yet recognized,
and the amount of estimated tax benefits that would be recorded
in paid-in capital, if any, when the share is exercised are assumed to
be used ta repurchase shares in the current period. The incremental
dilutive common share equivalents, calculated using the treasury
stock method, feor fiscal 2006, 2005 and 2004 were approximately
51,835,000, 56,127,000 and 58,686,000, respectively.

Employee stock options to purchase approximately 54,541,000,
33,660,000 and 40,221,000 shares of commen stock during
fiscal 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively, were autstanding but
not included in the computation of diluted earnings per commaon
share because the effect on dilutive earnings per share would be
anti-dilutive. Put options outstanding during 2005 and 2004 to
purchase a weighted-average 13,000,000 and 3,000,000 shares
of common stack, respectively, were not included in the earnings
per common share computation for fiscal 2005 and 2004 because
the put options’ exercise prices were less than the average market
price of the common stock while thay were outstanding, and there-
fore, the effect on diluted earnings per common share would be
anti-dilutive (Note 7).

Future Accounting Requirements

In July 2006, the FASB issued FASB Interpretation No. 48

(FIN 48) "Accounting for Uncertainty in income Taxes” which
prescribes a recogniticn threshold and measurement process
for recarding in the financial statements uncertain tax pasitions
taken or expected ta be taken in a tax return. Additianally, FIMN 48
provides guidance an the derecagnition, classification, accounting
in interim periods and disclosure requirements for uncertain tax
positions. The accounting provisions of FiN 48 will be effective
for the Company beginning October 1, 2007. The cumulative effect
of initially adopting FIN 48 will be recorded as an adjustment
to opening retained earnings in the year of adoption and will be
presented separately. Only tax pesiticns that meet the more likely
than not recagnition threshold at the effective date may be recog-
nized upon adoption of FIN 48. The Cormpany is in the process
of datermining the effect. if any, the adoption of FIN 48 will have
onits consolidated financial statements.
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NOTE 2. MARKETABLE SECURITIES

Marketable securities were comprised as follaws {in millions):

Current Noncurrent

Sept. 24, Sept. 24, Sept. 24, Sept. 25,
2006 2005 2006 2005

Held-to-maturity:
Government-spansored enterprise securities s - s 60 s - s -
Corporate bends and notes - 70 - -
- 130 - -

Available-for-sale:
U.5. Treasury securities 73 151 - -
Government-sponsored enterprise securities 667 704 - -
Municipal bonds 5 10 - -
Foreign government bonds 17 17 - -
Cerporate bonds and notes 2,693 2,645 23 14
Mortgage- and asset-backed securities 617 767 - -
Non-investment grade debt securities 24 24 1.368 694
Equity mutual funds - - 1,519 293
Equity securities 18 30 1,318 1.132
4114 4,348 4,228 2,133

54,114 54,478 £4,228 52,133

As of September 24, 2006. the contractual maturities of available-
for-sale debt securities were as follows {in millions):

Years to Maturity

Less One to Five to Greater  NoSingle
than One Five Ten than Ten Maturity

Year Years Years Years Date Total
52,294 51358 679 $27 $1,129 55,487

Securities with nc single maturity date include mortgage- and

asset-backed securities.

Available-for-sale securities were comprised as follows (in millions):

Unrealized Unrealized Fair
Cost Gains Lasses Valua
September 24, 2006
Equity securities $2,693 $194 5(32) 52,855
Debt securities 5.500 11 (24) 5,487
Total $8,193 5205 5{56) $8,342
September 25, 2005
Equity securities $1,353 $131 5{29) 51,455
Debt securities 5039 14 {27) 5,026
Total 56,392 5145 3(56) 56,481

The Company had no held-to-maturity debt securities at
September 24, 2006. The fair values of held-ta-maturity deht
securities at September 25, 2005 approximate cost.
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The Company recorded realized gains and losses on sales of
available-for-sale marketabte securities as follows {in millions):

Gross Gross Net

Realized Realized Reaiized

Fiscal Year Gains Losses Gains
2006 5176 s(47) s129
2005 198 {31} 167
2004 105 {17) 88




The following table shows the gross unrealized losses and fair values
of the Company’s investments in individual securities that have been
in a continuous unrealized loss position deemed to be temporary
for less than 12 months and for more than 12 months, aggregated
by investment categery, at September 24, 2006 {in millions):

Less than Mare than
12 months 12 months
Fair Unrealized Fair  Unrealized
Value Losses Value Losses
U.S. Treasury securities s - s - s 19 s —
Government-spansored
enterprise securities 82 - 80 {1)
Foreign gavernment
bonds - - 10 -
Corporate bends
and nates 515 48] 407 (4}
Mortgage- and asset-
backed sacurities 1327 m 150 (3)
Nen-investment grade
debt securities 952 {10) 61 (3)
Equity mutual funds 382 (L3) - -
Equity securities 288 (15) 5 (1)
52351 5(40) 5732 S(12)

Investment Grade Debt Securities

The Company's investments in investment grade debt securities
consist primarily of investments in certificates of deposit, U.5.
Treasury securities, government-spansored enterprise securities,
municipal bonds, foreign government bonds, mortgage- and asset-
backed securities and corporate bonds and notes. The unrealized
losses on the Campany's investments in investment grade debt
securities were caused by interest rate increases. Due to the fact
that the decline in market value is attributable to changes in interest
rates and not credit quality, and because the severity and duration of
the unrealized losses were not significant, the Company considered
these unrealized losses to be temporary at September 24, 2006.

Mon-Investment Grade Debt Securities

The Company’s investments in non-investment grade debt securities
consist primarily of investments in corporate bonds and secured
bank loans. The unrealized losses an the Company's investment in
non-investment grade debt securities were caused by credit guality
and industry- or company-specific events, Because the severity
and duration of the unrealized losses were not significant, the
Company considered these unrealized losses to be temporary
at September 24, 2006.

Marketable Equity Securities

The Company's investments in marketable equity securities cansist
primarily of investments in common stock of large companies and
equity mutual funds. The unrealized losses on the Company's invest-
ment in marketable equity securities were caused by overall equity
market valatility and industry-specific events. The duration and
severity of the unrealized iosses in relation to the carrying amounts
of the individua! investments were consistent with typical equity
market volatility. Current market forecasts support arecovery
of fair value up to {or beyond} the cost of the investment within

areasonable period of time. Accordingly, the Company considered
these unrealized losses to be temparary at September 24, 2006.

NOTE 3. COMPOSITION OF CERTAIN FINANCIAL
STATEMENT CAPTIONS

Accounts Receivable

Sept.24,  Sept. 25,

{In millions) 2006 Z005
Trade, net of allowances for doubtful
accounts of 51 and $2, respectively $632 2506
Long-term contracts 44 26
Other 24 12
700 5544
Inventories

Sept.24,  Sept. 25

(in millions) 2006 2005
Raw materials s 30 s 23
Work-in-process 13 6
Finished goods 207 148

$250 177

Property, Plant and Equipment

Sept. 24,  Sept. 25,

(In miltians) 2006 2005
Land s 76 s 65
Buildings and improvements 853 616
Computer equipment 659 520
Machinery and equipment 764 544
Furniture and office equipment 43 33
Leaseheld improvements 171 107

2,566 1.885
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization {1,084) (863)

$ 1,482 51,022

Depreciation and amortization expense related to property, plant
and equipment for fiscal 2006, 2005 and 2004 was $239 million,
$177 million and $140 million, respectively. The net book values
of property under capital leases included in buildings and improve-
ments were 358 million and $2 million at September 24, 2006 and
September 25, 2005, respectively. These capital leases principally
related to base station towers and buildings. Amertization of assets
recorded under capital {eases is included in depreciation expense.
Capital lease additions for the years ended September 24, 2006
and September 25, 2005 were $56 million and $3 million, respec-
tively. There were no capital lease additions in the year ended
September 26, 2004,

At September 24, 2006 and September 25, 2005, buildings and
improvements and leasehold improvements with a net book value
of 19 million and $36 million, respectively, including accumutated
depreciation and amortization of $15 million and $30 million, respec-
tively, were leased to third parties or held for lease to third parties.
Future minimum rental income on facilities leased to others in each
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of the next three years from fiscal 2007 to 2009 are S5 mitlion.
$4 million and $1 million, respectively.

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

The Company's reportable segment assets da not include goodwill
(Note 10). The Company allocates goodwill to its reporting units
for annual impairment testing purposes. Goodwill was allocable to
reporting units included in the Company's reportable segments at
September 24, 2006 as follows: 3332 million in QUALCOMM CDMA
Technologies, $687 million in QUALCOMM Technology Licersing,
$76 mitlion in QUALCOMM Wireless & Internet, and $128 million
in QUALCOMM MEMS Technology (a nonreportable segment
included in reconciling items in Nate 10). The increase in goodwill
from September 25, 2005 to September 24, 2006 was the result
of the Company's business acquisitions (Note 1 1), partially offset
by currency translation adjustments.

The components of purchased intangible assets, which are included
in other assets, were as follows (in millions);

Sept. 24, 2006 Sept. 25, 2005
Gross Gross
Carrying Accumnulated Carrying Accumulated
Amount Amortization Amount Amortization

Wireless licenses 5238 $(22) 5164 $(17}
Marketing-related 21 (11) 21 (9}
Techrology-based 257 (43) 116 (48)
Customer-related 6 {2} 17 (13}
Other 7 {1} 7 {1)

$529 5{79) $325 2188)

All of the Company’s purchased intangible assets other than certain
wireless licenses in the amount of $157 million and goodwill are
subject to amortization. Amortization expense related to these
intangible assets for fiscal 2006, 2005 and 2004 was $32 millicn,
£19 millien and $18 millicn, respectively, and is expected to be
$31 millienin fiscal 2007, 327 million in fiscal 2008, 326 million in
fiscal 2009, 324 million in fiscal 2010, $23 millien in fiscal 2011
and $162 million thereafter.

Capitalized software development costs, which are included in other
assets, were $27 million and $43 million at September 24, 2006 and
September 25, 2005, respectively. Accumulated amortization on cap-
italized software was $27 million and $42 million at September 24,
2006 and September 25, 2005, respectively. Amortization expense
related to capitalized software for fiscal 2006, 2005 and 2004 was
£1 million, 24 million and $13 millian, respectively,

NOTE 4. INVESTMENTS IN OTHER ENTITIES

The Company and another investor {the Other Investor) own mincrity
interests in Inquam Limited (Inquam), the owner of a wireless
CDMA-based operator in Romania, and in Inquam’s former subsid-
iaries in Portugal (the Portugal Companies). The Company recorded
$20 million, $33 million and $59 million in equity in losses of Inquam
during fiscal 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively. including a $1 2 mil-
tion loss resulting from Inquam’s restructuring during fiscal 2006.
At September 24, 2006 and September 25, 2005, the Company's
equity and debtinvestrments in Inquamand the Portugal Companies
totaled $5 million and $26 millicn, respectively, net of equity in losses.
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The Company and the Other Investor have each guaranteed 50%
of a portion of amounts owed under certain of Inquam’s long-term
financing arrangements, up to a combined maximum of $53 million.
The fair value of this obligation, which is insignificant, has been
recorded in the financial statements. The guarantee expires and
the facilities mature on December 25, 2011.

Other

Other strategic equity investments as of September 24, 2006 and
September 25, 2005 totaled 582 million and $96 million, respec-
tively, including 573 million and $59 millian, respectively, accounted
for using the cost methad. Differences between the carrying
armaunts of certain other strategic equity method investments and
the Company's underlying equity in the net assets of those investees
were not significant at September 24, 2006 and September 25,
2005. At September 24, 2006, effective ownership interests in
these investees ranged from approximately 19% to 50%. Funding
commitments related to these investments totaled 16 million at
September 24, 2006, which the Company expects to fund through
fiscal 2009. Such commitments are subject to the'investees meet-
ing certain canditions. As such, actual equity funding may be in
lesser amaunts.

NOTE 5. INVESTMENT INCOME (EXPENSE}
Investment income (expense) was comprised as follows {in
mitlions):

Year Ended
Sept. 24, Sept. 25, Sept. 26,
2006 2005 2004
Interest and dividend income 5416 5256 $175
Interest expense (4) (3) (2)
Net realized gains on
marketabte securities 129 167 88
Net realized gains on
other investments 7 12 -
Other-than-temporary losses
on marketable securities {20} (13} (12}
Other-than-temparary losses
on ather investments {4) (1) -
{Losses) gains on derivative
instruments {29) 33 7
Equity in losses of invastees {29) (28) (72)

$466 5423 5184

NOTE 6. INCOME TAXES
The components of the income tax provision were as follows
{in millicns):

Year Ended
Sept, 24, Sept. 25, Sept. 26,
2006 2005 2004
Current provision:

Federal $209 s 77 2115
State 88 42 60
Foreign 156 140 157
543 259 332

Deferred provision:
Federal 165 398 227
State (23) 9 29
Foreign 1 - -
143 407 256
686 5666 5588




The foreign component of the income tax provision consists
primarily of foreign withholding taxes on royalty income included
in United States earnings.

The components of income from continuing operations before
income taxes by United States and foreign jurisdictions were as
follows {in millions):

During fiscal 2008, the Internal Revenue Service and the Califarnia
Franchise Tax Board completed audits of the Campany's tax returns
for fiscal 2001 and 2002, resulting in adjustments to the Company’s
net operating loss and credit carryover amounts for those years.
The tax provision was reduced by $73 million during fiscal 2006
toreflect the expected impacts of the audits on both the reviewed
and open tax years.

Year Ended The Company had net deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities
Sept.24,  Sept. 25,  Sept.26, as follows {in millions}:
2006 2005 2004

United States $1,445 81,570 81,571 Sept.24,  Sept. 25,
Fureign 1711 1.239 742 2006 2005
53,156 52,809 2,313 Accrued liabilities, reserves and other $ 169 =191

Share-based compensation 164 -

Capitalized start-up and organizational costs 46 -

The fallowing is a reconciliation of the expected statutory federal Deferred revenue 55 75
income tax provision to the Company’s actual inceme tax provision Unrealized losses on marketable securities 43 S
(in milliens): Unused net operating losses 59 13
Capital loss carryover 82 161

Year Ended Tax credits 129 346

Sept. 24,  Sept.25,  Sept.25, Unrealized losses on investments 145 137

2006 2005 2004 Property, plant and equipment - 8

Expected income tax provision Other basis differences 22 -
at federal statutur)f t‘ax rate $1,105 $ 983 $ B80S Total gross deferred assets 914 937
Stant:tlSE?Zdeetr:Tlig::;istmn' 168 109 g  veluaiionaliowance 22 (&9
One-time dividend _ 35 _ Total net deferred assets s 892 868
Foreign income taxed at other Purchased intangible assets (79) {17)
than U.S. rates (52%) (290) (215) Deferred contract costs (6} {18)
Valuation allowance (46) (78) {(44) Unrealized gains on marketable securities {67} (50)-

Tax credits {46) (66) (42 Property, plant and equipment (10} -
Other 30 (27) (4} Other basis differences - (1)
income tax expense S b86 S 666 s 588 Total deferred liabilities $(162) S (BB)

The Company has rot provided for United States income taxes and
fareign withholding taxes on a cumuiative total of approximately
%2.7 billion of undistributed earnings from certain non-United States
subsidiaries indefinitely invested outside the United States.
Should the Company repatriate foreign earnings, the Company
would have to adjust the income tax provision in the period man-
agement determined that the Company would repatriate the
earnings. On Octaber 22, 2004, the American Jobs Creation Act

of 2004 {the Jobs Creation Act) was signed into law. The Jobs
Creation Act created a temporary incentive for corporations in the
United States to repatriate accumnulated income earned abroad by
providing an 85 percent dividends received deducticn for certain
dividends from centrolled foreign corporations. In the fourth quarter
of fiscal 2005, the Company repatriated approximately 0.5 billion
of foreign earnings qualifying for the special incentive under the
lobs Creation Act and recorded a related expense of approximately
£35 million for federal and state income tax liabilities. This distri-
buticn does not change the Company's intention to indefinitely
reinvest undistributed earnings of certain of its foreign subsidiaries
in operations outside the United States,

The Company believes, more likely than not, that it will have suffi-
cient taxable income after steck option related deductians to utilize
the majority of its deferred tax assets, As of September 24, 2006,
the Company has provided a valuation allowance on net capital
losses of 516 million. The valuation allowance related to capital
iosses reflects the uncertainty surrounding the Company's ability
to generate sufficient capital gains to utilize all capital losses.

At September 24, 2006 and September 25, 2005, the Company
had federal, state and foreign taxes payable of approximately
3137 million and $69 million, respectively, included in other
current liabilities.

At September 24, 20086, the Company had unused federal income
tax credits of 5534 miilion, with 5522 miliion expiring from 2012
through 2026, and state income tax cradits of 596 million, which
do not expire. The Company does net expect its federal income tax
credits to expire unused.

Cash amounts paid for income taxes, net of refunds received. were
$172 miilion, 168 million and $127 million for fiscal 2006, 2005
and 2004, respectively. The income taxes paid primarily relate to
foreign withholding taxes.
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NOTE 7. CAPITAL STOCK

Preferred Stock

The Company has 8,000,000 shares of preferred stock authorized
forissuance in une or more series, at a par value of $0.0001 per
share. In conjunction with the distribution of preferred share pur-
chase rights, 4,000,000 shares of preferred stock are designated as
Series A Junior Participating Preferred Stock and such shares are
reserved for issuance upon exercise of the preferred share purchase
rights. At September 24, 2006 and September 25, 2005, no shares
of preferred stock were outstanding,

Preferred Share Purchase Rights Agreement

The Company has a Preferred Share Purchase Rights Agreement
(Rights Agreement) to protect stockholders'interests in the event
of a proposed takeover of the Company. Under the original Rights
Agreement, adopted on September 26&, 1995, the Company declared
a dividend of one preferred share purchase right (a Right) for each
share of the Company’s common stock outstanding. Pursuant to
the Rights Agreement, as amended and restated on September 26,
2005, each Right entitles the registered holder to purchase from
the Company a one ane-thousandth share of Series A Junior Partici-
pating Preferred Stock, $0.0001 par value per share, subject to

adjustment for subsequent stock splits, at a purchase price of $180.

The Rights are exercisable only if a person or group {an Acquiring
Person) acquires beneficial ownership of 15% or more of the
Company’s outstanding shares of common stock without Board
approval. Upon exercise, halders, ather than an Acquiring Persan,
will have the right, subject to termination, to receive the Company's
common stock or other securities, cash or other assets having
amarket value, as defined, equal to twice-such purchase price.
The Rights, which expire an September 25, 2015, are redeemable
inwhole, but not in part, at the Company's option prior to the time
such Rights are triggered for a price of $0.001 per Right.

Stock Repurchase Program

On November 7, 2005, the Company authorized the repurchase of
up to $2.5 billion of the Company's common stock under a program
with no expiration date. The $2.5 billion stock repurchase program
replaced a $2.0 billion stock repurchase program, of which approxi-
mately $1.0 billion remained authorized for repurchases. During
fiscal 2006 and 2005, the Company repurchased and retired
34,000,000 shares and 27,083,000 of common stack for $1.5 billion
and $953 million, respectively, excluding $5 million of premiums
received related to put options that were exercised in fiscal 2006.
The Company did nat repurchase any of the Company’s common
stock during fiscal 2004. At September 24, 2006, approximately
£0.9 billion remained authorized for repurchases under the stock
repurchase praogram, net of put options cutstanding.

In connection with the Company’s stock repurchase program,
tha Company sold put options on its own stock during fiscal 2006,
2005 and 2004. At September 24, 2006, the Company had two
outstanding put options enabling holders to sell 2,000,000 shares
of the Company’s comman stock to the Company for approximatety
$89 million {net of the put option premiums received), and the
recorded values of the put option liabilities totaled $19 million.
In October 2006, one of the put options was exercised, and the
Company repurchased and retired 1,000,000 shares of its common
stock for approximately $45 million (net of the put option premium
received). Upon repurchase, the shares were retired. The remaining
put option, with an expiration date in November 2006, may require
the Company to repurchase 1,000,000 shares of its common stock
for approximately 545 million (net of the put option premium
received). Any shares purchased upon the exercise of the put
optionwill be retired. During fiscal 2006, the Company recognized
329 million in investment losses due te net increases in the fair
values of put options, net of premiums received of S11 million.
During fiscal 2005 and 2004, the Company recognized gains of
531 million and $5 million, respectively, in investment income due
to decreases in the fair values of put options, including premiums
received of 515 million and S5 million, respectively.

Dividends

The Company announced increases in its quarterly dividend per share of comman stock from $0.035 ta $0.05 on March 2, 2004, from $0.05
to 50.07 on July 13, 2004, from $0.07 to $0.09 an March 8, 2005, and from $0.09 ta 30.12 on March 7, 2006. Cash dividends announced in
fiscal 2006, 2005 and 2004 were as follows (in millions, except per share data):

2006 2005 2004
Per Share Total  Per Share Total  Per Share Total
First quarter $0.09 5148 =0.07 $115 $0.076 s112
Second quarter 6.09 150 0.07 115 0.05 8l
Third quarter 012 202 0.08 147 —lol -
Fourth quarter 012 198 0.09 147 0.07 114
Total $0.42 3698 £0.32 5524 s0.19 =307

©In the first quarter of fiscal 2004, the Company announced two dividends of 50.035 per share which were paid in the first and second quarters of fiscal 2004
*The Company paid a dividend of $0.05 per share in the third quarter of fiscal 2004 that had been announced in the second quarter of fiscal 2004.
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On October 5, 2006, the Company announced a cash dividend
of $0.12 per share on the Company's common stock, payable on
January 4, 2007 to stockholders of record as of December 7, 2006,
which will be reflected in the consolidated financial statements in
the first quarter of fiscal 2007.

NOTE B. EMPLOYEE STOCK BENEFIT PLANS

Employee Savings and Retirement Plan

The Campany has a 401(k) plan that allows eligible emplayees
to contribute up to 50% of their eligible compensation. subject
to annual limits. The Company matches a portion of the employee
contributions and may, at its discretion, make additional contribu-
tians based upan earnings. The Company's contribution expense
for fiscal 2006, 2005 and 2004 was $33 million, $27 million and
521 million, respectively.

Equity Compensation Plans

The Board of Directors may grant options to selected employees,
directors and consultants to the Company to purchase shares of the
Company's common stock at a price not less than the fair market
value of the stock at the date of grant. The 2006 Long-Term
Incentive Plan (the 2006 Plan) was adopted during the second
quarter of fiscal 2006 and replaced the 2001 Stock Opticn Plan
and the 2001 Non-Employee Director Stock Option Plan and their
predecessor plans {the Prior Plans). The 2006 Plan provides for
the grant of incentive and nonstatutory stock options as well as
stock appreciation rights, restricted stock, restricted stock units,
performance units and shares and cther stock-based awards and
will be the source of shares issued under the Executive Retirement

Matching Contribution Plan (ERMCP). The share reserve under the
2006 Plan is equal to the shares available for future grant under
the combined plans on the date the 2006 Plan was approved by
the Company's stockhalders, plus an additienal 65,000,000 shares
for a total of approximately 280,192,000 shares reserved. This
share amount is automatically increased by the amount equal to
the number of shares subject to any outstanding option under a
Prior Plan that is terminated or cancelled (but not an option under
aPrior Plan that expires) following the date that the 2006 Plan was
approved by stockholders. Shares that are subject to an award
under the ERMCP and are returned to the Company because they
fail to vest wili again become available for grant under the 2006
Plan. The Board of Directors of the Company may amend or termi-
nate the 2006 Plan at any time. Generally, options outstanding
vest over periods not exceeding five years and are exercisable for
up to ten years from the grant date.

During fiscal 2006, the Company assumed a total of approximataly
3,530,000 autstanding stock aptions under the Flarion Technologies,
Inc. 2000 Stock Option and Restricted Stock Purchase Plan, the
Berkana Wireless Inc. 2002 Stock Plan and 2002 Executive Stack
Plan and under the Qualphone Inc. 2004 Equity Incantive Plan
{the Assumed Plans), as amended, as a result of the acquisitions
(Note 11). The Assumed Plans were suspended on the dates of
acquisition, and no additional shares may be granted under those
plans. The Assumed Plans pravided for the grant of bothincentive
stock options and non-qualified stock options. Generally, options
outstanding vest over periods not exceeding four years and are
exercisable for up to ten years from tha grant date.

Information under FAS 123R for Fiscal 2006. A summary of stock option transactions for all stock option plans follows:

Average
Weighted Remaining Aggregate

Number of Average Contractual Intrinsic

Shares Exercise Term Value

(In thousands) Price {Years) {Inbillions)
Quistanding at September 25. 2005 202,794 $24.35
Options granted 34977 45,68
Options assumed) 3,530 21.15
Optians cancelled/forfeited/expired (3,057) 35.08
Opticns exercised {36,389) 16.71

QOutstanding at September 24, 2006 201.855 $29.20 6.15 52.2

Exercisable at September 24, 2006 121,872 $24.42 4.76 $1.8

MRepresents activity related to options that were assumed as aresult of acquisitions (Note 11).

Net stock opticns, after forfeitures and cancellations, granted during fiscal 2006, 2005 and 2004 represented 1.9%, 1.8% and 1.7% of
outstanding shares as of the beginning of each fiscal year, respectively. Total stock options granted during fiscal 2006, 2005 and 2004
represented 2.1%, 2.1% and 1.9%, respectively, of cutstanding shares as of the end of each fiscal year.
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The Company's determination of fair value of share-based payment awards on the date of grant using an option-pricing model is affected
by the Company’s stock price as well as assumptions regarding a number of highly complex and subjective variables. At September 24,
2006, total unrecognized estimated compensation cost related to non-vested stock aptions granted prior to that date was $1.2 hillion,
whichis expected to be recognized over aweighted-average period of 1.7 years. Total share-based compensation cost capitalized as part
of inventory and fixed assets was $1 million during fiscal 2006. The total intrinsic value of stock options exercised during fiscal 2006 was
$1.1billion. The Campany recorded cash received from the exercise of stock optians of $608 million and related tax benefits of 5421 million
during fiscal 2006. Upon option exercise, the Company issues new shares of stock.

Additional information ahout stock options outstanding at September 24, 2006 with exercise prices tess than or above $37.86 per share,
the closing price at September 24, 2006, follows (number of shares in thousands):

Exercisable Unexercisable Total
Weighted Weighted Weighted
Average Average Average
Number Exercise Number Exercise Number Exercise
Stock Options of Shares Price  of Shares Price. of Shares Price
Less than $37.86 98,804 519.59 37,751 526.57 136,555 521.52
Above 537.86 23.068 4510 42,232 4536 65,300 4527
Total outstanding 121,872 s24.42 79,983 $36.49 201.855 529.20

Information under FAS 123 for Periods Prior to Fiscol 2006. A summary of stock option transactians for all stock option plans follows
(number of shares in thousands):

Options Qutstanding

Shares Exercise Price Per Share

Available Number Weighted

for Grant  of Shares Range Average

Balance at September 28, 2003 23,746 212,972 50.07 t0$86.18 $17.28
Additional shares reserved 64,000 - - -
Options granted (31,252) 31,252 21.50t0 40.40 27189
Options cancelled 4,420 {4,420) 230to 70.00 28.15
Options exercised — (36,220) 0.14t0 3734 7.85
Balance at September 26, 2004 60914 203584 $0.07 to 586.15 $20.25
Additional shares reservedi! 765 - - -
Options assumed't! {765) 765 0.09t0 3B.48 2432
Plan shares expired? (57) — - -
Options granted (34.434) 34,434 33.01te 4455 3851
Options cancelled 5.821 (5.821) 1.60to 70.00 31.16
Options exercised - (30,168} 0.07to 43.00 11.52
Balance at September 25, 2005 . 32,244 202,794 s0.09tos86.19 2435

M Represents activity related to options that were assumed as a result of acquisitions (Note 11).
®Represents shares availabie for future grant cancelled pursuant to the Iridigm and Spike acquisitions.

There were approximately 124,491,000 options exercisable with a weighted average exercise price of $21.11 per share at September 25,
2005. There were approximately 124,650,000 options exercisable with a weighted average exercise price of $17.41 per share at
Septembher 26, 2004.

Employee Stock Purchase Plans

The Company has two emplayee stock purchase plans for all eligible
employees to purchase shares of common stock at 85% of the lower
of the fair market value on the first or the last day of each six-menth
offering period. Employees may authorize the Company to withhold
up to L5% of their compensation during any offering period, subject
to certain limitations, The 2001 Employee Stock Purchase Plan
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authorizes up te approximately 24,309,000 shares to be granted.
The 1996 Non-Qualified Employee Stock Purchase Plan authorizes
up to 400,000 shares to be granted. During fiscal 2006, 2005 and
2004, approximately 2,220,000, 1,786,000 and 2,205,000 shares
were issued under the plans at an average price of $31.10,$29.63
and $18.60 per share, respectively. At September 24, 2006, approxi-
matety 13,226,000 shares were reserved far future issuance.




At September 24, 2006, total unrecognized estimated compensation
cost related to non-vested purchase rights granted prior to that
date was $7 million. The Company recorded cash received from
the exercise of purchase rights of $69 mitlion during fiscal 2006.

Executive Retirement Plans

The Company has voluntary retirement plans that allow eligible
executives to defer up to 100% cf their income on a pre-tax basis.
On a quarterly basis, the Company matches up to 10% of the
participants’ deferral in Company commen stock based on the then-
current market price. to be distributed to the participant upon
eligible retirement. The income deferred and the Company match
held in trust are unsecured and subject to the claims cf general
creditors of the Company. Company contributions begin vesting
based on certain minimum participation or service requirements and
are fully vested at age B5. Participants who terminate employment
forfeit their unvested shares. During fiscal 2006, 2005 and 2004,
approximately 47,000, 92,000 and 108,000 shares, respectively,
were allocated under the ptans. The Company recorded 52 million,
33 million and 5 million in compensation expense during fiscal
2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively, related to its net matching
contributians to the plans.

NOTE 9. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Litigation

Zoltar Satellite Alarm Systems, Inc. v. QUALCOMM incorporated
and SnapTrack, Inc.: On March 30, 2001, Zoltar Satellite Alarm
Systems, Inc. filed suit against QUALCOMM and its subsidiary
SnapTrack, inc. in the United States District Court for the Northern
District of California seeking monetary damages and injunctive
relief based on the alleged infringement of three patents. Follow-
ing a verdict and finding of no infringement of Zoitar's patent
claims, the Court entered a judgment in favar of the Company and
SnapTrack on Zoltar's complaint and awarded the Company and
SnapTrack their costs of suit. Zoltar filed a notice of appeal that
was dismissed as premature. While the Company has already
obtained a verdict of non-infringement of Zoltar's patents, the
Company’s additionai affirmative claims seeking declarations
of the non-enforceability and invalidity of those patents were set
to be retried in the same Court on Octeber 10, 2006. However,
Zoltar has informed the Court that it will covenant not to sue the
Company or SnapTrack on the patents. The final form of dismissal
and judgment in favor of the Company and SnapTrack remains
to be determined.

Whale Telecom Ltd. v. QUALCOMM Incorporated: On Novemnber 15,
2004, Whale Telecam Ltd. sued the Company in the New York State
Supreme Court, County of New York, seeking monetary damages
based on the claim that the Company fraudulently induced it to
enter into certain infrastructure services agreements in 1999
and later interfered with their performance of those agreements.
On March 15, 2006, the Court dismissed all ciaims against the
Company. The plaintiff has filed a notice of appeal.

Broadcom Corporation v. QUALCOMM Incorporated: OnMay 18,
2005, Broadcom filed two actions in the United States District
Court for the Central District of California against the Company
alleging infringement of ten patents and seeking monetary
damages and injunctive relief based thereon. On the same date,

Broadcom also filed a complaint in the United States International
Trade Cormmission (ITC} alleging infringerent of five of the same
patents at issue in the Central District Court cases seeking

a determination and relief under Section 337 of the Tariff Act
of 1930. On July 1, 2005, Breadcom filed an action in the United
States District Court for the District of New Jersey against the
Company alleging violations of state and federal antitrust and
unfair competition laws as well as common law claims, generally
relating to licensing and chip sales activities, seeking monetary
damages and injunctive relief based thereon. On September 1.
2006, the New Jersey District Court dismissed the complaint;
Broadcom has filed notice of appeal. Discovery is underway in one
of the Central District Court patent actions, with trial scheduled
for May 2007.On December 12, 2005, the Central District Court
crdered two of the Broadcom patent claims filed in the other
Central District patent action (which is stayed pending completion
of the ITC action) to be transferred to the Southern District

of California to be considered in the case filed by the Company
on August 22, 2005. That case now contains additional retated
claims filed by the Company and Breadcom. On February 14, 2006,
the ITC hearing commenced as to three of the patents alleged.
On October 10, 2008, the Administrative Law Judge {ALJ) issued
an interim decision in which he recommended against any down-
stream remedies, and found no infringement by the Company
on two of the three remaining patents and most of the asserted
claims of the third patent. The ALJ did find infringement on seme
claims of one patent. The Company will petition the Cammission
for review of at ieast the limited infringement findings and patent
validity findings.

QUALCOMM Incorporated v. Broadcom Corporation: On July 11,
2005, the Campany filed an action in the United States District
Court for the Southern District of California against Broadcom
alleging infringement of seven patents, each of which is essential
to the practice of either the GSM or 802.11 standards, and seeking
monetary damages and injunctive relief based therean. On
September 23, 2005, Broadcom answered and counterclaimed,
alleging infringement of six patents. On October 14, 2005, the
Company filed ancther action in the United States District Court
for the Southern District of California against Broadcom alleging
infringement of two patents, each of which relates to video encod-
ing and decoding for high-end multimedia processing, and seeking
maonetary damages and injunctive relief based thereon. That action
is scheduled for trial in January 2007. On March 24, 2006, the
Company filed another action in the United States District Court
for the Southern District of California, alleging that Broadcom,
during the period in which it has been attempting to bring to market
aWCDMA baseband solution, misappropriated QUALCOMM confi-
dential and trade secret information relating to QUALCOMM's
WCDMA baseband chips, and relating to the Company's multimedia
capabilities for such chips. The complaint also asserts another
patent claim against Broadcom's wireless local area network prod-
ucts, including such capability bundied with Broadcom's WCDMA
product offerings. Broadcom counterclaimed with the assertion
of two patents. On October 27, 2006, the Court issued a preliminary
injunction against Broadcam, prohibiting the future use er solicita-
tion of certain cf the Company’'s confidential business and
technical documents and infermation.
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QUALCOMM Incorporated and SnapTrack, Inc. v. Nokia Corporation
and Nokia Inc.: On November 4, 2005, the Company, along with its
whaolly-owned subsidiary, SnapTrack, filed an action in the United
States District Court for the Southern District of California against
Naokia alleging infringement of eleven QUALCOMM patents and cne
SnapTrack patent relating to GSM/GPRS/EDGE and position loca-
tion and seeking monetary damages and injunctive relief. The case
is currently stayed pending a decision by the Federal Circuit regard-
ing Nokia's arbitration demand. On May 24, 2006, the Company
filed an action in the Chancery Division of the High Court of Justice
for England and Wales against Nokia alleging infringement of two
QUALCOMM patents relating ta GSM/GPRS/EDGE technology
seeking monetary damages and injunctive relief. On June 9, 2006,
the Company filed a complaint with the ITC against Nokia alleging
importation of products that infringe six QUALCOMM patents
relating to power control, video enceding and decoding, and power
conservation mode techneologies and seeking an exclusionary
order and a cease and desist order. Cn July 7, 2006, the ITC com-
menced an investigation. On August 9, 2C06, the Company filed
an action in the District Court of Dusseldorf, Federal Republic of
Germany, against Nokia alleging infringement of two QUALCOMM
patents relating to GSM/GPRS/EDGE technology seeking menetary
damages and injunctive relief, On October 9, 2006, the Company
filed an action in the High Court of Paris, France against Nokia
alleging infringement of twao patents relating to GSM/GPRS/EDGE
technalogy seeking monetary damages and injunctive relief. On
October 9, 2006, the Company filed an action in the Milan Court,
Italy against Nokia alleging infringement of twe patents relating
to GSM/GPRS/EDGE technology seeking monetary damages and
injunctive relief.

Nokia Corporation and Nokia Inc. v. QUALCOMM Incorporated:
On August 9, 2006, Nokia Corporation and Nokia, Inc. filed a com-
plaint in Delaware Chancery Court seeking declaratory and
injunctive relief relating to alleged commitments made by the
Company to wireless industry standards setting organizations.
The Company has moved to dismiss the complaint.

Other: The Company has been named, aleng with many other
manufacturers of wireless phones, wireless operators and industry-
related organizations, as a defendant in several purported class
action lawsuits, and several individually filed actions pending in
Pennsylvania, Washington D.C., and Louisiana, seeking manetary
damages arising out of its sale of cellular p‘hones. The courts that
have reviewed similar claims against other companies to date
have held that there was insufficient scientific basis for the
plaintiffs' claims in those cases.

On October 28, 2005, it was reported that six companies (Broadcom,
Nokia, Texas Instruments, NEC, Panasonic and Ericsson) filed com-
plaints with the European Commissicn, alleging that the Company
violated Eurapean Unicn competition law in its WCDMA licensing
practices. The Company has received the complaints and has sub-
mitted a reply.

It has been reported that two U.S. companies (Texas Instruments

and Broadcom} and two South Korean companies {(Nextreaming Corp.
and THINmultimedia Inc.}have filed complaints with the Korean Fair
Trade Commission alleging that the Company's business practices
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are, in some way, a violation of Seuth Korean anti-trust regulations.
Te date, the Campany has not received the complaints.

Although there can be ne assurance that unfavorable outcomes
in any of the foregoing matters would not have a material adverse
effect on the Company's operating results. liquidity or financial
position, the Company believes the claims made by other parties
are without merit and will vigerously defend the actions. The
Company has not recorded any accrual for contingent liability
assocfated with the legal proceedings described above based on
the Company's belief that a liability, while possible, is not probable.
Further, any possible range of loss cannot be estimated at this
time. The Company is engaged in numerous other lagal actions
arising in the ordinary course of its business and believes that the
ultimate outcome of these actions will not have a material adverse
effect on its operating results, liquidity or financial position. In
addition, some matters that have previously been disclosed may
no longer be described in this Note because of rulings in the case,
settlements, changes in the Company's business or other develop-
ments rendering them, in the Company's judgment, no longer material
to the Company's operating resutts, liquidity or financial position,

Purchase Obligations

The Company has agreements with suppliers and other parties to
purchase inventory, other goods and services and long-lived assets
and estimates its noncancelable obligations under these agreements
for fiscal 2007 to 2011 to be approximately 663 million, 579 million,
$31 million, 20 million and $18 million, respectively, and $18 miltion
thereafter. Of these amounts, commitments to purchase integrated
circuit product inventories for fiscal 2007 to 2009 comprised
£540 million, 548 million and 5 million, respectively.

Leases

The Company leases certain of its facilities and equipment under
noncancelable operating leases, with terms ranging from less
than one year to 28 years and with provisions for cost-of -living
increases with certain leases. Rental expense for fiscal 2006,
2005 and 2004 was 547 million, 339 millicn and 531 million,
respectively. The Company leases certain property under capital
lease agreements which expire at various dates through 2036.
Capital lease obligations are included in other liabilities. The
future minimum lease payments for all capital leases and operat-
ing {eases as of September 24, 2006 are as follows (in mitfions):

Capital Operating

Leases Leases Total

2007 s 3 2 71 5 74
2008 3 4z 45
2009 3 32 35
2010 4 28 32
2011 4 21 25
Thereafter 108 97 205

Total minimum lease payments 125 291 5416
Deduct: Amounts representing interest ~_ (67)
Present value of minimum

lease payments 58
Deduct: Current portion of capital

lease cbligations -
Long-term portion of capital

lease obligations S 58
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NOTE 10. SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Company is organized on the basis of products and services.
The Company aggregates three of its divisions into the QUALCOMM
Wireless & Internet segment. Reportabie segments are as follows:

QUALCOMM COMA Technaologies (QCT)—develops and supplies
CDMA-based integrated circuits and system software for wireless
voice and data communications, multimedia functions and global
positioning system products;

QUALCOMM Technalegy Licensing (QTL}—grants licenses to use
porticns of the Company's intellectual property portfolio, which
includes certain patent rights essential to and/or useful in the
manufacture and sale of certain wireless products, including,
without limitation, products implementing cdmaOne, COMAZ2000,
WCDMA, CDMA TDD and/or OFDMA standards and their derivatives,

* QUALCOMM Government Technologies (QGOV}—provides
development, hardware and analytical expertise to United
States government agencies invelving wireless communications
technologies; and

* QUALCOMM Wireless Business Solutions (QWBS)—provides
satellite- and terrestrial-based two-way data messaging, position
reporting and wireless application services to transportation
companies, private fleets, construction equipment fleets and
other enterprise companies,

» QUALCOMM Strategic Initiatives {Q51)—manages the Campany's
strategic investment activities, including MediaFLO USA, Inc.
(MediaFLO USA), the Company's wholly-owned wireless multimedia
operator subsidiary. Q51 makes strategic investments to promote
the worldwide adoption of CDMA-based preducts and services.

and collects license fees and royalties in partial consideration for
such licenses;

v

QUALCOMM Wireless & Internet (QWi{)—comprised of:

* QUALCOMM Internet Services (Q1S)—provides technology
to support and accelerate the convergence of the wireless
data market, including its BREW, QChat and QPoint products
and services;

The Company evaluates the perfarmance of its segments based on earnings (loss) befare income taxas {EBT). EBT includes the allocation
of certain corporate expenses to the segments, including depreciation and amertization expense related to unallocated corporate assets.
Certainincome and charges are net allocated to segments in the Company's management reports because they are not considered in evaluating
the segments’ operating performance. Unallocated income and charges include certain investment income, share-based compensation and
certain research and development expenses and marketing expenses that were not deemed to be directly related to the businesses of the
segments. The table below presents revenues, EBT and total assets for reportable segments (in millions}:

Reconciling
QT QrL owl 5l Items Total
2006
Revenues $4,332 $2.631 s670 s - s (107) s 7526
EBT 1134 2,397 80 {133} {322) 3,156
Total assets 651 60 196 660 13641 15,208
2005
Revenues $3,290 51,839 5644 5 - s (100) 3 5673
EBT 852 1,663 57 10 227 2.809
Total assets 518 16 153 442 11,350 12,479
2004
Revenues $3.111 51,331 $571 5 — 3 (133) 3 4880
EBT 1,048 1,195 19 {31) 82 2313
Total assets 564 8 117 400 9,731 10,820
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements continued

Segment assets are comprised of accounts recelvable and inven-
tories for QCT, QTL and QWI. The Q51 segment assets include
certain marketable securities. notes receivable, wireless licenses,
other investments and all assets of Q5I's consolidated subsidiary,
MediaFLO USA, including property, plant and equipment. QSI's
assets related to the MediaFLO USA business totaled $329 million
and $98 million at Septembar 24, 2006 and September 25, 2005,
respectively. Q5!'s assets also included $19 million, 561 million
and $106 million related to investments in equity method investees
at September 24, 2006, September 25, 2005 and September 26,
2004, respectively. Total segment assets differ from total assets
on a consolidated basis as aresult of unallocated corporate assets
primarily comprised of cash, cash equivalents, certain marketable
securities, property, plant and equipment, deferred tax assets,
goodwill, certain other intangible assets of nonreportable seg-
ments and capitalized share-based compensation. The net back
value of long-lived assets located outside of the United States
was 69 millian, 44 million and $21 million at September 24,
2006, September 25, 2005 and September 26, 2004, respectively.
The net book value of leng-lived assets located in the United
States was $1.4 billion, 978 million and $654 million at September
24,2006, September 25, 2005 and September 26, 2004, respec-
tively. Reconciling items included $228 million and $188 million
at September 24, 2006 and September 25, 2005, respectively.
of goodwill and other assets related to the QUALCOMM MEMS
Technologies division (QMT], a nonreportable segment developing
display technology for mobile devices and other applications.

Revenues from each of the Company’s divisions aggregated into
the QWl reportable segment were as follows {in millions):

Fiscal Year QwBs QGov Qis
2006 $429 47 $194
2005 441 50 153
2004 414 41 116

Other reconciling items were comorised as follows {in millions}):

Year Ended
Sept. 24, Sept. 25. Sept. 26,
2006 2005 2004
Revenues:
Elimination of intersegment
revenue 5(222) 5(148) $(153)
Other nonreportable segments 115 48 20
Reconciling items 3(107) 3(100) 3{133)
Earnings (loss) before income taxes:
Unallocated research and
development expenses $(305) 3 (45) s (23)
Unallocated selling, general,
and administrative expenses {290} {17) (41)
Unallocated cost of equipment
and services revenues {41) - -
Unatlocated investment
Income. net 455 339 192
Other nonreportable segments {98) {45) (39)
Intracempany eliminations {43} {5) {7)
Reconciling items 5(322) 5227 S 82
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During fiscal 2006, share-based compensaticn expense included in
unallecated research and development expenses and unallecated
selting, general and administrative expenses totaled 5216 million
and $238 million, respectively. Unallocated cost of equipment and
services revenues was comprised entirely of share-based cormpen-
sation expense.

Segment data includes intarsegment revenues. Generally, revenues
between segments are based on prevailing market rates for substan-
tially similar products and services or an approximation thereof.
Specified items included in segment EBT were as follows {in millions):

QcT QTL aQwl Qsl
Fiscal 2006
Revenues from
external customers 54,314 52.465 sb62 s -
Intersegment revenues 18 166 8 -
Interest income 1 5 3 6
Interest expense 1 - 1 2
Fiscal 2005
Revenues from
external customers 53,281 1,710 5634 5 —
Intersegment revenues 9 129 10 -
Interest income - 5 2 4
Interest expense - 1 1 -
Fiscal 2004
Revenues from
external customers s3.107 51,200 5553 s —
Intersegment revenues 4 131 18 -
Interest income - 3 1 14

Effectively all equity in losses of investees (Note 5) was recorded
in Q5! in fiscal 2006. 2005 and 2004,

The Company distinguishes revenues from external customers by
geographic areas based on customer lacation. Sales infermation
by gecgraphic area was as follows {in millions):

Year Ended

Sept. 24, Sept. 25, Sept. 26,

2006 2005 2004

United States s 984 1,015 51,016
SouthKorea 2.398 2,083 2.091
Japan 1573 1,210 877
China 1,266 596 366
Other foreign 1,305 769 530

$7.526 $5,673 54,880
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NOTE 11. ACQUISITIONS

On January 18, 2006, the Company completed its acquisition
of all of the outstanding capital stock of Flarian Technologies, Inc.
[Flarion), a privately held developer of OFDMA technology for
approximately $613 million in consideration, consisting of approxi-
mately $349 million in shares of QUALCOMM stock, 3228 million
in cash, and the exchange of Flarion's existing vested options and
warrants with an estimated aggregate fair value of approximately
535 million. In addition, the Company assumed Flarion's existing
unvested options with an estimated aggregate fair value of 63
million, which is recorded as share-based compensation over the
requisite service peried pursuant to FAS 123R. Upcn achievement
of certain agreed upon milestanes during the third quarter of
fiscal 2006, the Company incurred additional aggregate consider-
ation of 5197 million, consisting of approximately $185 million
in cash {of which $75 million wiil he payable in July 2007). $8 millian
in shares of QUALCOMM stock (of which $3 million is issuable
in March 2007), and the modification of Flarion's existing vested
options and warrants with an estimated incremental fair value
of approximately 54 million. The additionat amounts payable in
cash and shares on the milestone date were treated as additional
consideration and recorded as goodwill. [n addition, the modifica-
tion of Flarion’s existing unvested options resulted in an estimated
incremental fair valve of 57 million, which will be recorded as
share-based compensation over the requisite service period pur-
suant ta FAS 123R. The acquisition of Flarion is intended to
breaden the Company's ability to effectively support aperators
who may prefer an OFDMA er a hybrid OFDM/CDMA/WCDMA net-
work alternative, The addition of Flarion's intellectual property
and engineering resources will also supplement the resources that
the Company has already dedicated over the years towards the
development of CFDM/OFDMA technologies.

During fiscal 2006, the Company also acquired the following two
entities for a total cost of $69 million, which was paid primarily
in cash:

Berkana Wireless Inc., a California-based developer of complemen-
tary metal oxide serniconductor (CMOS) radio freguency integrated
circuits {RFICs).

Qualphone Inc., a provider of IP-based multimedia subsystems
embedded client software products for mobile devices and
interoperability testing services based primarily in India and Italy.

An additional 4 million in cansideration is payable in cash through
August 2007 If certain performance and other milestones are
reached. The Company is in the final stages of accounting for the
acquisitions and does not anticipate material adjustments to the
preliminary purchase price allocations. Goodwill recognized in
these transactions, no amaunt of which is expected to be deductible
for tax purposes, was assigned to the QTL and QCT segments in the
amounts of $619 million and 538 million, respectively. Technology-
based intangible assets recognized in the amount of $165 million
are being amortized on a straight-line basis over a weighted-average
amortization period of seventeen years. Purchased in-process
technalegy in the amount of $22 million was charged to research
and development expense upon acquisition because technological

v

-

v
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feasibility had not been established and no future alternative
uses existed. The consolidated financial statements include the
operating results of these businesses from their respective dates
of acquisition, Pro forma results of cperations have not been pre-
sented because the effects of the acquisitions were not material.

During fiscal 2005, the Company acquired the following four entities
for a total cost of 5297 million, including $2 miilion paid in fiscal
2006 upon the achievement of certain milestones, which was paid
primarily in cash:

Iridigm Display Corporation {Iridigm}, a California-based display

_ technology company.

Trigenix Limited, a United Kingdom-based developer of user
interfaces for mobile phones.

Spike Technologies, Inc., @ semiconductor design services company
based primarily in India.

ELATA, L.td,, a United Kingdom-hased developer of mobile content
delivery and device management software systems.

An additional ©2 million in consideration is payable in cash
through November 2006 if certain performance and other mile-
stones are reached. Goodwilt recognized in these transactions
amounted to $218 million, of which $81 million is expected to
be deductible for tax purposes. Goodwill was assigned to the
QMT, QIS and QCT segments in the amounts of 128 million, 581
mitlicn and $9 miilicn. respectively. Technology-based intangible
assets recognized in the amount of 36 million have a weighted-
average useful life of seven years.

NOTE 12. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS IN THE QSi SEGMENT

On December 2, 2003, the Company sold its direct and indirect
ownership interests in Vésper Sao Paulo 5.A. and Vésper S.A.
{the Vésper Operating Companies}, consolidated subsidiaries of
the Company’s Q5| segment, and the Vésper Operating Companies’
communication towers and related interests in tower site property
leases (Vésper Towers) in two separate transactions. The Company
realized a net loss of 52 million on the sale of the Vésper
Operating Companies during fiscal 2004, partially offset by a $40
million net gain from the subsequent sals of the Vésper Towers.
The Company also recognized a $19 million net gain resulting from
the extinguishment of debt related to the waiver and return of
personal mobile service licenses to Anatel, the telecammunications
regulatory agency in Brazil. As a result of the disposition of the
remaining operations and assets related to the Vésper Operating
Companles, the Company determined that the results of operations
related to the Vésper Cperating Companies, including the results
related to the Vésper Towers and the gains and losses realized on
the sales transactions. should be presented as discontinued opera-
tions inits cansolidated statements of operations. At September
24,2006 and September 25, 2005, the Company had ne remaining
assets or liabilities related to the Vésper Operating Companies
or the Vésper Towers recorded on its consclidated balance sheet.
Revenues of 536 million were reported in the loss from discantinued
operaticns during fiscal 2004,
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements continued

NOTE 13. SUMMARIZED QUARTERLY DATA (UNAUDITED)
The following financial infermaticn reflects all normal recurring adjustments that are, in the opinion of management, necessary for a fair
statement of the results of the interim periods.

The table below presents quarterly data for the years ended September 24, 2006 and September 25, 2005 (in millions, except per share data):

1st Qtr 2nd Qtr 3rd Qtr 4th Qtr

2006

Revenues(" s1,741 1,834 $1,951 $1,999
Operating incomet!! 645 660 704 681
Net income!!) 620 593 643 614
Basic earnings per common share!? s 0.38 s 0.36 $ 0.38 $ 0.37
Diluted earnings per common sharef? $ 0.36 s 0.34 s 037 s 0.36
2005

Revenues! 51,380 $1.385 $1,358 s1.560
Operating income!!! 584 572 560 670
Net income!!! 513 532 560 538
Basic earnings per common sharet?) s 031 s 032 s 034 $ 033
Diluted earnings per common share®? s 030 s 031 s 033 S 032

M Revenues, operating income and net income are reunded to millions each quarter. Therefore, the sum cf the quarterly amounts may not equal the annual
amounts reported.

@ Earnings per share are computed independently for each quarter and the full year based upon respactive average shares outstanding. Therefare, the sum of the
quarterly earnings per share amounts may not equal the annual amounts reported.
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Note Regarding Use of Non-GAAP Financial Measures

The Company presents financial information excluding certain items
in addition to GAAP results in order to provide supplemental infor-
mation about the Company's operating performance.

The Company presents pro forma financial information that s
used by management (i) ta evaluate, assess and benchmark the
Company's operating results on a consistent and comparabte
basis, (ii) ta measure the performance and efficiency of the
Company’s ongoing core operating businesses, including the
QUALCOMM CDMA Technologies, QUALCOMM Technotogy
Licensing and QUALCOMM Wireless & Internet segments, and
{iii) to compare the performance and efficiency of these segments
against each other and against competitors outside the Company.
Management believes pro forma financial information represents
a more meaningful and comparable set of financial performance
measures for the Company and its business segments by elimi-
nating the episodic impact of strategic investments in QS| and
items such as acquired in-process R&D, as well as the inherent,
non-operational valatility of share-based compensation. As
aresult, management compensation decisions and the review
of executive compensation by the Compensation Committee of
the Board of Directors focus primarily on pro forma financial
measures applicable to the Company and its business segments.

The Q5I segment is excluded from pro forma results bacause the
Company expects to exit its strategic investments, and the effects
of fluctuations in the value of such investments are viewed by
managernent as unrelated to the Company’s operational performance.
Certain tax adjustments related to prior years are excluded for
fiscal 2005 and 2006 in order to provide a clearer understanding of
the Company’s ongoing tax rate and after tax earnings. Estimated
share-based compensation recorded in accordance with FAS 123R
is excluded because management views the valuation of options
and other share-based compensation as theoretical and unrelated
to the Company’s operational performance as it is affected by
factors that are subject to change on each grant date including the
Company's stock price, stack market volatility, expected option
life, risk-free interest rates and expected dividend payouts in
future years. Mareover, it is not an expense that requires or will
require cash payment by the Company. Acquired in-process R&D
expense in fiscal 2006 is excluded because such expense is incurred

infrequently and is viewed by management as unrelated to the
operating activities of the Company’s ongoing core businesses.

For periods prior to 2003, pro forma financial informaticn used
by management excluded the amortization of goodwill and other
acquisition-related intangible assets prior to adoption of FAS 142,
payroll expenses on stock opticn exercises and other items that
were viewed as unrelated to the Company's ongoing operating
performance.

Inthe fourth quarter of fiscal 2004, the Company began recording
royalty revenue hased solely on royalty reports received from
licensees for royalty bearing sales of equipment in the prior quarter.
Therefore, results prior to this change have been adjustad as
though this new method of recording royalties had been in effect
for all periods to provide a comparable presentation. The Company
presents pro forma financial results as though the new method of
recording royalties had been in effect for fiscal 2002, 2003 and
2004 to facilitate evaluation by management, investors and analysts
of the results for those years on a comparahle basis to the
Company's current results, current guidance and future periods.
The Company believes that this presentation is useful in evaluating
its performance on a consistent and comparable basis.

The Company presents free cash flow, defined as net cash provided
by operating activities less capital expenditures, to facilitate an
understanding of the amount of cash flow generated that is available
to grow its business and to create long-term shareholder value.
The Company believes that this presentation is useful in evaluating
its operating performance and financial strength. In addition, man-
agement uses this measure to value the Company and te compare
its operating performance with other companies in the industry.

The non-GAAP pro forma financial information presented herein
should be considered in addition to, not as a substitute for,

or superior to, financial measures calculated in accordance with
GAAP In addition, pro forma is not a term defined by GAAP, and,
as a result, the Company's measure of pro formaresults might be
different than similarly titled measures used by other companies.
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Reconciliation of Non-GAAP Financial Measures

RECONCILIATION OF PRO FORMA AND GAAP NET INCOME AND DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE

(Inmitlions, except per share data) 2006 2005 2004 2003 2002
Tatal GAAP net income'!? 52,470 $2.143 $1.720 s 827 s 380
Less: Q51 net (loss) income {32} 102 12 (334) {180)
Less: Other pro forma adjustmants, net of taxt __{302) 71 92) 1 {237)
Pro forma net income $2,804 51.970 51,800 $1.160 s 777
Tatal GAAP diluted earnings per sharel) 5 144 s 1.26 s 1.03 s 0.51 s 0.22
Less: Q5! diluted (loss) earnings per share {0.02) 0.06 0.01 {0.20) (0.11)
Less: Other pro forma adjustments, net of tax per share@ (0.18) 0.04 {0.06) 0.00 (0.15)
Pro forma diluted earnings per share s 1.64 s 116 s 1.07 s 0.71 s .48

Shares used in per share caiculations:®

Diluted shares 1,71t 1,684 1.675 1636 1619

Un the fourth quarter of fiscal 2004, the Company adopted a new method of recording reyalties, based solely on reports received from licensees for royalty
bearing sales of equipment in the prior quarter. Under the prior method of recording rovalties, the Company recorded an estimate of earned royalties for
certain licensees in the quarter preceding its receipt of licensee reports. This change was made on a prospective basis in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2004,
and consequently, GAAP results for fiscal 2004 reflect only partial economic performance of the Company's licensing business as royalty reveaue that would
have beenrecognized in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2004 was recagnized in the first quarter of fiscal 2005.

@ Q0ther pro forma adjustments are comprised of:

2006 2005 2004 2003 2002
Estimated share-hased compensation s {495) s - R s - s -
Acquired in-procass research and development {22} - - ~ -
Adjustment to reflect the new method of recording royalty revenue!!! - - (151) 1 28
Amortization of goodwill and other intangible assets - - — - {259)
Stock option payroll tax expense - - - - (6)
Globalstar - - — - 4
Other — — - - 8
Total pro forma adjustments before taxes $ (517) ERs s {151} s 1 $ {225)
Tax adjustments related to prior years 40 71 - - -
Income tax benefit (expense) related to pro forma adjustments before taxes 175 - 59 - (12)
Total pre forma adjustments, net of tax 5 (302} s 71 s {92} 5 1 s {237)
Net pro forma adjustments on a diluted per share basis ${0.18) s 0.04 5 (0.05) s 0.00 3(0.15)

#The Company effected a two-for-one stock split in August 2004, All references to number of shares and per share amounts have been restated to reflect
this stack split.

RECONCILIATION OF FREE CASH FLOW TO NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

{In millions) 2006 2005 2004 2003* 2002+
Net cash provided by operating activities [GAAP) $3,253 52,686 52,469 $1,782 51,109
Less capital expenditures (GAAP) __(e85) (576) {333) {231) (142)
Free cash flow $2,568 $2,110 52,136 51,551 S 967

*Cash flows for fiscal years 2004, 2003 and 2002 have been revised to combine cash flows from continuing operations with cash flows from discontinued
operations, which resulted from the sale of the Company's former subsidiaries, the Vésper Operating Campanies, and the Vésper Towers and the return of
the personat mobile service licenses to Anatel, the telecommunications regulatory agency in Brazil.

80 quaiLcomm 2006




Financial Highlights Notes centinued from page 03

M During fiscal 2004, the Company sold its consolidated subsidiaries, the
Vésper Operating Companies, and the Vésper Towers and returned persanal
mebile service licenses to Anatel. the telecommunications regulatory
agency in Brazil. The results of cperations, including gains and losses realized
on the sales transactions and the licenses, are presented as discontinued
operations. As such, revenue and gross margin results presented do not
include the results from these discontinued operations.

2 |n the fourth quarter of fiscal 2004, the Company adopted a new method of
recording royalties, based solely on reports received from licensees for royalty
bearing sales of equipment in the prior quarter. Under the prior method of
recording royatties, the Company recorded an estimate of earned royalties
for certain licensees in the quarter preceding its receipt of licensee reparts.
This change was made on a prospective basis in the fourth quarter of fiscal
2004 and as a result, GAAP results for fiscal 2004 reflect only partial eco-
nomic performance of the Company’s licensing business as royalty revenue
that would have been recognized in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2004 was
recognized in the first quarter of fiscal 2005.

WThe Company effacted a two-for-cne stock split in August 2004, Allref-
erencas ta per share amounts have been restated toreflect the stock split.

“5ee "Note Regarding Use of Non-GAAP Financial Measures” on page 79
and “Reconciliation of Non-GAAP Financial Measures” on page 80.

' Frae Cash Flow is calculated as net cash from operating activities less
rapital expenditures, both of which are presented in the GAAP statement
of cash flows.

BIFree Cash Flow for fiscal years 2002. 2003 and 2004 have beenrevised
to combine cash flows from continuing operations with cash flows from
discontinued operations, which resulted frem the sale of the Company's
former subsidiaries, the Vésper Operating Companies, and the Vésper
Towers anc the return of the personal mobile service licenses to Anatel.
the telecommunications regulatory agency in Brazil.
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Safe Harbor Statement

In addition to the historical information contained herein, this Annual
Report contains forward-luoking statements that are subject to
risks and uncertainties. Actual results may differ substantially
from those referrad ta herein due to a number of factors, including
but not limited to risks associated with: the rate of development,
deployment and commercial acceptance of CDMA-based networks
and CDMA-based techrology, including COMA2000 and WCDMA,
both domestically and internaticnally; growth of the wireless indus-
try: our dependence on major customers and licensees, fluctuations
in the demand for CDMA-based products, services or applications;
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foreign currency fluctuations; strategic loans, investments and
transactions we have or may pursue; dependence on third-party
manufacturers and suppliers; our ability to maintain and improve
operational efficiencies and profitability: the development of FLO
technology. the MDS and related equipment; the ability of MediaFLO
USA to establish the necessary partnerships and deliver in a timely
manner the intended services; developments in current and future
litigation as well s other risks detailed from time-to-time in our
SEC reports.
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